
Regular Meeting
City Hall Council Chambers
East side of Monte Verde
between Ocean & 7th

Call to Order and Rott Call

Pledqe of Alleoiance

Appearances

Tuesday
April 12,2016

9:30 a.m.

Bobby Richards, Chair
Judy Refuezo, Vice Chair
Dona Jett
Grace Lee
Stacy Meheen

Thank you for attending the meeting. Anyone wishing to address the Commission on matters not on the
agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Commission, may do so now. Please state the matter on which
you wish to speak. Matters not appeanng on the Commission's agenda will not receive action at this
meeting but may be referred to staff for a future meeting. Presentltions will be limited to three minutes, or
as established by the Commission. Persons are not required to give their name or address, but it is
helpful for speakers to state their name in order that the Secretary may identify them.

Consent Aqenda

1. Approval of Minutes of the March 8, 2016 Meeting Lpp \ - 5 )2. Approval of Minutes of the March 17 ,2016 special ruedting (pn ," -g )
Orders of Business

New Business
3. Make a recommendation to the City Council regarding the use and tenancy of the

lndoor Forest Theater by the three 2016 user groups: Forest Theater Guild, pacific
RepertoryTheater, andWaltDefaria { ff .i- b1)

4. Review draft Forest Theater Use Agreement and fonrard a recommendation to the
City Council regarding changes to the use agreement, including the possible addition
of certain costs to be borne by the 2016 season user groups ( pp. to*. Sal

5. Consider a request for a waiver of special event permit fees for the Concours on the
Avenue and fonvard a recommendation to the City CouncT ( ?g {n - ia S )

6. Consider a request for a waiver of special event permit fees for the Pebble Beach
Tour d'Elegance and fonruard a recommendation to the City Council t ,. ,r, \( Pp I Zu' l'44 )

7. Receive ad hoc committee report, review and discuss draft Special Event Policy, and
fonruard a recommendation to the City Council / A /7 r {,: _ | .-.) _( ef l'\D r tL

Old Business
8. Review and discuss CA&CC plans for a cultural event in Devendorf Park to be held

in conjunction with 2016 Centennial celebrations, provide direction as necessary
(pp.)

Reports from the Chair and Commissioners

ReDorts from the staff - receive and discuss reports. provide direction as necessarv
9. Verbal review of 2016 Special Events



10.

11.

' Carmel Ribbon Cutting / Centennial Launch, Friday, Friday, January 8, Ocean
Avenue

' 20th Annual Breakfast with the Bunny and Bunnyland, Saturday, March 26,
Devendorf Park

o Monterey Vintners Winemakers' Celebration, Saturday, May 7, Dolores between
ocean and 7th Avenues, 7th Avenue between Dolores and San carlos. 36th Annual Surfabout Contest, May 13,14,15, Carmel Beach

' 223td Annual CarmelArt Festival, May 12-15, Mission between Ocean and 6tho Memorial Day ceremony, Monday, May 30, 11:00 am, Devendorf park
. 6th Annual Run in the Name of Love, Sunday, June 1g, g:00 am, Race start on

San Carlos Street - Finish at Del Mar.
. 14th Annual 4th of July celebration, Monday, July 4, p:aO pm, Devendorf park

' 1Oth Annual Concours on the Avenue, Tuesday, August 16, Ocean Avenue and
Devendorf Park

o 1gth Annual Pebble Beach rour d'Elegance, Thursday, August 1g, 11:30 am
Ocean Avenue and Devendorf park

. Carmel High School Homecoming Parade, October 21, 2016, Ocean Avenue. 55th Annual Sandcastle contest, october 22,2016 - carmel Beach
' 8th Annual Carmel lnternational Film Festival , Wednesday - Sunday, October 19-

22 - various locations
. 100th City Birthday party and parade, Saturday, October 29. 2nd Annual Pumpkin Roll, TBD, Ocean Avenue
o Veterans Day Ceremony, Friday, November 1 1, Devendorf park
. 46th Annual Homecrafters' Marketplace., saturday, November 19, 9:00 am to

3:00 pm - Sunset Center North Lot
o Tree Lighting, Friday, December 2, 4'.30 pm - ocean Avenue and Devendorf

Park.

Future Agenda ltems

Adjournment

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING

l, Janet Bombard, Library and Community Activities Director for the Clty of Carmel-by-the-Sea, DO HEREBy
CERTIFY, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, that the foregoing notice was posted at
the Carmel-by{he-Sea City Hall bulletin board, posted at the Harrison Memorial Library o,-n Oiean and Lincoln
Avenues and the Carmel Post Office and distributed to members of the media on April 8,2016.

Dated this 8th day of April, 2016, 4 the hour of 5:45 p.m.

Janet Bombard
and Cofimunity Activities Director



MINUTES
COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES & CULTURAL COMMISSION

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-TH E-SEA

REGULAR MEETING, March 8,20!6

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Commissioners: Jett, Lee, Refuerzo, Richards

ABSENT: Meheen

STAFF PRESENT: Janet Bombard, Library and Community Activities Director
Margi Perotti, Community Activities Coordinator
Andy Vanderford, Projects Manager
Rob Mullane, Director of public Works
Don Freeman, City Attorney

II. TOUR OF INSPECTION

Chairperson Richards adjourned to the inspection at the Forest Theater, located at
Mountain View and Santa Rita Street. He reconvened the meeting at 10:10 a.m.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGTANCE

Members of the audience joined Commission Members in the Pledge of Allegiance.

III. APPEARANCES
No appearances.

IV. CONSENT AGENDA

1 . Approve the minutes of the February 10, 2016 regular meeting.

It was moved by Jett and seconded by Refuerzo to approve the minutes of the February
10, 2016 as amended. The motion carried by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Lee, Jett, Refuerzo
NOES: None
ABSENT: Meheen
ABSTAIN: Richards

V. ORDERS OF BUSINESS - New Business

City Attorney Freeman spoke to the Commission regarding ex parte conversations with
members of the public, and wanted to make sure the Commission was aware of how to
do business in the public eye.

Commissioners Jett and Richards and Refuerzo stated they had spoken to Stephen
Moorer regarding the history of the Forest Theater User Groups. Commissioner Lee
stated she had received emails from Stephen Moore but had not replied to him. City



Attorney Freeman stated information should be dropped off at City Hall, to make sure all

information going to the Commission or the public was the same.

1. Consider a Forest Theater user groups request that the City purchases a golf cart to
facilitate an accessible managed parking program hat complies with the Americans
with Disabilities Act (ADA), and make a recommendation to the City Council.

Staff member Bombard presented a staff report. Staff member Vanderford provided

additional information during discussion of this topic to the Commission.

Chairperson Richards opened the public hearing. Walt Defaria and Lenore Carrie spoke
in favor of having the golf cart; Stephen Moorer and Kim Mitchell spoke against having a

golf cart. Benjamin Jonas, Yvonne Bowen, Carrie Glenn said they would either like one

or the other but not to have two policies regarding the managed parking program, a cart
and the valet parking would be too expensive. Jack Pappadeas said they were very
expensive and he could by one cheaper on eBay and wanted one for himself. fhere
being no further action the public hearing was closed.

Following discussion, it was moved by Jett and seconded by Richards to send a

recommendation to the City Council to allow the user groups to maintain designated
ADA parking by volunteers, valet or any other acceptable ADA plan. The motion carried
by the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Lee, Jett, Refuerzo, Richards
None
Meheen
None

This topic was reopened at the end of the meeting regarding making a recommendation
regarding the purchase of a golf cart. There was no public comment.

A motion was made by Richards and seconded by Lee to make a recommendation to
City Council not to purchase a golf cart. The motion carried by the following roll call
vote:

AYES: Lee, Jett, Richards
NOES: None
ABSENT: Meheen, Refuerzo
ABSTAIN: None

2. Consider a request from Forest Theater user groups that the City purchase and
install a light and sound truss kit at the Forest Theater and make a recommendation
to the City Council.

Staff member Bombard presented a staff report.

Chairperson Richards opened the public hearing. Walt Defaria, Joanna Hobbs, Stephen
Moorer, Carolyn Hardy, Yvonne Bowen and Carrie Glenn appeared before the
Commission. All spoke in favor of the City purchasing the equipment. There being no
further appearances, the public hearing was closed.

Following discussion, it was moved by Refuerzo and seconded by Lee to send a

recommendation to the City Council supporting the purchase and installation of two new



sound and light towers; and two truss bridges that would connect to two existing towers
at the Forest Theater with a budget not to exceed $20,000. The motion carried by the
following roll call vote:

AYES: Jett, Lee, Refuerzo, Richards
NOES: None
ABSENT: Meheen
ABSTAIN: None

3. Make a recommendation to the City Council regarding the use and tenancy of the
lndoor Forest Theater by the three user groups: Forest Theater Guild, Pacific
Repertory Theater and Walt Defaria.

Staff member Bombard presented the staff report.

Chairperson Richards opened the public hearing. Diane Goyette, Joanna Hobbs and

Stephen Moorer supported exclusive use of the facility. Stephen Moorer submitted
letters that support Pac Rep's use of the facility into the record. Mr. Moorer mentioned
that the Forest Theater Foundation had purchased two portable dressing rooms that
groups could use. Mr. Moorer indicated that they could accommodate the two requested
evenings for the 2016 Centennial production, but Pac Rep would have to have staff
there.

Walt Defaria appeared to say that the Centennial Committee would like two evenings
and one day's use of the indoor theater for his production.

Nicole Stevens read a letter into the record for Lenore Carry urging the Commission to
support shared use of the indoor theater. Kim Mitchell, Benjamin Jonas, Carrie Glenn,
E. Griffin Ortiz, Yvonne Bowen and Charlotte Gould spoke for multiple users of the
indoor theater.

There being no further appearances, the public hearing was closed.

Commissioner Refuerzo excused herself from the meeting al ll'.26 a.m.

Commissioner Jett mentioned this has been an ongoing issue for 20 years and the City
Council had already looked at it. She gave it as her opinion that the indoor theater
should not be pushed out for another group. Jett stated that the theater is three
separate venues and the indoor theater is Pac Rep's home - their copy machine and
fridge are currently stored there - and it is not fair to ask a year-round program to
suspend programs. Jett also stated that although the Forest Theater Guild would serve
a separate children in the area, her children went to Pac Rep and it is not exclusive as

they provide scholarships.

Commissioner Richards stated that since Pac Rep has previously had a long term
contract, the City should give Pac Rep a year-long contract for the indoor theater and
revisit the issue in November of 2017.

Following discussion it was moved by Jett and seconded by Richards to make a

recommendation to the City Councilthat SoDA (Pacific Repertory School of Dramatic
Arts) continues exclusive use of the indoor theater, as ihe City Council has contracted
with them in the past, until the end of 2017 and that the issue of shared use of the venue
come back before the commission in the fall of 2016.



The motion carried by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Lee, Jett, Richards
NOES: None
ABSENT: Meheen, Refuerzo
ABSTAIN: None

Commissioner Jett then made a second motion that Pac Rep cooperates with the Centennial

Committee on providing access to the indoor forest theater during the Centennial Celebration

week and works with them on that, seconded by Commissioner Lee.

The motion carried by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Lee, Jett, Richards
NOES: None
ABSENT: Meheen, Refuerzo
ABSTAIN: None

4. Review draft Forest Theater Use Agreement and make a recommendation to the City

Council.

Staff member Bombard presented the staff report.

Chairperson Richards opened the public hearing. Stephen Moorer and Yvonne Bowen

appeared before the Commission. There being no further appearances the public

hearing was closed.

Following discussion, it was moved by Richards to continue this item to a special

meeting to discuss this topic, seconded by Lee. The motion carried by the following roll

call vote:

AYES: Lee, Jett, Richards
NOES: None
ABSENT: Meheen, Refuerzo
ABSTAIN: None

Vl. OLD BUSINESS -continued to the next regularly scheduled meeting.

X. ADJOURNMENT

Due to time constraints all remaining business on the agenda was continued to the next

regularly scheduled meeting. Chair Richards adjourned the meeting at 12:02 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Margi Perotti, Community Activities Coordinator

Approved by:



Bobby Richards, ChairPerson



MINUTES

CoMMUNITYACTIVITIES&cULTURALcoMMISSIoN

CITY OF CARM EL-BY-TH E-SEA

SPECIAL MEETING, March 17,201'6

t. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

PRESENT. commissioners: Jett, Meheen, Refuerzo, Richards

ABSENT: Lee

STAFF PRESENT: Janet Bombard, Library and Community Activities Director

Margi Perotti, Community Activities Coordinator

Rob Mullane, Director of Public Works

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Members of the audience joined Commission Members in the Pledge of Allegiance'

!II. APPEARANGES
No appearances.

IV. ORDERS OF BUSINESS

1. Review draft Forest Theater Use Agreement, provide direction/recommendation to

the CitY Council as necessary.

Stacy Meheen recused herself from the meeting due to association to the Forest Theater

Guild.

Chair Richards asked the Commission if they have had ex-parte communications with

any of the user groups. Richards, Jett and Refuerzo all stated they have received

emails but did not respond to the emails'

Staff member Bombard presented a staff report. Staff member Mullane addressed

questions of the Commission.

Chairperson Richards opened the public hearing. Stephen Moore appeared and

submitted a document of the changes he would like to have in the Use Agreement, Walt

Defaria and yvonne Bowen appeared and were supportive of the changes. There being

no further action the public hearing was closed'

Following discussion, it was moved by Richard and seconded by Jett to fonruard the

Forest Theater Use Agreement with the following changes to the City Council for

consideration.

- page 2,#4Termination of License Priorto Expiration of CurrentTerm,
line 2: change fifteen (15) days to 120 days written notice...

lines change fifteen (15) days to 120 days prior written notice... .

Line 10, change ten (10) to thirty (30) days after.. '

b



page 3, #8, Outdoor Theater Hours of Operation. ... City Staff to check Municipal Code

and Policy's for hours of operation.

Forest Theater Use Agreement - Exhibit *D'4th paragraph regarding vieo recording or

recording purposes of your performances... eliminate from document.

Page 9 Food. Add Beverages and Merchandise.
t-ine +S... remove at any time - replace with upon 30 days notice.

Line 10 Food b) add or merchandise,

AddunderHealthDepartmentPermit#-ResalelicenseNumber

Page 12 - Outdoor Forest Theater Use Agreement - Schedule "A", third paragraph -
Eliminate July 20, 2005

Page 14, Outdoor Forest Theater Use Agreement- Schedule "C" . .. check occumpany

with the Fire Marshal.

Page 15, Housekeeping Responsibilities Bullet point #8 Change five (5) days to (15)

fifteen days.

ADA participants. The person responsible for the parking plan may release these
spaces, if there is not ADA parking spaces are not used.

The motion carried by the following roll call vote.

AYES: Jett, Refuerzo, Richards
NOES: None
ABSENT: Lee
ABSTAIN: None

1. Review and discuss draft Special Event Policy, provide direction/recommendations
to City Council as necessary Staff member Bombard presented a staff report.

Chairperson Richards opened the public hearing. Walt Defaria wanted his event to be
placed on the Calendar, Stephen Moore wanted the last page to reflect "YeS" for
merchandise for Forest Theater. Monta Potter, was on the Special Event Policy
Committee appeared stated it was a good document, but she did not agree with the Fee

waiver/grant section of the document. Carolyn Hardy, another member of the Special
Event Policy Committee, explained why the last page for merchandise at Forest Theater
should not be changed. She also addressed the Fee Waiver Policy and said it will now

be called the Community Promotions Fund, and the 1't year would start when the Policy

is adopted. She is very supportive of the Policy. Jill Sheffield, was not supportive of the
policy, no businesses or nonprofits were represented, economic benefits not addressed
in the policy and she thinks the policy is punitive. Bob Mulford, member of the Special
Event Policy Committee stated that businesses and nonprofits were represented.

Public Hearing was closed.

Chair Richards stated that he would like to continue the item to the next regular meeting

and in the meantime appoint an ad hoc committee to study the issue and make a report



tothecommission.ltwasagreedthatChairRichardsandViceChairRefuerzowould
act as the ad hoc committee'

CommissionerMeheenmovedtocontinuetheitemtothenextmeeting,secondedby
Refuerzo.

The motion carried by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Jett, Meheen, Refuezo' Richards

NOES: None
ABSENT: Lee
ABSTAIN: None

Reports from the Chair and Commissioners: None

None

The meeting was adjourned at

Respectfu llY subm itted,

Margi Perotti, Community Activities Coordinator

Approved by:

Bobby Richards, ChairPerson

&

-



CoMMUNITYACTIVITIESANDCULTURALCoMMISSIoN

Staff RePort

April 12,2016

To:

From:

Community Activities and Cultural Commissioners

Janet Bombard, Library and community Activities Director

Subject: Consider a request to authorize shared use of the lndoor Forest Theater

between the Forest Theater Guild, pacific Repertory Theater, and the 2016 centennial committee

during the 2016 season and forward a recommendation to the City Council

ANALYSIS/DISCUSSION:

The city council has remanded the request to authorize shared use of the lndoor Forest Theater back

to the community Activities and cultural commission for reconsideration.

Backoround

The Forest Theater is scheduled to open for use during the 2016 season. The occupancy schedule

for the outdoor theater, which is dictated by the weather, comprises the months of April through

October each year. The indoor theater can be occupied year-round'

Since at least 2OOS, multiple year contracts for tenancy of the outdoor Forest Theater have been

granted to two user groups: Forest Theater Guild and Pacific Repertory Theater. Multiple year

contracts were also lranted for use of the indoor theater, at first to the children's Experimental

Theater, and subsequently to Pacific Repertory's School of Dramatic Arts (SoDA). The most recent

contracts under which the Forest Theater Guild and Pacific Repertory Theater were operating expired

in 2014 and 2015 resPectivelY.

Staff was directed by former City Administrator Doug Schmitz to issue a contract for the use of the

Forest Theater for 2.016 only, to the following three user groups. Forest Theater Guild, Pacific

Repertory Theater (PacRep), and the 2016 Centennial Committee, which will be putting on a one-

week production directed by Walt Defaria as part of the 2016 Centennial celebrations. The groups will

occupy the outdoor theater for the following time periods:

May 1-July 28,2016
July 29 - October 16, and, October 24 - 31 , 2016

October 17 -23,2016

Staff has received requests from the Forest Theater Guild and Walt Defaria for the Centennial

Committee to use the indoor theater during the terms of their tenancies.

The Forest Theater Guild proposes to use their tenancy of the indoor theater to offer free theater

classes to adults and children.

. Forest Theater Guild:

o PacRep:
. Centennialproduction:

q



wart Defaria, acting on beharf of the centenniar committee, wourd rike two evenings' use of the main

ha* and centrar area of the indoor theater for additionar dressing room space during the 2016

centennial production dress rehearsal and show at the outdoor theater'

Pacific Repertory Theater wishes to retain exclusive use of the lndoor Theater to resume soDA

classes there. Under the terms of its most recent Forest Theater use agreement, approved in 2011 by

the city council, Pacific Repertory Theater was granted year-round, exclusive use of the 60 seat

indoor theater to operate the schoor of Dramatic Arts (soDA) for chirdren. since the closure of the

Forest Theater, soDA has operated out of the Golden Bough Playhouse (which is owned by Pacific

Repertory Theater) on Monte Verde between 8th and 9th'

ndvvllllllul lrf y, rvrrrrrrY

The community Activities and cultural conrmission (cA&cc) considered the matter during its March

8,2016 meeting. After hearing public comment, both against and in support of shared use'

commissioners variously gave their opinion that it was not fair to ask a year-round program to suspend

activities, and that since pac Rep had previously had a long term contract, the City should give Pac

Rep a year-long contract for the indoor theater and revisit the issue in November of 2017 '

As a result, the commission voted to make the following recommendation to the City Council: that the

City Council authorize exclusive use of the indoor theater to SoDA (Pacific Repertory School of

Dramatic Arts) until the end of 2017 andthat the issue of shared use of the venue comes back before

the commission in the fall of 2016, and that the city council direct PacRep to cooperate with the

centennial Committee to provide access to the indoor Forest Theater during the Centennial

Celebration week and support their efforts'

City Staff Recommendation
staff agrees with tne community Activities and cultural commission's second recommendation that

pac Rep should work with the centennial committee to accommodate the committee's requested use

of the indoor theater during its week-long tenancy in october.

with regard to the community Activities and cultural commission's first recommendation, however, in

staff,s view no part of the Forest Theater, as a city-owned community venue, should be reserved for

continual use by one group or individual to the exclusion of all others. Nor should the decision be

made based on historical precedent. Rather, it should be based on the best use of a public venue and

the communitY it serves.

SoDA clearly offers an important service to children; however, opening the Forest Theater to a wider

variety of educational opportunities for people of all ages provides added value to the community,

especially given, in this case, that the Forest Theater Guild is proposing to offer free classes'

staff notes that in the past the children's Experimental Theater moved out of the lndoor Forest

Theater during the summer so that the Forest Theater Guild could make use of both the indoor and

outdoor theater during its tenancy. ln the interest of fairness and putting a community venue to its

best use it would seem, therefore, that returning to this past practice would serve the needs of all.

The pacific Repertory Theater owns a venue out of which it currently operates SoDA classes: the

Golden Bough Theater. pac Rep could continue to hold the classes there through the end of July,

thereby giving the Forest Theater Guild the opportunitv to use the indoor theater during its tenancy.

/@



Staff also requests that the commission take note of its recommendation that the city Council

authorize exclusive use of the indoor theater to SoDA (Pacific Repertory School of Dramatic Arts) until

the end of 2017. At this point the Use License Agreement will be issued for 2016 only; therefore, the

commission will want to amend the recommendation to reflect the terms of the use license agreement,

should it vote to send a recommendation to council to grant exclusive use of the lndoor Theater to

PacRep.

Staff recommends the following actions with regard to the shared use of the indoor Forest Theater:

1. That the CA&CC recommends to the City Council that it authorizes shared use of the indoor

theater between Forest Theater Guild and PacRep during 2016

2. And that the City Council direct pacRep to fully cooperate with the Centennial Committee to

provide all requested access to the indoor Forest Theater during the Centennial Celebration

week, and support the Centennial Committee efforts

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1: Correspondence included in the City Council packet regarding shared use of the Forest

Theater
Attachment 2: Additional correspondence regarding shared use of the Forest Theater

IP



4-f-rn chur uT \

Ashlee W

From:
Sent:
To:

Subject:

April 1,2016

Carmel City Council

PO Box CC

Carmel-by-the-Sea, C A 93921

Stacy Meheen < meheens@gmail.com>

Friday, April 0L, 20L6 L2:50 PM

Ashlee Wright; Victoria Beach; dallasforcarmel@gmail,com; Carrie Theis; Ken Talmage

Counci l; Jason @BurnettforCa rmel.com; Chip Rerig

Letter of Support for Indoor Theater to be open to Community for Monday April 5th

meeting

City of Ca rmel-bY-the-Sea

APR O S 2O16

Received bY CitY Clerk

Re: Indoor Forest Theater consideration

Dear Mayor Burnett, City Manager, and City Council Members,

i am writing this letter to voice support for a recommendation by city staff to make the Indoor Theater

available to other user groups. There is a misconception that by opening this space to be available to other user

groups, that the current user group, PacRep's School of Dramatic Arts (SODA), will have to close its
doors. SODA ran successfully for years at the Golden Bough before it was granted exclusive use of the indoor
theater, and it aiso ran successfrrlly and uninterrupted rvhen the Outdoor Theater closed two years ago. The idea

that by sharing the space, this program would cease to exist is merely a scare tactic. The Indoor Theater has the

potential to be a huge asset to our community, and I encourage you to consider all possibilities that open up to

our community by sharing the space.

Many user groups in and around the Peninsula share spaces. I, myself, teach an After School Enrichment
Voice Class and an After School Drama Class at Carmel River School, and I also teach a drama program at the
YMCA in Monterey. I have to share my space with other teachers and the facilities. I have to bring in my props,

sets, music books, and costumes for each class, and it is ali very manageable. It is not impossible to share a

community space. But opening up the Indoor Thsater to other user groups gives the community another way to
showcase small groups, There are many groups in town, including The Carmel Chamber of Commerce, The Red

Cross, Sustainable Carmel, The Forest Theater Guild, The Carmel Art Association, just to name a few, that could
benefit from having a small group space for presentations and classes. We also have many local artists, novelists,
and historians that would love a venue to give talks. This is a chance for the City Council to share the value of
the Indoor Theater with the community. There is no reason to continue to make the Indoor Theater exclusive
use. We can, and should, all share. I have heard arguments from supporters of SODA that they would be unable

& t2-



to secure their belongings if they had to share the space. This is simply not true. They do have belongings, such

as a fridge and copiei in-the ,put., because they wire allowed exclusive use prior to the theater closing. But this

does noimean that moving forward, they can't find ways to secure their things, in much the same way I have to

secure my things for my classes.

I urge you to look at the overwhelming positives of opening up the Indoor Theater for use by community

groups" W; can all share, and we shouid not be strong-armed by one user group not wanting to play nice in a

fommunity sand box. The entire Theater - both the indoor and outdoor - belongs to the city, to our

community, Let's keeP it that way.

Thank you for your consideration,

Stacy Meheen

t3



From;
Sent:
lo:
Cc:

Subject:

Thank you Laura for writing.

Jason K. Burnett
831.238,0009
j ason.bumett@gmail.cqm

B4C <jason.bu rnett@g ma il.com >

Friday, April 01", 2016 2:50 PM

Laura Lasnik

Steve Dallas; Victoria Beach; Carrie Theis; Ken Talmage Council; chipcarmel@gmail.com;

Ashlee Wright
Re: indoor Forest Theater

on Apr l,2016, at2:46 PM, Laura tasnik <lalasnik@gmail.com> wrote:

I want my voice to make a difference on a Carmel City Council discussion and decision for the

small theater. By opening up the space to rhe community, it would allow other smalt groups a place to hold meetings,

have small lectures, book talkI, art discussions, and it would allow other groups to also teach classes' There is a

nrisconception that by opening up the venue to other user groups that SODA would be eliminated' That is not the case'

In the three years SoDA had exclusive use, they made the life of the Guild miserable by not allowing our actOrs use of the

lower deck to warm up. They would schedule ciasses and events on top of our rehearsals and shows, and it made life very

uncomfortable at the theater ior Guild participants. We did our best to ignore the problem, but at times, it was

unbearable. At a recent Commission meeting, a Commissioner erroneously spoke about this, stating that the Sroups

ul*ay, got along and worked together. There is atso a large pergentage ofpeople that don't even realize thete are multiple

users at the Forest Theater. people come to see a movie oi a play without giving much thought to what_theater company is

there. pacRep has a strong pr.*.n"" in the community, but they aren't the only theater group in town. Our voice may be

small, but it is mighty, and it is passionate about our community'

Thank you,
Laura Lasnik

Laura Lasnik,CALBRE# 01132625
David Lyng Real Estate
Lincoln between Ocean & 7th
Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA 93921
Ambassador to the Carmel Chamber of Commerce

(8s1) 419-4035
lalasnik@gmail.com
La u raCa rmel BYTheSea' com
r=--1llxl ilttl q:l+'

r$



From:
Sent:
To:

Todd Weaver <todd@m2n'com >

Friday, APril 0L, 2016 3:03 PM

Victoria Beach; steve Dallas; Carrie Theis; Ken Talmage council;

Jason @ BurnettforCarmel'com; chipcarmel @g mail'com

Ashlee Wright
Indoor Theater for the CommunitY

Cc:

Subject:

Council,

r am writing, as a board memberof the ForestTheater Guird, a proud carmercommunrty member, and from a family

who enjoYs the arts.

lt is my Strong opinion, and pragmatic ethical duty, to allow the indoor theater to be utilized by the community, This

indoor space must be available for use by groups it.|r, *.n, to use it. (l for one would utilize the space to conduct

auditions for a community theater pray r wrote and hope to perform in the 2017 season, l arso know of many others who

wouldutilizethespacethroughouttheyearthatwouldbenefitourcommunity)

At the last council meeting there seemed to be a lot of discussion about the complexities of offering this space to the

community,orwhattodoaboutthecopierandothersuchtrivialoff-topicthings'

The FrRsr topic is tF the indoor space shourd be used as a community space. Nothing more untir that is voted on'

lF the answer is YES (as it SHoULD BE), then we work out the details to allow the community to use the space.

lF the answer is NO, then the status quo stays'

so I ask you to FIRST decide if this space is a community space, or an exclusive space' which one?

since the rogicarchoice is it is a community space, and r wourd hope your vote would agree unanimously, THEN we move

on to the detairs, of which group gets to use i, ,t *h.t time and duration each year. But r want to make it clear that the

FIRST question must be answered before moving on to the details of how to implement'

Thanks for listeningl

Todd Weaver

t$

T



From:
Sent:
lo:

Cc:

Subject:

Todd Weaver <todd@m2n'com >

Friday, April 01, 2016 3:10 PM

Victoiia Beach; Steve Dallas; Carrie Theis; Ken Talmage Council;

Jason @BurnettforCarmel'com, chipcarmel@g mail com

Ashlee Wright
Re: Indoor Theater for the Community

As a follow-up, and rebuttal to the "Fight for soDA" message, I would Suggest using this quote "share the lndoor

Theater"

soDA can and sHoULD have access to the theater. Just like allcommunity groups'

It is about SHARING the community space'

So when you hear ,,Fight for soDA" or other such language, which is twisting a message to make it sound as thouBh any

opposition to exclusivity means SODA cannot use the space'

ThegoalistohavethespaceusablebyALLthecommunity,includingsoDA.

A nice peaceful resolution.

Thanks again for listening!

Todd Weaver

> On Apr 1,2016, at 3:03 PM, Todd Weaver <todd@m2n'com> wrote:

> Council,

> I am writing, as a board member of the Forest Theater Guild, a proud Carmel community member, and from a family

who enjoys the arts.

> lt is my strong opinion, and pragmatic ethical duty, to allow the indoor theater to be utilized by the community' This

indoor space must be available for use by groups that want to use it. (l for one would utilize the space to conduct

auditions for a community theater play I wrote and hope to perform in the 2017 season, I also know of many others who

would utilize the space throughout the year that would benefit our community)

> At the last council meeting there seemed to be a lot of discussion about the complexities of offering this space to the

community, or what to do about the copier and other such trivial off-topic things.

> The FIRST topic is lF the indoor space should be used as a community space. Nothing more until that is voted on'

> IF the answer is yES (as it sHouLD BE), then we work out the details to allow the community to use the space.

> tF the answer is NO, then the status quo stays.

> So t ask you to FIRST decide if this space is a community space, or an exclusive space. Which one?

tb



> Since the logical choice is it is a community space, and I would hope your vote would agree unanimously' THEN we

move on to the detairs, of which group gets to use it at what time and duration each year. But I want to make it clear

that the FIRsT question must be answered before moving on to the details of how to implement'

> Thanks for listeningl

> Todd Weaver

,fr l-7



From:
Sent:
To:

Subject:

RB@gmail < roeyabanuazizi@gmail.com>

Friday, April 01, 2016 3:37 PM

J ason @ Bu rnettforCa rmel.co m; Ashlee Wrig ht; Victoria Beach;

dallasforcarmel@gmail.com; Carrie Theis; Ken Ialmage Council;chipcarmel@gmail'com

Indoor Theater for the CommunitY

To Whom lt MaY Concern:

please consider the lndoor Theater to be regarded as a community space for all. Allowing only one user/group to have

full excluslve rights to the indoor theater limits the community. lt is possible to share this space which would benefit the

needs of the manY.

Thank you for Your time,

Roeya Banuazizi

roeyabanuazizi@gma il'com

r$



From:
Sent;

To:
Subject:

Ben Jonas < benjonas@gmail.com>

Friday, April 01, 2016 5:02 PM

Ashlee Wright
Use of the Indoor Theater at the Forest fheater

Dear City Council Members

It'sreallyexcitingtohearthatyouareconsideringopeningtheindoorportionoftheForestTheatertothe
community at large. The Forest Theater was created to serve the carmel community' lt was built for the community - a

group of people living in the same place connected by common feelings and beliefs" That is its history' lt is, therefore'

ridiculous that any member of the carmel community would fight against opening the indoor theater to everyone

because they,d be able to use the facility just like any other membei of the community. why exclude your neighbors and

community members from taking advantage of such a wonderful amenity? Community is about more than increased

revenues.
The Forest Theater is idealfor community, amateur performances and shows because lt's small and without

many of the amenities that a professional theater has' And that's oK' A place for community members to perform and

share their art distinguishes the ForestTheater in a wonderful way' Not all art needs to made on high'

Also, I would request that City Council clear the air a bit. There's a Sreat dealof confusion regarding who

operates the Forest Theater. one group or production company does not solely own nor operate the Forest Theater' lt's

used by community members and is owned by the City' Please affirm that'

opening the indoor theater of the Forest Theater to the community as a whole is a wonderful idea' Thank you'

Doing so will encourage community participation, bring people closer to their neighbors and increase civic pride (and we

could use some more of all that).

Thank you for Your consideration,

Benjamin Jonas

1q

r



From:
Sent;
To:

Subject:

RoCo Schmidt <rocoschmidt@gmail'com>

Friday, April 01, 2016 3:56 PM

Ashlee Wright; Victoria Beach; dallasforcarmel@gmail.com; Carrie Theis; Ken Talmage

Council; Jason@ BurnettforCarmel.com; chipcarmel@g mail.com

Indoor Theater = Community Space

Dear City Council,

please consider the indoor theater space to be used by and for the community. Granting one user group exclusivity

limits the community and is counter-productive. Please chose to share the indoor theater.

Many thanks,

The Schmidt FamilY

rocoschmidt@gmail.com

w ;LP



From:
Sent:
To;
Cc:

Subject:

Stacy Meheen < meheens@gmail com>

Saturday, APril 02, 201-6 7:15 PM

Stephen Moorer
Ashlee wrighu Victoria Beach; victoria Beach council; Steve Dallas; carrie Theis; chip

Rerig; Jason Burnett, Ken Talmage Council; klglegal@hotmail,com; chip Rerig; janet

Bombard
illegal propaganda for Indoor Forest Theater

Helio Stephen,
As you are aware,my daughter is a cast member in Alice in wonderland for PacRep's soDA production that

opened last night. Although I am connected to the Forest Theater Guild, I am passionate about the arts' and my

family supports ail theateri and dramatic programs, because i strongly berieveln the value and importance of

dramatic arts. I bring my voice students to yJur productions to inspire them by watching musical theater, my

daughter participates'i, yru, soDA productions, and i am a regular patron to as many shows as I can make

time to see. But you, Sir, have crossed the line with your 
"u...nt 

method for drumming up support for your

fosition regarding the Indoor Theater, and i will ,ot stand for it'

This morning, you sent a wonderful congratulatory email to the cast (the email is listed below) in which you

chose to use a moment that shouid have been a sincere congratulations to a cast for a job well done to fuither

advance your message about the Indoor rtieuter, i especiafy love your line from Alice, "curiouser and

crriouser,,, since, although my daughter is in the cast, my email address was conveniently left off this email to

all parents. you twisted-youiposition to influence the parents of this production' and that in itself is

wrong. But what REALLY has me fired up is what jusi happened whln I dropped my daughter off tonight for

the evening show.

As I was getting her in her costume, a cast member was running around, gathering other child actors' He came

to Karen, and told her she was "needed" outside, He said she wasn't in trouble, but that she needed to go

outside. I assumed it was a cute, inside-cast kind of thing, so I let her go' She was gone about ten minutes, and

when she came back, she was visibly upset. I asked her what was wfong, and she said that the city is closing

the SODA program, and the kids were making videos to talk about why it should be saved' SHE'S EIGHT

YEARS OLDI!lll Number one, you have NO RIGHT to use MY CHILD, or ANY CHILD in your

propaganda. You DID NOT HAVE MY PERMISSION to use my daughter in a propaganda video' and 1 can

guarantee since I was there and witnessed everything that No_PARENT was asked for permission' I

immediately took Karen outside and confrontrd th*-rtud.nts, but I know they didn't come up with this idea on

their own. I also spoke to your stage manager'

you should be ashamed of yourseif. I get that you are a business man and you want your theater to continue to

be successful. But if my daughter, or any of theie children show up in a video that goes before the council on

Monday, I will be contacting legal counsel. Leave the children out of this. It has nothing to with them'

I am most disappointed for my daughter. She loves any opportunity to perform, and seeing her face after she

was coerced into making a video uasea on half-truths juit *ik.r me sad. she didn't deserve to be pulled into

this fight. And it never had to be a fight in the first place'

-Stacy Meheen

*;!f ) I



From : Stephen Moorer <Ernalpx@aSl-com>

Date: April2,2Arc at-l 40 57 AM PDT
To: Michele Swanston <swanstom@qmail.con>
Cc: Regan Mornhinweg <rnornhinweg6@gmail.com>, Akashal Brown

<akashEustice@qmai >, Seth Bates <84h.bu[$@sJ$.efu>, Nick Mireles
<mirjn3 8@email.com>, mirelesamber@hotmail.qom , Barbata Utter <hlb-gttet@y3ho,q.c.orn>,

Barrett Heywood <Bheyvvood66@yahoo. , an-drew.mansour@santacatalina.org, Lydia

Mansour <lydsa!d4@@at-t.c-s!s>, laurer Mansour <loliyowl€tl3@gma >, Stephanie Ottone

<9ttsrc@pqqbeli4g!>, JessicaDiMarco<jessmdimarco@ema >,wendymore
<wenmoreg5@hotmail. com>, eugeneplatypi@gmail' com, A Swanston
<audrepickle@gmail.com?, Bryan Swanston <bBswe4gl@g!04i1.ca!1>, "Bailey BREWER
(Chri stin e B e l lec i) " <b46![a41]@!.tt4g!>, " h ilarylefQrt@yahoo, com "
<hilarvlefort@yahoo. , Alicia Brent-Nurse <alicia.brentnurse@gmail.com>, Sandra McGuire
<$I-dl4lusg@C44iLsgm>, "mcasianl 1@aol.com" <!spasign-L-L@-ao,ko!0>, Gina Michaels
<gcmichae@gmail.com>, Robyn Sorenson <rbnsorenson@qmail. , Kimberly DiFranco
<di&ancoentertain >, Kathryn Baldwin <ka!yl-Q.b@gmal.!-eem>, Angela Roach
<angandbaby@hormail , abraham wolfinger <abrahamwolfinger@gmail.com>, lisa levy
<lisalevy3T?8@ema >, "bjbworld@.aol.com" (bj-btvQrld@Ao-l.gqnq), Michelle Balco
<sistershell5I72903@gmail.com>, Anni Willford <anniwillford@enaiI >,

"victoria.bunch@sbcslobal.net" <victoria.bunch@sb , Suzanne Wheeler
<wheelersuz@icloud.com>, Lisa Derian-Macaluso <lisaderian@me.com>, Elizabeth Nozicka
<lsl$-fish@yaboo.-94!t>, Christina Holdridge
<christinaholdridge@gmail,com>, lauren,mansour@santacatalina,org, catherine broz
<brqzs4!@bagnBlLgsm>, Jennifer Berry and Rodney Smith
<benvsmith@comcast.net>, ldbunch@sbcqlobal.net, "lv4addie MIZGORSKI(BRENDA)"
<brenda.mizgorski >, mmizEorski@.haywardlumber.com, Melissa Ackerman
<Ec.!gak€r@Cmail-99!0>, " anselajhart@comcast. net"
<angelalhart@comcast , goldensilverrose@gmail.lom, "amybgoodson@aol.com"
<amJbgeAbqg@aS.Le-am>, Chris Evans <pgpgeple@yahQ-q.gorn>, Michelle Evans
<meg4;@pgggd.o1g>,Lyla Englehorn <lylaenglehorn@gmail.com>, Megan Felthoven
<rap98a{os@Crrlajlspm>, gulyacordier@vahoo.corn, Jennifer Nix <lqrullxl2@.8$ell'cgnl>,

Ferrell Daste <ferrelJdaqte@Cmeil.cqls>, Molly Daste <mollydaste@gmail. , Heather
Burrtshce.ll <skyeb 12216B:mailspm>, Arnie Burttschell <amieburttschellfA.Bma >, Maxine
Carlson <mcarlson@calstateteach.net>, "mpratt@st vensonschool.org"
<mpran@stevensonschool.org>, Sprattl 9@stevensonschool.org, Tara Mann
<taramann23@gmai , Tara MANN <kkushel@ismonterey.org>, Quinci Teagan Walker
Cox <mindlrfaia@mac.com>, Jason Mehringer @, Cristy Mehringer
<cmehringer@gmail. , "Bassanello, Alessandra B" <workbass@hotmail,com>, Tess

Franscioni <tcfstar@smail.com>, Julie HUCHETT <jUlcprt@AsllsE>, Cindy Womack
<boxofficeprt@gmail.com>, Joanna Hobbs <jlsbbsE0@Afiueil-ssm>, Patrick McEvoy
<stukamcevov I2 I 9@yahoo.com>, Susan McKendry <mckendry.s.m@email.com>, Ziona Goren
<ziona.p.oren@gmail-com>, rosenrr@prodig)i.net, tilfany torrez <tiffanytorrez@yahoo.com>,

Mark ENGLEHORN <mengl ehorn@yahoo.
Subject: Re: Alire, and SoDA needs your help.

Congratulations everyonel How much fun was that?l?l Awesome work.

I posted a bunch ofphoros to Facebook last night, please enjoy, tag and sharel I will continue to
take shots ofboth casts through the run!

On a more serious note. I need your heb. SoDa needs your help. I need people - parents and kids
- to come to the Carmel City Council meeting this Monday April 4, from around 6pm-7:3Opm to
speak in support of PacRep's SoDA program. These meetings can be boring so bring a book,
laptop, or homework. The meeting actually starts at 5:30, but the first half-hour or so is usually
just reports.

The trad news: the city is contemplating restricting our use of the Forest Theater or evicting our
school for large chunks of the year, including the summer months of June and July when we have
our summer campsl We have a successful year-round school. We need the city to leave it as it isl

,k,ry



They are also tooking at making the srnall school area a "shared multi-user facility", even though

it's really just one continuous room with no lockable classrooms. It would need a major remodel to

make sharing possible and safe.

Sharing facilities is a worthy goal, of course, but the little indoor Forest Theater was not designed

for subletting, and would not be safe for our children, or our belongings, if strangers were allowed

access while the school is in residence there. And having to move out all our belongings every

summer would be completely unfair on our small overworked staff and volunteers,

if ws don't have a large tum-out, we could lose SoDa's year-round home, or see it gr€atly cut-
back. Please come ifyou can, and speak in support ofour school!

Ifyou can attend. please let me know by emaiJ or call me at 831-238-0941.

Thanks in advance for any help you can give,

Curiouser and curiouser,

Stephen Moorer

l+
27



From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Jason Burnett <jason.burnett@gmail.com >

Saturday, April 02, 201,6 7:34 pM

Stacy Meheen; Stephen Moorer
Ashlee Wright; Victoria Beach; Victoria Beach Council; Steve Dallas; Carrie Thejs; Chip
Rerig; Jason Burnett; Ken Talmage Council; klglegal@hotmail.com; Chip Rerig; Janet
Bombard
Re: Illegal propaganda for Indoor Forest Theater

Stacy,
I would suggest you bring this to the altention of the PacRep board. Please let me know if you need an
introduction"

Jason

on sat, Apr 2,2016 at 7: I 5 PM stacy Meheen <mehejns@smail.com) wrote:
Hello Stephen,
As you ate aware, my daughter is a cast member in Alice in wonderland for PacRep,s soDA production that

opened last night. Although I am connected to the Forest Theater Guild, I am passionate about the afts, and
my family supports all theaters and dramatic programs, because I strongly beHlve in the value and importance
of dramatic arts. I bring my voice students to your productions to inspire them by wa;hin; m*i.uiirr.ut.r,
my daughter participates in your soDA productioni, and I u* u.egriu, patron to as many shows as I can make
time to see. But you, sir, have crossed the Iine with your current method for drumming rp ,uppo.t for yourposition regarding the Indoor Theater, and I will not stand for it,

This morning, you sent a wonderful congratulatory email to the cast (the email is listed beiow) in which you
chose to use a moment that should have been a sincere congratulations to a cast for a job well done to fur1her
advance your message about the Indoor Theater. I especially love your line liom Alice, ,,Curiouser 

and
curiouser", since, although my daughter is in the cast, my email address was conveniently left off this email toall parents' You twisted your position to influence the parents of this production, and that in itself iswrong' But what REALLY has me fired up is what jusi happened when I dropped my daughter offtonight forthe evening show.

As I was getting her in her costume, a cast member was running around, gathering other child actors. He
came to Karen, and told her she was "needed" outside. He said rh" *u*nitln trouble, but that she needed to gooutside' i assumed it was a cute, inside-cast kind of thing, so I let her go. she was gone about ten minutes,
and when she came back, she was visibly upset. I asked iler what wasinong, and ste said tirat ttre city isclosing the SODA program, and the kids were making videos to talk about riiry it should be saved. SHE,SEIGHT YEARS oLD!!INumber one, you have No RIGHT to use MY CHiLD, or ANy CHILD in yourpropaganda. You DID Nor HAVE My PERMISSION to use my daughte, ir;;;;;s;;, ,i;; una r .*guarantee since I was there and witnessed everlthing that No PAilENf *u, ast<eo flrlermission. Iimrnediately took Karen outside and confronted the itudents, but I know ttrey Jianl come up with this idea ontheir own. I also spoke to your stage manager.

You should be ashamed of yourself. I get that you are a business man and you want your theater to continueto be successful' But if my daughter, or any of these children show up in a video that goes before the councilon Monday, I will be contacting legal counsel. Leave the children oui of this. It has nothing to with them.



I am most disappointed for my daughter. She loves any opportunity to perform, and seeing her face after she
was coerced into making a video based on half-truths just makes me sad. She didn't deserve to be pulled into
this fight. And it never had to be a frght in the first place.

-Stacy Meheen

From : Stephen Moorer <gmaIpI@AoLlAm>
Date: April 2,2016 at7:40:57 AM pDT
To ; Michele Swanston <EyA!$em@gm_aj.Lgam>
Cc : Regan Momhinweg <m ornirinweg6@smail ffi >, Akashal Brown
<akashaJustice@gma,SerhBates<seth.bates@sjsu.edu>,NickMireles
<mirjn38(@gmail.com>, Firelesamber@hotmail.qoryr, Barbara Utter <barb utter@yahoo,com>,
Barrett Hervood <Bheywood66@yahoo. r, *dr.*.*rrrou.@,runtu.utulinaiE_ Lydia- 

'

Mansour <lyds4!rd4@.gmail.com>, lawen Mansour <lollyowletl3@gmail.com>, stephinie
ouone <ottone@pacbell.net>, Jessica DiMarco <.ressmaimarco@ >, wendy more
<wenmore95@hotmail.eom>, eqgeneplarypi@gmail.com, A Swanston
<eudrspigkls@gpailrcm>, Bryan Swanston <bpfllgnst@grngjl49m>, ,,Bailey BREWER
(Christine Belleci) " <b3pmom i3@att.ne!>,,,hilar.ylefoft@yahoo,qom,'
<hilaryiefort@yahoo. , Alicia Brent-Nurse <alicia.urentnurs >, sandra
McGuire <candra&eg@gnarLcom>, "mcasian1I@aor.com" <mcaiiin1I@aol.com>, Gina
M.ichaels <eQaichae@gmaii.com>, Robyn Sorenson <rbnsqellq!@g*ail.csm>gimberly
DiFranco <difrancoentenainm >, Katkyn Baldwin.t4y:_A.b@@ilae4r,
Angela Roach <angandbaby@hotmai , abraham wolfinger<abrahamwolfllnge >, risa revy <lisalevy177g@g >, "bibworld@aol.cor.n,,
<bjhrvsdd@AQka4>, Michelle Balco <gistershellS >, Anni Willford<anniwillfqrd@gma , "victoria.bunch@sbcglobal.neti <victoria.bunch@sbcglobal.net>,
Suzanne Wheeler <wheelersuz@icloud.com>, Lisa Derian-Macaluso .tiiaOerian@me.corul
El izab eth Nozicka <iStUCfuh@lralAS.g@>, Cfu.i stina Ho I dr i dge
<ghtuqnatloldridge@gmail.colx>, lauren.mansour@santacataiina.org, catherine broz
<brszgat@hslmgjl,gg!s>, Jennifer Berry and Rodney Smith
<bqrrysmith@comcas >, tdbunch@sbcelobaLnet. ',Maddie MIZGORSKI(BRENDA),,
<brenda.mizgorski@mizweb. com>, mmizgorski@haywardlumber.com, Melissa Ackerman
<melacker@gmai l.com>, " an gelajhart@comcast. net,,
<gnselajhart@comcas >, goldensiivenose@gmail.gom, "arnybgoodson@aol.com,'
<esJbCeadgon@epllAg>, Chris Evans <pgp.sspL9@y4troo.ce.xo>, Mi.hellJ pr*s
<mevans@peusd,org>,LyiaEnglehorn<lylaenglehonr@ema >,MeganFelthoven
<meesanns@gmail.com>, guUAaqdlC-r@yahoo.com, Jennifer Nix <tqUiX-12@g!Sed=SA$>,
Ferrell Daste <&Ile.[dq$g@gma]Is9xg>, Molly Daste <mollydaste@s;;ilffi .

Burttshcell <S!fCbl221@gmgt]4ql0>, Arnie Burnschell .an i.Uu.tts. >, Maxine
carlson <mcarlson@calsta!@>, "mpratt@srevensonschoor.ort-
<mprau@stevensonschool.org>, spranr 9@stevensonschool.ors, Tara Mann
<tarauaru23@e![grl.caIE>,Tara MANN <kkushel@ismontere-y.org>, euinci reagan walker
cox <mhdyfaia@mag.com>, Jason Mehringer .iasgarr@rh.erob ,nai, cristy ilehringer
<cmehringer@gmail.com), "Bassanello, Alessandra B,,<workbass@hotmaibb, Tess
Fran s c ion i <tc $!ar@eualeom>, J u I i e HUGHETT <g1irg@AL!rmr, Cindy Womack
<boxofficeprt@gmad.qm>, JoannaHobUr*ittoUbs8b@J-,;t*ail patrickMcEvoy
<sfukamcevoLl219@yahoo.com>, Susan McKendry <mckendry.s,m@gmail.com >, Ziona Coren
<34uaSOfea@SmeileOm>, rosenrr@prodi gy.net, tiffany ro...r@r,
MarkENGLEHORN<meuglehom@yahoo. >
Subject: Re: Alice, and SoDA needs your help.

Congratulations everyone! How much fun was that?r.?r. Awesome work.

I posted a bunch ofphotos to Facebook last night, please enjoy, tag and sharel I will continue to
take shots ofboth casts through the runl

O, 
" 
*o.....t"rr , l need people _ parents and kjds' to come to the Carmel city council meeting this Monday apiit +, tlomaround 6pm-?:30pm to

25



speak in support of PacRep's SoDA program. These meetings can be boring so bring a book,

laptop, or homework. The meeting actually starts at 5:30, but the first half-hour or so is usually
just reports.

The bad news: the city is contemplating restricting our use of the Forest Theater or evicting our

school for large chunks of the year, including the summer months of June and July when we have

our summer campsl We have a successful year-round school, We need the city to leave it as it is!

They are also looking at making the small school area a "shared multi-user facility", even though
it's really just one continuous room with no lsckable classrooms. It would need a major remodel
to make sharing possible and safe.

Sharing facilities is a worthy goal, of course, but the little indoor Forest Theater was not designed

for subletting, and would not be safe for our children, or our belongings, if sfrangers were
allowed access while the school is in residence there. And having to move out all our belongings
every summer would be completely unfair on our smail overworked staff and volunteers,

If we don't have a large turn-out, we could lose SoDa's year-round home, or see it greatly cut-
back, Please come ifyou can, and speak in support ofour school!

If you can attend. please Iet me know bv email or call me at 83 1-238-094 l.

Thanks in advance for any help you can give,

Curiouser and curiouser,

Stephen Moorer

LV



Ashlee Wri

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Stacy,

Please get a grip, wav did I as

Stephen Moorer < smatPrt@aol.com >

Saturday, April 02, 2016 8:27 PM

Stacy Meheen
Ashiee Wright; Victoria Beach; Victoria Beach Council; Steve Dallas; Carrie Theis; Chip

Rerig; Jason Burnett; Ken Talmage Council; klglegal@hotmail.com; Chip Rerig; Janet

Bombard
Re: Illegal propaganda for Indoor Forest Theater

I havents to make

checkeJ and yes, the kids got together and made a group video. You know what I say to that? Good for them.

But I didnt ,it for it, didft agange it, and cenainly wouldn't show it at a City Councii meeting. But I'm not

going to condenm the kids for making it'

And I have never said that the city was ''closing SoDA". That's not even possible. You need to think through

this more "l;.rly 
and get your head out of the gossip bucket. Maybe you should read my email, It's correct. And

of course I didn't send it to you. Why would I ask you for help to fight you and your board?

So let's be clear, the c evictin

time that the outdoor theater is rented. And you and your board are actively pushing for it'

Stacy, before the cultural commission meeting, both my board chairperson and myself tried to reach out to
yvonne and you, but the two of you refused to meet, and Yvonne saying it was a board matter and she couldn't

comment. Then, after the cuitural commission meeting, Yvonne said that she was ietting it drop and would

maybe do a class at the Youth Center. Two weeks later, however, and you and your board are at it again. You

pushed for this controversy, and now you won't let it drop, so let's stop fooling ourselves.

Yes, I have DEFINITELY asked Board members, teachers, parents and FORMER students to either come to the

council meeting and speak in support of SoDA, or send an email, iust as )rou ltrve board members and others

doing the same thing. Just so you know, your letter writers are misstating information and misleading city staff

and council members, but they are only operating on the limited information that you have given to them'

Now Stacy, I will say that more than one person has commented that you are using your position as a member

of the city cultural commission to furlher your own agenda as president of the Forest Theater Guild, You have

discussed the situation out of the public view with Janet Bombard, and I can only assume that she is getting

mueh of her information about PacRep and the Colden Bough from you, Now you are throwing around

accusations that have no basis in reality, and making threats. You need to step back and do some fact checking.

I have talked to NO children. None.
I emailed the parents (and stand by the facts stated in the email), and I have conversed with a handful of them.

Exactly as you have done. That's it.

Stephen

Sent from my feline's iToy cuz..,

E,T



"Jellicle cats love Jellicle phones" E

On Apr 2,2016, at7',15 PM, Stacy Meheen <rneheens@gmail'co wrote:

Hello Stephen,
As you are aware, my daughter is a cast member in Alice in Wonderland for PacRep's SODA

production that opened last night. Although I am connected to the Forest Theater Guild, I am

passionate about ihe arts, and my family suppofts all theaters and dramatic programs, because I

itrongly believe in the value and importance of dramatic arts. I bring my voice students to your

productions to inspire them by watching musical theater, my daughter participates in your SODA

productions, and I am aregular patron to as many shows as I can make time to see. But you, sir,

[,uu. 
"ror."d 

the line with your current method for drumming up support for your position

regarding the Indoor Theater, and I will not stand for it.

This morning, you sent a wonderful congratuiatory email to the cast (the email is listed below)

in which you chose to use a moment that should have been a sincere congratulations to a cast for

a job well done to further advance your message about the Indoor Theater. I especially Iove your

line from Alice, "Curiouser and curiouser", since, although my daughter is in the cast, my email

address was conveniently left off this email to all parents. You twisted your position to influence

the parents of this production, and that in itself is wrong. But what REALLY has me fired up is

what just happened when I dropped my daughter off tonight for the evening show.

As I was getting her in her costume, a cast member was running around, gathering other child

actors. He came to Karen, and told her she was "needed" outside. He said she wasn't in trouble,

but that she needed to go outside. I assumed it was a cute, inside-cast kind of thing, so I let her

go. She was gone about ten minutes, and when she came back, she was visibly upset. I asked

her what was w:rong, and she said that the city is closing the SODA program, and the kids were

making videos to talk about why it should be saved. SHE'S EIGHT YEARS OLDlll!! Number

one, you have NO RIGHT to use MY CHILD, or ANY CHILD in your propaganda. You DID
NOT HAVE MY PERMISSION to use my daughter in a propaganda video, and I can guarantee

since I was there and witnessed every.thing that NO PAR-ENT was asked for permission. i
immediately took Karen outside and confronted the sfudents, but I know they didn't come up

with this idea on their own. I also spoke to your stage manager.

You should be ashamed of yourself. I get that you are a business man and you want your
theater to continue to be successful, But if my daughter, or any of these children show up in a
video that goes before the council on Monday, I will be contacting legal counsel, Leave the

children out of this. It has nothing to with them.

I am most disappointed for my daughter. She ioves any opportunity to perform, and seeing her
face after she was coerced into making a video based on half-truths just makes me sad. She

didn't deserve to be pulled into this fight. And it never had to be a fight in the first place,

-Stacy Meheen

Fro m: Stephen Moorer <emA1prt@gpl_aslp>

Datcr April 2,2A16 at7:44:57 AM PDT
To : M ichele Swanston <Elryan$Sm@gmail. ca&>
Cc; Regan Mornhinweg <mornhinweg6@,gmail.com>, Akashal Brown
<akasha_iustice@sma >, SethBates <teIL,balg;@dSu.edg>, Nick Mireles

z$



<mirjn3 8@gmail.com>, mirelesamber@.hotmail.com, Barbara Ulter
<barb-utter@yahoo. com>, B arrett Heywood
<Bheywood66@yahoo,com>, andrew.mansour@santaoatalina.org, Lydia
Mansour<lydsand4@gmail.com>,laurenMansour<lollvowletl3@gma,
Stephan ie Otton e <o!!one,@pe-qb-glL!91>, J ess i ca DiM arco
<jessmdimarco@sma >, wendy more
<wenmoreg 5 @hotmail.com>, eugeneplar-vpi@gmail'com, A Swanston
<audrepi cki e@ gmail. co m>, B ryan S wanston <bpcwa6t-@g!0ailsarX>, " B ai ley

B REWER (Christine B e I I ec i) " <b4Y5-![o![ ],3@4tt.&EI>,

"hilaryiefor-t@yahoo.com" <hilarylefort@yahoo., AliciaBrent-Nurse
<alicia.brentnurse@gmail.com>, Sandra McGuire <iandratmcg@smail.c'
"mcasianl i @aol.com" <mcasianl l@ao1.com>, Gina Michaels
<scmichae@gmail.com>,RobynSorenson<rbnsorensou@gmail,
Kimberiy DiFranco <difrancoentertainm , Kathryn Baldwin
<katy 1 0. b@gmail. com>, Angela Roach <a@>, abrah am

wolfinger <abrahamwolfi nger@gmail.com>, lisa levy
<lisalevy3778@gma >, "b-ibworld@aol.com" <bjbwo4-d@aol."gg!0>,

Michelle Baico <sistershell5 1720 >, Anni Willford
<anniwillford@gmail.com>, "victoria.bunch@sbcglobal.net"
<victoria.bunch@sbc , Suzanne Wheeler <wheelersuz@icloud cora>,

Lisa Derian-Macaluso <LiSedexa4@m9.Es![>, Elizabeth Nozicka
<lptuqfish@yabas.e-au>, Christina Holdrid ge

<christinaholdridge@gmail,qom>, lauren.mansour@santacatalina.org, catherine

broz <brozcat@hqtmail.cqm>, Jermifer Berry and Rodney Smith
<berrvsm.ith@somcas!.net>, tdbunch@sbcelobal.net, "Maddie

MtzcoRSKI(BRENDA)"
<brenda.m izgorski@rnizweb. com>, mmizgorski@haywardlumber'com, Melissa
Ackerman <rnelacker@gmai l.com>, "anselajhart@comcast.net"
<angelajhart@comcas >, eoidensiIverrose@8mail.aorn,
"anrybgoodson@aol.conr" <amybgoodson@.aol.com>, Chris Evans
<pgpeopie@yahoo.com>, Michelle Evans <mevans@pgusd.org>, Lyla
Englehorn <i),laenglehorn@g >, Megan Felthoven
<meeganns@gmail com>, gulyacordier@yahoo.com, Jennifer Nix
<jqe8l2@gmej.Lpq0>, Ferrel I Daste <fene I i daste@ gm a i 1. QQm>, M o I ly Daste

<mollydaste@grnail.com), Heather Burttshcell <skyeb I 22 I @gmail.com>,
Arnie Burttschell <arnieburttsqhell@g , Maxine Carlson
<mcarlson @calstateteach.net>, "mpratt@.stevensonschool. org"
<npratt@stevensonschool.org>, Sprattl 9@steYensonschool.orq, Tara Mann
<!Arc!03U23.@.$4aiLASE>, Tara MANN <kkushel@.ismonterey.ors>, Quinci
Teagan Walker Cox < n$dy je@mAS.cgm>, Jason Mehringer
<falaur@Ebqlabal!91>, Cristy Mehringer <cmehringer@smaii.qom>,
"Bassanello, Alessandra B' <workbass@hotmail. , Tess Franscioni
<!a&1ar@g$arLse!0>, J ul i e HUG I{ETT <juljeBrt@aa! a,s-!t>, C indy Womack
<boxoffi ceprt@gmail.com>, Joanna Hobbs <jhpbbs80@hotmg[-a-sE>, Patrick
McEvoy <stukamcevoyl2 I 9@yahoo.com>, Susan McKendry
<mckendry,s.m(@gmai l.com>, Ziona Goren
<ztan&ggre!@grnail.agg>, ro senrr@.pro d i g.y, n et, ti ffany tonez
<tiffanltorrez@yaheajom>, Mark ENGLEHORN <menglehorn@yahoo.com>
Subject: Re: Alice, and SoDA needs your help.

Congratulations everyonel How much fun was that?l?! Awesorre work.

I posted a bunch ofphotos lo Facebook last night, please enjoy, tag and sharel I
will continue to take shots of both casts through the runl

On a noore seriqus note. I nee-d your heip. SoDa needs yourhelp. I need people -
parents and kids - to come to the Carmel City Councii meeting this Monday
April 4, from around 6pm-7:3Opm to speak in support of PacRep's SoDA
program. These meetings can be boring so bring a book, Iaptop, or homework.
The meeting actually starts at 5:30, but the first half-hour or so is usually just
reports.

w )l



The bad news: the city is contemplaling restricting our use of the Forest Theater

or evicting our school for large chunks of the year, including the summer
months of June and July when we have our summer campsl We have a

successful year-round school. We need &e city to leave it as it isl

They are also looking at making the small school area a "shared multi-user
faciiity", even though it's really just one continuous room with no lockable
classrooms. It would need a major remodel to make sharing possible and safe.

Sharing facilities is a worthy goal, of course, but the little indoor Forest Theater

was not desigaed for sublefting, and would not be safe for our children, or our
belongings, if strangers were allowed access while the school is in residence

there. And having to move out all our belongings every summer would be

completely unfair on our small overworked staff and volunteers.

If we don't have a large turn-out, we could lose SoDa's year-round home, or see

it greatly cut-back. Please come ifyou can, and speak in support ofour school!

If you can attend. please let mq know by email or call me at 83 I -238-0941.

Thanks in advance for any help you can give,

Curiouser and curiouser,

Stephen Moorer

xb 3c



From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Stacy < meheens@gmail.com >

Saturday, April a2,2016 10:07 PM

Stephen Moorer
Ashlee Wright; Victoria Beach; Victoria Beach Council; Steve Dallas; Carrie Theis; Chip

Rerig; Jason Burnett; Ken Talmage Council; klglegal@hotmail.com; Chip Rerig; Janet

Bombard
Re: Illegal propaganda for lndoor Forest Theater

Stephen,
Thank you for your response. We can agree to disagree on many of your points. I hope the show was successful

tonight, It was ihe first performance of my daughter that I've ever missed. But it's a great show, and I'm sure it

was well-received.
As I said earlier, I may be involved with The Guild, but my loyalty is to the success of all dramatic arts. But my

main focus, the only reason I do anything, is for my family. I recuse myseif from every commission item

involving rheater. I make a poinr of being open and honest about my involvement with the Guild. I also openly

.rr.orr.*g" people to take SODA classes and audition for other theater companies. We ail win when theater

groups work together. I hope someday, we can work together. Life is too short, and this town is too small for

f.tti a.*-u. My email wai written as me, the mom, protecting my daughter. She always comes first.

Have a good night,
Stacy

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 2,2016,at8:26 PM, Stephen Moorer <srndp$@aoLqalq> wrote:

Stacy,

Please get a grip. wav did
whatsoever. I have checked and yes, the kids got together and made a group video. You know

whar I say to that? - Good for them. But I didn't ask for it, didn't alrange it, and certainly

wouldn't show it at a City Council meeting. But I'm not going to condemn the kids for making it.

And I have nevq said that the city was "closing SoDA". That's not even possible. You need to

think through this more clearly and get your head out of the gossip bucket. Maybe you should

read my email. It's correct. And of course I didn't send it to you. Why would I ask you for help to

fight you and your board?

So let's be clear, the. city staff has proposed evicting the Soda program during the summer

seaEon. and any other tiryre that the outdoor thgatqr is rented, And you and your board are

actively pushing for it.

Stacy, before the cultural commission meeting, both my board chairperson and myself tried to

reach out to Yvonne and you, but the two of you refused to meet, and Yvor:ne saying it was a

board matter and she couldn't comment. Then, after the cultural commission meeting, Yvonne

3t



said that she was letting it drop and would maybe do a class at the Youth Center' Tr'vo weeks

later, however, and you- and your board are at it again. You pushed for this controversy, and now

you won't let it drop, so let's stop fooling ourselves.

yes, I have DEFINITELY asked Board mernbers, teachers, parents and FORMER students to

either come to the council meeting and speak in support of SoDA, or send an email, just as you

ins the ing. Just so you know, your letter writers area

-*t-ttrg rnformation and misleading city staff and council members, but they are only

operating on the limited information that you have given to them,

Now Stacy, I will say that more than one person has commented that you are using your position

as a member of the city cultural commission to further your own agenda as president of the

Forest Theater Guild. You have discussed the situation out of the public view with Janet

Bombard, and I can only assume that she is getting much of her information about PacRep and

the Golden Bough from you, Now you are throwing around accusations that have no basis in

reality, and making threats. You need to step back and do some fact checking.

I have talked to NO children. None'

I emailed the parents (and stand by the facts stated in the email), and I have conversed with a

handful of them. Exactiy as you have done. That's it.

Stephen

Sent from my feline's iToy cuz...

"Jellicle cats love Jellicle phones" S

On Apr 2,2016, at7:15 PM, Stacy Meheen <rneheens@smail,qom> wrote:

Hello Stephen,
As you are aware, my daughter is a cast member in Alice in Wonderland for

PacRep's SODA production that opened last night. Although I am connected to

the Forest Theater Guild, I am passionate about the arts, and my family supports

all theaters and dramatic programs, because I strongly believe in the value and

importance of dramatic arts. I bring my voice students to your productions to

inspire them by watching musical theater, my daughter participates in your SODA
productions, and I am a regular patron to as many shows as I can make time to

see. But you, sir, have crossed the line with your current method for drumming
up support for your position regarding the Indoor Theater, and I will not stand for
it.

This moming, you sent a wonderful congratulatory email to the cast (the email is
listed below) in which you chose to use a moment that should have been a sincere

congratulations to a cast for a job well done to further advance your message

about the Indoor Theater. I especially love your line from Alice, "Curiouser and

curiouser", since, although my daughter is in the cast, my email address was

conveniently left off this emaii to ali parents. You twisted your position to
influence the parents of this production, and that in itself is wrong. But what
REALLY has me fired up is what just happened when I dropped my daughter off
tonight for the evening show.

# t'v



As I was getting her in her costurne, a cast member was running around,

gathering o-ther Jtrild actors. He came to Karen, and told her she was "needed"

Iutridr. He said she wasn't in trouble, but that she needed to go outside' I

assumed it was a cute, inside-cast kind of thing, so I let her go' She was gone

about ten minutes, and when she came back, she was visibly upset' I asked her

what was wrong, and she said that the city is closing the SODA program, and the

kids were making videos to talk about why it should be saved. SHE'S EIGHT

YEARS OLDllli! Number one, you have NO RiGHT to use MY CHILD, or

ANY CHILD in your propaganda. You DID NOT HAVE MY PERMISSION to

use my daughterin u propaganaa video, and I can guarantee since I was there and

witnessed everphinglnai NO PARENT was asked for permission. I immediately

took Karen outside and confronted the students, but I know they didn't come up

with this idea on their own. I also spoke to your stage manager'

You should be ashamed of yourself. I get that you ale a business man and you

want your theater to continue to be successful. But if my daughter, or any of
these children show up in a video that goes before the council on Monday, I will
be contacting legal counsei. Leave &e children out of this. It has nothing to with

them.

I am most disappointed for my daughter. She loves any opportunity to perform,

and seeing her faie after she was coerced into making a video based on half-truths

just makei me sad, She didn't deserve to be pulled into this fight. And it never

had to be a fight in the first Place.

-Stacy Meheen

From : Stephen Mooter <smatprt@aol.com>

Date: April 2,2015 at7:4A:51AM PDT
To: Michele Swanston <swanstom@gEail,gqm>

Cc: Regan Momhinweg <mornhinwes6@snail.com>,
Akash aJ Brown <akashaj u stise@gnE!.gam>, S eth B ate s

<seth.bates@sisu,edu>. Nick Mireles
<mirin3B@.gmai I.com>, mireiesamber@hotmail.cqrn, Barbara

Utter <barb-!tt€I@yAho,a-€s,n>, Barrett Heywood
<Bheywood66@yahoo. >, andrew.mansour@santacatalina
.ore, Lydia Mansour <lydsand4@gmail'com>, Iauren Mansour
<iollyowletl 3@gmail.com>, Stephanie Onone
<sttgrs@pgebplltcl>, Jessica DiMarco
<jessmdimarco@gma , wendY more
<wenmoreg5@hotmail.qom>, eu geneplatypi@gmail.com, A

Swanston <audrepickle@gmai , Bryan Swanston
<bpsrvatst@gmcil. cq!q>,''B ailey B REWER (Chri stine

Belleci)" <b4yimgml-3@Al!.n911>, "hilarylefort@yahoo'com"
<hi Larvleforl@vals-o.Ee!]>, Alicia Brent-Nurse
<alicia,brentnurse@gmail.com>, Sandra McGuire
<gan dratrngg@C4AilEpm>, " m cas i an 1 I @ao}, cQm "
<mcaslel-1-l@asl .coru>, G ina Michaels
<ecmichae@smail.com>. Robyn Sorenson
<rbnsorenson@gmail, com>, Kimberly DiFranco
<difrancsent€rtai >, Kathryn Baldwin
<kelylQ., b@Crn-ajl-. cgm>, A n ge I a Roach
<angandbaby@hotmali,c >, abraham wolfinger
<abrahamwolfinger@gmail.com>, lisa levy

84

33



<lisalevy3778@sma >,"bjbworld@aol.com"
<bjblysdd@aaL-asrc>, Michelle Balco
<sistershellsl >, AnniWitlford
<anniwil lford@gmai1ffi>,''victoria.bunch@sbqglobal.net"
<victaria.bunch@ >, Suzanne Wheeler
<wheelglluz@ip]eud.cgm>, Lisa Derian-Macal uso
<lisAde{au@m9.caln>, Elizabeth Nozicka
<ls!us!Eb@yabps.!a!c>, Christina Holdridge
<christinaholdrid , lauren.mansour@santacatal
ina. or g, catherine broz <b1ozpg!@hglrnarl. co!q>, Jenni fer
Berry and Rodney Smith
<berrysmith@comqa$.ne!>, ldbunch@sbcglobal.net, "Maddie
MIZGORSKI(BRENDA)'
<brenda.mizgorski@m izweb.com>, mmizgorski@haywardlu
triber.com, Melissa Ackerman <melacker@gmail.com>,
"an gelaihart@comcast. net"
<angelaihart@comca$ >, goldensiIverrose@gmaii.com,
"am.rrbgoodson@aol. com" <aEry bgoodson@aol. com>, Chris
Evans <pgp-Qplg@yeheg.qgl1>, Michelie Evans
<mevans@pgusd.org>, Lyla Englehorn
<lylaenglehorn@gma >, Megan Felthoven
<m€gg4$J@g!0ar1.csm>, gul),acordier@..vahoo.com, Jennifer
Nix <j6rttX12@gmgiLgq!0>, FerreII Daste
<f'enelldaste@grnail,com>, Molly Daste
<mollydaste@gmai l,qom>, Heather Burnshcell
<SkyCU l22l@grnatLgSl1>, Arn ie B urttsch eI I

<amieburttschell@glnail.com>, Maxine Carlson
<mcartson@calstatereach. net>,
"mpran@stevensonschool. org"
<mpraft@stgvens-onsc >,Spratt19@stevensonschool.o
yg,Tara Mann <taamann23@qmail. , Tara MANIN
<kkushel@ismontere >, Quinci Teagan Walker Cox
<rnindyfaia@mac.com>, Jason Mehringer
<jas$ra@sbscJabal!9l>, Cristy Mehringer
<cmehringer@gmai L com>, "Bassanello, Alessandra B "
<workbass@hotmail.c,TessFranscioni
<tsfslar@elsarLse4>, Julie HUGIIETT {u148@ad4S!1>,
Cindy Womack <boxofficeptt@qmaiLc >, Joanna Hobbs
<jbsbbs80@jrotnalsgrc>, Patrick McEvoy
<stu kamcevoy I 2 I 9@.yahoo. qom>, Su san McKendry
<mckendr.y.s.m@email.com>, Ziona Goren
<ziona.goren@gmail.com>, rosenrr@prodig],.net, tiffany
tonez <tiffanvtorez@yahoo. >, Mark ENGLEHORN
<r:ten gi ehorn@vahoo.com >

Subjeet: Re: Alice, and SoDA needs your help.

Congratulations everyone! How much fun was that?l?l
Awesome work.

I posted a bunch ofphotos to Facebook last night, please
enjoy, tag and sharel I will continue to take shots ofboth casts
through the runl

On a more serious note. I need your help. SoDa needs your
help. I need people - parents and kids - to come to the Carmel
City Councii meeting this Monday April 4, from around 6pm-
7;3Opm to speak in support of PacRep's SoDA program. These
meetings can be boring so bring a book, laptop, or homework.
The meeting actually starts at 5:30, but the first half-hour or so
is usually just repofis.

6*



The bad news: the city is contemplating restricting our use of
the Forest Theater or evicting our school for large chunks of
the year, including the summer months of June and July when

we have oru sumlner camps! We have a successful year-round

school. We need the city to leave it as it isl

They are also looking at making the small school area a

"shared multi-user facility", even though it's really just one

continuous room with no lockable classrooms. It would need a

major remodel to make sharing possible and safe.

Sharing facilities is a worthy goal, of course, but the little
indoor Forest Theater was not designed for subletting, and

would not be safe for our children, or our belongings, if
strangers were allowed access while the school is in residence

there. And having to move out all our belongings every
summer would be completely unfair on our small ovsrworked
staffand volunteers.

If we don't have a large turn-out, we could Iose SoDa's year-

round home, or see it greatly cut-back. Please come if you can,

and speak in supporl ofour schooll

If you can attend. please let ne know by email or call mq

at 831-238-0941,

Thanks in advance for any help you can give,

Curiouser and curiouser,

Stephen Moorer

b6



From:
Sent:
To:
Cc,.

Subject:

Stephen Moorer <smatprt@aol.com>

Sunday, April 03, 2016 3:43 AM

Stacy

Ashlee Wright; Victoria Beach; Victoria Beach Council; Steve Dallas; Carrie Theis; Chip

Rerig; Jason Burnett; Ken Talmage Council; klglegal@hotmaif.com; Chip Rerig; Janet

Bombard
Re: Illegal propaganda for Indoor Forest fheater

Stacy,

If that was an apology then I accept it, of course, and, believe me, I do understand. I have a daughter, as well,
and would do anything to protect her. But I have also learned to check my facts - especially information
coming third hand thru a bunch of kids - lest I end up making wildly false accusations, as you have done.

I also worry when you say you took it on yourself and "confronted the students". Our kids expect a safe

atmosphere and don't deserve to be verbally attacked, I hope you apologize to those kids ard their parents, as

well.

As I mentioned, my Board Chair and I have reached out to Yvorne and you several times in the last few
months. My chair emailed Yvonne and called you. I emailed Yvonne numerous times and spoke to her directly.
Neither of you responded other than "We'll get back to you" - and you never did,

If you actually wanted to avoid a fight, instead of starting one, all you had to do was return our calls or email -
iike your predecessor, with whom we met often. But since you became FTG president, communication with
your board has been cut-off. And you have never - not once - attempted to contact us. We can't force you to be

up front with us, and repeatedly going behind our backs has not engendered much in the way of trust, In spite of
this, we have continued to provide technical assistance to your group,

Best regards,

Stephen

P.S. One of your new board members is spreading misinflormation, saying that SoDA doesn't share the back
deck, Having been in shows there yourself, you know that to be absolutely false. Please coffect them on this.

Sent from my feline's iToy cuz..,

"Jeilicle cats love Jellicle phones" H

On Apr 2,2016, at 10:07 PM, Stacy <meheens@gmail..com> wrote:

Stephen,



Thank you for your response. We ca1 agreeto disagree on many of your points' I hope the show

was successful tonight. It was the first performance of my daughter that I've ever missed' But it's

a greatshow, and I'm sure it was well-received'

As I said earlier, I may be involved with The Guild, but my loyalty is to the succes-s of all

dramatic arts. But *y'main focus, the only reason I do an1'thing, is for my family' I recuse

myself from every comrnission item involving theater' I make a point of being open and honest

about my involvement with the Guild. I also Jpenly encouage people to take SO-DA classes and

audition for other theater companies. We all win when theater groups work_together. I hope

someday, we can work together. Life is too short, and this town is too small for petty drama' My

email was written aS me, ih. 1no-, protecting my daughter. She always comes first'

Have a good night,
Stacy

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 2,2016, at 8:26 PM, Stephen Moorer <qmatgt@aal99!q) wrote:

Stacy,

Please get a grip.

any vidsq. whaisoever. I have checked and yes, the kids got to-gether and made a

gr.rp 
",d"" 

You tcnow what I say to that? - Good for them' But I didn't ask for

It, diin't arrange it, and certainly wouldn't show it at a City Council meeting" But

I'm not going to condemn the kids for making it.

And I have nevgr said that the city was "closing SoDA". That's not even possible'

You need to think through this more ciearly and get your head out of the gossip

bucket. Maybe you shoJd read my email, It's correct. And of course I didn't send

it to you. why would i ask you for help to fight you and your board?

So let's be clear, th€ citv staff has proposed evictins the Soda program durinq the

cnmrner season. and anv other time that the outdoor thA4[gdilgnted. And you and

your board are activeiy pushing for it.

Stacy, before the cultural commission meeting, both my board chairperson and

-yr"lf tri"d to reach out to Yvonne and you, but the two of you refused to meet,

and Yvonne saying it was a board matter and she couldn't comment. Then, after

the cultural commission meeting, Yvonne said that she was letting it drop and

would maybe do a class at the Youth Center. Two weeks later, however, and you

and your board are at it again. You pushed for this controversy, and now you

won't let it drop, so let's stop fooling ourselves.

Yes, I have DEFINITELY asked Board members, teachers, parents and FORMER

students to either come to the council meeting and speak in support of SoDA, or

Just so you know, your letter writers are misstating information and misleading

city staff and council members, but they are only operating on the limited

information that you have given to them.

* -'>1
)l



Now Stacy, I will say that more than one person has commented that you are

using youi position as a member of the city cultural commission to further your

o*n-ug"nau as president of the Forest Theater Guild. You have discussed the

situatiin out of the publie view with Janet Bombard, and I can only assume that

she is getting much of her information about PacRep and the Golden Bough flom

you. N*ow you ur* throwing around accusations that have no basis in reality, and

making threats. You need to step back and do some fact checking.

I have taiked to NO children. None.

I emailed the parents (and stand by the facts stated in the email), and I have

conversed with a handful of them. Exactly as you have done. That's it'

Stephen

Sent from my feline's iToY cuz,'.

"Jellicle cats love Jellicle phones" S

On Apr 2,2016, at 7:15 PM, Stacy Meheen <rneheens@gmail'com> wrote:

Hello Stephen,
As you are aware, my daughter is a cast member in Alice in

Wonderland for PacRep's SODA production that opened last

night. Although I am connected to the Forest Theater Guild, I am

passionate about the arts, and my family supports all theaters and

dramatic programs, because I strongly believe in the value and

importance of dramatic arts. I bring my voice students to your

productions to inspire them by watching musical theater, my

daughter participates in your SODA productions, and I am a

regular patron to as many shows as I can make time to sce, But
you, sir, have crossed the Iine with your current method for
drumming up support for your position regarding the Indoor
Theater, and I will not stand for it.

This morning, you sent a wonderful congratulatory email to the

cast (the email is listed below) in which you chose to use a

moment that should have been a sincere congratulations to a cast

for a job well done to further advance your message about the
Indoor Theater. I especially love your line from Alice, "Curiouset
and curiouser", since, although my daughter is in the cast, my
email address was conveniently left off this email to all
parents, You twisted your position to inliuence the parents of this
production, and that in itself is wrong. But what REALLY has me

fired up is what just happened when i dropped my daughter off
tonight for the evening show.

As I was getting her in her costume, a cast member was running
around, gathering other child actors. He came to Karen, and told
her she was "needed" outside. He said she wasn't in trouble, but
that she needed to go outside. I assumed it was a cute, inside-cast
kind of thing, so I let her go. She was gone about ten minutes, and

t$



when she came back, she was visibly upset' I asked her what was

*rong, and she said ihat the city is closing the SODA program' and

the kts were making videos to talk about why it should be 
.

saved. SHE,S EIGH} YEARS OLD!lll! Numberone, youhave

NO RIGHT to use MY CHILD, or ANY CHILD in your

propaganda. You DiD NOT HAVE MY PERMISSION to use my

duughiet in a propaganda video, and I can guarantee since I was

therle and witnessed 
"very4hing 

that NO PARENT was asked for

permission. I immediately took Karen outside and confronted the

itudents, but I know they didn't come up with this idea on their

own. I also spoke to yow stage manager'

You should be ashamed of yourself. I get that you are a business

man and you want your theaier to continue to be successful. But if
my daughter, or any of these chiidren show up in a video that goes

before the council on Monday, I wili be contacting legal

counsel. Leave the children out of this. It has nothing to with

them.

I am most disappointed for my daughter' She loves any

opport*nity to p*iform, and seeing her face after she was coerced

into making u ,id"o based on half-truths just makes me sad. she

didn't deserve to be pulled into this fight. Ald it never had to be a

fight in the first place.

-Stacy Meheen

From : Stephen Moorer <s:aaE4@asl-egm>

Date: April 2,2016 at7'.40:5'l AM PDT
To: Michele Swanston
<${a$!aE@glselLgam>
Cc: Regan Mornhinweg
<rnornhinweg6@gmai , AkashaJ

Brown <akashajustice@gmail,eom>, Seth

Bates <!q!ih.b atet@$ju.edu>, Nick M ireles

<mirin3 8@gmai 1. com>, Eirelesamber@hot
maiJ.com, Barbara Utter
<barb utter@vahoo.com>, Barrett Heywood
<Bhevwood66@yahqg.. com>, andrew,mans

o ur@santaEa!4!-DA qg, L.ydi a Manso ur
<lvdsand4@gm?iLepm>, lauren Mansour
<lollyowletl3@gm >, StePhanie

Ottone <agiS4r@pesbell ns!>, Jessica

DiMarco <iessmdimarco@gma >,

wendy more
<wenmorqg5 @hotmail.com>, eugeneplatypi

@gmail.sqm, A Swanston
<audrepickle@gmail.com>, Bryan
Swanston <bpswan$@gmgil. cSm>, "Bailey
BREWER (Christine Belleci)"
<baysusall@an.nc!>,
" h i larvle fon(E vah oo. c o m "

<h ilarvlefon@vahoo,.com>, A licia Brent-

Nurse <alicia.brentnursq >,

b 1/:
)"1



Sandra McGuire
<s and ra!D-Eg@g!n-ajl. ce-m>,

"mcasianI ]@aol.corn"
<mcasian I l@aol.com>, Gina Michaels
<gcmichae@email,com>, Robyn Sorenson
<rbnso{enson@gmail.com>, Kimberly
DiFranco
<difrancoenlertainmen ,

Kathryn Baldwin <ksry-L-0-. b@g!0ail&q!0>,
Angela Roach
<ansa[dbaby@h0tma , abraham
wolfinger
<abrahamwolfin ger@gmai l.com>, l.isa levy
<lisalavy3778@gma ,

' Ujb:yql-d@a9Lem " <bj bworl d@ao l.com>,
Michelle Balco
<sistershell517200 >, Anni
Willford <anniwillford@gmail.com>,
"victoria. bunch @sbcglobal.net"
<victoria.bunch @sbcglaba l,neI>, Suzanne

Mreeler <wheelersuz@icloud.com>, Lisa
Derian-Macaluso <U!ad,gden@n0.q celn>,
Elizabeth Nozicka <l elu sfi sh@.)'ahoo.com>,
Christina Holdridge
<christinaholdridge >, lauren.m
ansour@santacatal jna.org, catherine broz
<brozcat@hotm ai I, com>, Jennifer Berry and

Rodney Smith
<ber-vsmith@comcast.net>, tdbunch@sbcgl
obal,net, "Maddie
MIZCORSKI(BRENDA)"
<brenda.mizgorski@m izweb.com>, m m iz go

rski@haywardlumber.com, Melissa
A c kerm an <DclaSksr@Cpeil-Sgm>,
"angelajhart@comqast.net"
<alr gelai hart@comcast.net>, eoldensi lven'os
e@gmail.com, "qmybgoodson@aol,cqm"
<apybpsdgsl@aolps41>, Chris Evans
<pCp9opl9@yabss.cam>, Michel le Evans
<mevans@pgusd.org>, Lyla Englehorn
<lylaenglehorn@gmaiLqsm>, Megan
Felthoven
<meeganns@gmail.com>, gulyacordier@ya
hoo.com, Jennifer Nix
<j-9$jx-12@guail.9am>, Ferrell Daste
<ferye[d4ste@gmail, , Molly Daste
<mqLlydqils@gn4t !Xa!q>, Heather
B urttshcell <9kysb_122-l@gmail,com>,

Arnie Burftschell
<arniebuftschell@smai , Maxine
Carlson <mcarlson@calstat ,

"mpraft@stevens onschool.org "
<@,Sprattl9@s
teven sonschool.org, Tara Mann
<!era!sa!I23@CuAil.ea$>, T ara MA NN
<kkushel@ismontere , Quinci Teagan
Walker Cox <mindlzfaia@mac.com>, Jason

Mehringer <jatonrCI@sbcglobaltcP, Cristy
Mehringer <cm ehrqggr@gma{-a9m>,
"Bassanello, Alessandra B"
<workbass@hotmail.cou>, Tess Franscioni

ee
Ltn

(e



<tsfsBx@C-m a-LL!A!A>, J u I ie HU G HETT
<jslipgt@al-49!s>, C indY Womack
<loxofficsprt@gma , Joanna Hobbs

<jhobbg8g@hquo a-a{,aog>, P atri ck M cEvoy

<stukamcevoyl2 i , Susan

McKendry <mckendrv's.m@email'aom>,

Ziona Goren
<ziona.goren@gmai , rosenrr@prodie

p19!, tiffany torez
<tiffanr4orrez@Yahoo' , Mark

ENGLEHORN <menglehorn@Yahoo' >

Subject: Re: Aliee, and SoDA needs your

help.

Congrarulations everyonel How much fun

was that?l?! Awesome work.

I posted a bunch ofphotos to Facebook last

night, please enjoy, tag and sharel I will
continue to take shots ofboth casts through

the run!

On a more serious note. I need your help.

SoDa needs vour help. I need people -

parents and kids - to come to the Carmel

bity Council meeting this Monday April4,
from around 6Pm-7:30Pm to sPeak in

support of PacRep's SoDA program' These

meetings can be boring so bring a book,

laptop, or homework. The meeting actually

starts at 5130, but the first half-hour or so is

usually just reports,

The bad news: the city is contemplating
restricting our use ofthe Forest Theater or
evicting our school for large chunks ofthe
year, including the summer months of June

and July when we have our summer camps!

We have a successful year-round school. We

need the city to leaYe it as it is!

They are also looking at making the small

school area a "shared multi-user facility",
even though it's really just one continuous
room with no lockabie classrooms' It would
need a major remodel to make sharing

possible and safe.

Sharing facilities is a worthy goal, of course,

but the little indoor Forest Theater was not
designed for subletting, and would not be

safe for our children, or our belongings, if
strangers were allowed aceess while the

school is in residence there. And having to

move out all our belongings every summer
would be completely unfair on our small
overworked staff and volunteers.

If we don't have a large tum'out, we could
lose SoDa's year-round home, or see it

w
+l



greatly cut-back. Please come if you can,

and speak in support ofour school!

If you can attend. please let me know by

emailor call me at 831-238-0941.

Thanks in advance for any help you can

give,

Curiouser and curiouser,

Stephen Moorer



From:
9ent:
lo:
Cc:

Subject:

yvonnedavida@aol.com
Sunday, Aprit 03, 2016 10:10 AM

Chip Rerig;Ashlee Wright; Janet Bombard;jason burnett

meheens@gmail.com; charlotte.hira hara @ gmail'com

Forest Theaters indoor sPace use

Dear Chip, Ashley, Janet and Mayor Burnett-

Due to a prior commitment that I am unable to reschedule, I may not be.able to attend the council

meeting on Monday, I know that you will see to it that my thoughts are shared.with the appropriate

persons. I am writing because I feel as though my concerns hive not been fully understood regarding the

use of the indoor theater. ln March, wnen clcc motioned that the indoor use would be revlewed again in

November, I did say to Stephen that I would not pursue it and I also stated that we would be looking at

possibly doing classes at the CYC, which we are working on'

First, it is not the Guilds intentlon to displace or harm Pac Reps SODA program, it iS a good program that

has benefited many participants and one that I hope will continue for many more years l have

encouraged tne yolin participants in our programs to learn from as many people as possible' including

the SSDA progrim...it makes you a very wetl rounded actor/actress. Secondly, I feel very stronglylhat

bothof orrorglni.itioniipnrlrrG)filtneedsinourcommunity. lthasbeenagoalof thecurrentFTG

Board of Directors to work in an amicable fashion with PRT and other entities building solid partnerships

with the community, both theater and as a whole. The Guild has continued to look for organizations to

partner with in orOer to maintain our programs and have a space to rehearse' Currently we rehearse at

the Carmelyouth Center and run a yorin program with the YMCA in Monterey and we are hoping to be

able to offer some classes at the CYC this summer. A church in Pacific Grove has allowed us to use a

space in their fellowship hall on occasion and so has PG High school. We are grateful to these

oiganizations for their supporl and will continue to work with them. lt would be nice to be able to rehearse,

hold classes and run our'programs in Carmel though and even nicer to do so at the Forest Theater.

It was recently publicly stated that PRT has had the sole and exclusive use of the indoor Forest Theater

for SODA. This is true but, atso misleading. The Childrens Experimental Theater had use for decades

prior to soDA and the Guitd had use of th-e indoor during the time that it was contracted to use the facility.

This changed in 2010 when PRT was awarded full/exclusive use of the indoor theater year round, which

continueduntitthetheaterwasredtaggedinearly20l4 ln20'l0,theGuildhadalsorequesteduseof the

space(at the same trme pRT requestiJ it) but, wis denied and the contract awarded to PRT for SODA' I

have been told that SODA ran successfuily prior to using the indoor theater and from what I can see it

has continued to run after lt's exclusive contract at the indoor theater was ended due to the ciosure To

suggest that it can not continue unless it has exclusive rights to the indoor theater seems somewhat

exilgerateO. The Guild has managed to be able to continue programs, although not as easily or simply

as it did before and not without overlapping scheduling difficulties surrounding the shared use of the

entire facilitY.

At the CACC meeting this past month it was stated that PRT runs SoDA year round, "not just for three-

four months" f ne OIitO is iechnically capable of running a school year round but, does not have the

facility to do so and therefore requested only the time that they would be contracted for the facility use.

The Guild would gladly use the indoor theater year round but, would that be fair? lt was our Board of

Directors determination that it was not. Hence ihe request for the use of the indoor for the time the Guild

was contracted for the rest of the facility.. approximately three to four months. lt may be inconvenient to

have to bring your materials with you to teach and then take them with you when you leave but, it is done

and shared community space at facilities is a fairly common occurren6e.

The Forest Theater was built over a century ago to provide a place for everyone to participate in the

performing arts.. by "locals who alsa have fun doing the acting, directing, lighting, costuming, and

staging,"wrote Her'bert Heron(founding member) in a personalletter.. .this is stillthe mission of the Forest

Theater Guild. lt is my undersianding that, when the property was deeded to the ciiy in the mid 30's and

then became a WPA prolect that, it was to remain a place of community use and for education, lt was

ryq



Forest Theater Guiid members that helped build the indoor theater under the direction of Hugh Comstock,

a tocal contractor. A comment was rnade at the CACC meeting by an individual stating that they did not

know why the Guild had not bought a building or theater. To be honest and right to the point the Forest
Theater Guild was formed because of the Forest Theater, it is our namesake, it is our home..,why
should the guild need to move elsewhere when the Guild built it? ln the early 1970's it was the re'
structured Forest Theater Guild that rallied the community and raised the money to save the
facility...had they not done so at that time I would not be writing this letter today. Guild membership
swelled in the 70's when they filed for incorporation as a nonprofit. The Guild has had it's ups and downs
over the years, it has had wonderful shows and a few terrible shows. There have been years with few
members and years with many members but, it has atways remained a community theater group and
open to allwho wished to participate. There have been multiple generation$ that have enjoyed the
beauty, the magic and the joy of the Forest Theater tradition, mine included...my daughter is a 4th

generation performer here and my grand kids will soon be 5th.
Our mission statement reads "The purpose of the Forest Theater Guild is to uphold the heritage and
integrity of Carmel's historic outdoor theater through stewardship, preservation of it's unique character,
and enhancement of facilities, Moreover, the mission of the Guild is to present quali$ performing arts,

and to foster the growth and appreciation of the dramatic and allied arts among the broad community
utilizing our Community talent with emphasis on our youth."

With the reopening of the Forest Theater approaching and a new contract to be approved soon, the
Board of Directors of the Forest Theater Guild voted unanimously to pursue the opportunity of part time
use of the indoor theater... to insure thatdiscussion is initiated about how the facility is to be used now
and in the future. To have the opportunity to use the indoor space for classes and instruction, rehearsal
and preparation. lt was also perhaps somewhat self serving in that the anxiety over the parking situation
could somehow be lessened by not having to coordinate with shared user space. lf both users are on site
at the sarne time who has the right to the parking spaces? Who's parking program is in place and who's
insurance is covering the vehicles? Beyond the parking, who's insurance will be covering the facility and
the visiting participants? There is so much more to this than at first meets the eye than how to schedule
classes, rehearsals, films, performances so as not create a conflict for upstatrs/downstairs use and users.

As the current Executive Director for the Forest Theater Guild I am in a position to fully understand the
reasons that PRT wants exclusive use of the indoor theater for the SODA program and I understand the
arguments that they will use to make the point that it should not be shared. From a business standpoint I

understand them very well and could use the exact same arguments for the Guitds exclusive use of the
space with the exception of the argument that it has been ours exclusively for the entire year in the
past(at least the immediate past). Many years ago the entire facility was used exclusively by the Guild. lt
then became a shared space when Marcia Hovicks classes were asked to feave the Sunset Center. I

believe that it could and should be again a shared space. This will definitety take some adjustments,
Perhaps the only items that should ever be left at the indoor year around would be items that belong to
the Forest Theater or that belong to the Forest Theater Foundation for use by the Forest Theater as a
facility...sound equipment, lighting equipment, etc....then there would be a usable space for all,

One last thought, I have been told that a statement regarding the "city" closing SODA down or evicting
them is being circulated at this time, t do not have the exact wording but it is to that effect. To be evicted,
you must be in residence. To assume that any contract will automatically be renewed with exactly the
same terms is that, an assumption. That is why there are renewal periods...for a review of what will serve
both parties best and it is up to both to accept or decline. FTG, PRT and SODAs contracts have all
expired and it is time to look at the contracts to determine what best seryes the community as wellas the
organizations. The decision to make the indoor theater a community space will not effectively shut the
SODA program down...The only person that can do that is the person that is circulaiing the statement. lt
is just another in the multitude of negative propaganda statements that is meant to pull at heart strings.
FTG is being made out to be a space stealer, when in fact they built the very space that they are asking
to share. The "city" is being made out to be the bad guy when the opposite is true,. it is the duty of the city
council to represent all of the citizens of Carmel and make fair judgments that will benefit the community. t

appreciate your taking the time to read my thoughts and will be happy to answer any questions you may
have regarding what I have written.

Thank you,

Yvonne H ildebrand-Bowen
Executive Director

*DLt-\

T



Forest Theater Guild
PO Box 2325
Carmel, Ca93921

cc FTG Board President Meheen, Exec Asst./Book keeper Hirahara

A5



U6ti
L

;7
.:

ri
I

:it
ti

I
.t:i
i

ia
l.j=*
'=
. :i3i

i:
I

:1
.l

.i

I
:

j
j
i

i

^ o!!Bli
d6i
6d.gBt

E5lo,
>?ex,3!

I

E
a:i
-g

o

g
Tr

u
6
c
a
.LcL
lg
=

g
at

aL
ClsLO.ilo,
O,Es!a,
CLJ
8Ej
}E
ia
Ed

R

,?

AE
PttOE
q-

EEt+
>t
EE3rJ

fr
n9,
GA;
x8'
EE,a-5'4ooog>E,Efi
E6

1b

u6,N6.O',< xrN,
l, t Hj *! qi,

T:H N:
€ E d 5'h rts {,i ru
8.*o'o,m.o
a : .r+N: 6 >
E.*.gigrpr E

L h,{'d o_ ,' .91 N E h
, $P,Rih

:l

i!
9L
o

5,
F

=

+
il-6

il61

i6

OL

G6!

9ca'
o

El{
t

!E
aNl

',8,, (4

rr6

a'5

UE

tt

dt
E
!

0rE
a
!

=

!
otF

>
-E
c
G
e

3uc6dEIEEO
B?u'e<t6.gE
IT

al

d
E

€
*8
hcEIt=
!v:!igFElBfio

-es'iiEFeEs
'rEE@o
.HdddFoooE:!NNNN

IITIE

to
Ho
N

cl
E



q
q,

n
!

E
E.

E
d
!}
t
E
U

a
,E
,8

4moFt-iHN6
dil60F(,

*dd
D4H66ilO
,HdNBr *IiB
Ei ,9sl

!hru6@'ild

G+i66
-dHN

_ -*-.*_=-]*
lil
I

I

I

I

I

t

D
I

I

'ltl!!
._i

g
E
EL

E
oa
L

I
o

+
EI

6d66N6 HNR
oN+i€ iNN

GE@froNH-NN
Rr ENoe
l-5N
d>*f,66

iid
EMON$H.iHruft

<do@60

[-
i

*_li

t
a
!
#

a
E
6

AEcro.,ni9
T,€.!oet6>G!
l.,a.€rs
3A

iA
Eid

o;Euio
dtu!EEO
E&8I
p.E
ilr'}

=.t

:

I
I

I

Uv
Eg
9-
cu:i g
Llt o

[3 F

6,E
E6

aIo1LC

gs

-b

E;
6AC-
^E$r&n
>?
gE

g

E
E

€*rE:-(; !o4.e9Ei rF!

FE Pt €8eeE3 G

<rI)rOO(oAtlrdEoeoo
6NNNN

EGEE

to
Ho
AI
G'
tr
=-t

+k



o
6
4

t

,tF

6
1t
oc!o
9

d
Y

4N+HAHNN
40doh

6HdN
ir6d6O
R d-N

TF{:EK'gr':lxr
< Ed o @ 6 0

e i 6 6 N (i
--NN

*il
=;!

: l!!l
64N66 Hdd
,*{o6

HdN

9EhoNtlriN
8r*oo-o
DHN6

5}.$TNR
gN$-6.4NN

<o0oN

U-
Ego-
CU

"gzt
EE

'Euu(9E
r-{ ,fo E*sN "EEEtt;, -a c

r <lg€!Dro
^iHliIr 6ocro(:

tj6NilNNIT EEEE



Nothing in this emailshall be deemed to create a binding contract to purchase/sell realestate. The sender of this email

does not have the authority to bind a buyer or seller to a contract via written or verbal communications including, but

not limited to, email communications

\E

I



From:
Sent:
To:

Subject:

Chip Rerig

Monday, April 04, 2016 L2:28 ?M

Ashiee Wright
FW: Support for SoDa

Dias please...

-----Origina I Messa ge-----

From: Duncan, Antone [mailto;antone.duncan@cbnorcal'com]
Sent: Monday, April A4,2A16 10:38 AM

To; Chip Rerig <crerig@ci.carmel.ca.us>

Subject: Support for SoDa

Dear Mr Rerig,

Please include the below into the record for today's hearing'

I am a local Realtor representing buyers and sellers in Carmel for over 10 years. I am also a PacRep Board member'

when young clients with families are looking to purchase a home in Carmel they ask about youth activities in the City

along with information on the school district. The SoDA program is always an added plus since most new "young"

families don,t want to live in the clty because of the large number of second homes, and large population of seniors and

tourists. Therefore,ifCarmel bytheSeawantstohavepermanentresidentswhovoteandrespecttheCity,theCity
should encourage and support youth activities within the City boundaries. Addltionally, children today are not learning

to appreciate the arts at school. Carmelhas a unique opportunity to provide a recognized first class theater arts

program, a rarity for most small cities. The SoDa has a proven successful program. The FTG has not shared their

occupancy plan therefore the City does not know if any of their "shared'' occupants will generate "future" generations of

Carmel residents or have successful programs.

I urge the Council to approve the existing relationship with SoDa and not allow "shared" use.

Respectfully submitted,

AntoRe Duncan

Coldwell Banker RealtY

Junipero 2 5W of 5th
Carmel, Ca 93921

{831) 261-0860

The information in this electronic mail message is the sender's confidential business and may be legally privileged. lt is

intended solely forthe addressee(s). Access to this internet electronic mail message by anyone else is unauthorized. lf
you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution or any action taken or omitted to be taken in

reliance on it is prohibited and may be unlawful,

The sender believes that this E-mail and any attachments were free of any virus, worm, Trojan horse, and/or malicious

code when sent. This message and its attachments could have been infected during transmission. By reading the

message and opening any attachments, the recipient accepts full responsibility for taking protective and remedial action

about viruses and other defects. The sender's company is not liable for any loss or damage arising in any way from this

message or its attachments.



From:
Sent:
lo:
Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Chip Rerig

Monday, April 04, 20LG 9:34 AM

lanet Bombard
Ashlee Wright
FW: Sharing - (Issue paper #4)

FTca lendar MayJuneJuly.pdf

This should go on the dias with all the other emails regarding the same over the weekend.

From: Stephen Moorer [mailto:smatprt@aol.comJ
Sent: Sunday, April 03, 203.6 2:20 PM

To: jason burnett <jason.burnett@gmail.com>; Ken Talmage Council <kktalm@aol.com>; Steve Dallas Council

<sgda llas@ya hoo.corn>; ca rrie @ hofsashouse,com; vbeach @gma il.com

Cc: Chip Rerig <crerig@ci.ca rmel.ca. us>; ha Ilnelson @comcast.net
Subject: Sharing - (lssue paper #4)

Mayor Burnett and City Council,

My apologies for the email thread of last night involving Stacy Maheen. Although she now
understands that her charges were without merit, her email was politically motivated, nonetheless,

and should never have appeared in your inbox. Like last year's "bribing the council", I have been

falsely accused before so I am putting it behind me - but I hope it hasn't left too sour a taste in your
mouths.

Now that the drama has (hopefully) dissipated, I wanted to provide you with PacRep's input on the
proposal andlor concept of furning the Indoor Forest Theater into a multi-user or shared fuciiity.

Contrary to some of the information floating around, PacRep and SoDA have always encouraged
resource sharing and have been more than welcoming in opening our doors to amyriad of groups.

In fact, we are known for scheduling as much activify as possible into a facility schedule! This is
our reputation and the reason we have offered such a variety of classes, workshops, performances -
for children and adults. Just last summer, we were approached by the new Caxmel Puppetry
Institute about sponsoring classes and performances, which we managed to fit into the Bough, in
between shows.

We often share the Outdoor Forest Theater with small groups that appear on the outdoor stage from
time to time, and have long-planned on sharing our set, costumes and technical equipment with the
Centennial Committee later this year. And with very few complications, we share the lower deck
with the FTG every sunlmer. The outdoor facility, with it's minimal attributes and
separate securable buildings, lends itself to multi-use and over-lapping sharing of space. The Indoor
Forest Theater, however, has several obstacles to similar use, a use currently more appropriate to
Sunset Center for the same reasons.More than anything, it's a design issue.

,t



By way of background, in both 2000 ard zarl, this issue was discussed at the city council level,

as well as in 200g when the 2nd FT Master Plan was developed. At that time the subject of private

lockable classrooms was discussed and several options for classroom space were included in the

design. Inxll4,the need for additional classroom space was again expressed, but not included in

triage.

The need for additional space was identified because the existing school facility is, for the most

part, continuous op.r, ,pu.e with unsecure access to almost the entire facility' As currently

designed, and from a security and liability stand-poi11, it was decided that it would be extremely

difficult to operate as a multi-user or "four-wall"'facility until certain factors were mitigated:

a. Due to its unique nature and layout, the schooi facility requires onsite management and

ongoing inte;or maintenan".. Th"r" services are currently provided by the school and

subsidiled by pacRep, as are all phone, internet, cable and computer service

and equiPment'

b. The lobby and auditorium area are physically "one-roo1l", separated only by a half-

wall of cabinets. There is no "lock-out" cun'ently existing between these ateas, and

this would require a redesign, as both are served by the same entrance and share

common airsPace'

c" The boys dressing rooms has no door, as it is also the backstage entrance to the stage,

and must remain clear and open (unsecured)'

d. Similarly, the girls dressing room has one clear unsecured opening from the backstage

area.

e, The prop-room contains an immense amount of school and show supplies which need

to be accessible for the teachers, students and theatre workers.

f. Open shelves in the facility (for school supplies) need locking cabinets thru-out'

During the walk-thru of the facility tomorrow, you will have the opportunity to see the situation

for yoirself, and hopefutly this list wilt help you as you access the issues. I will be on hand to

ur**., any questions about the facilify or its use. I have also attached the May-July Calendar, for

SoDA and thi Indoor Forest Theater, as it would pertain to this summer should you uphold the

Cutrtural Commission's recommendation that SoDA re-occupy the facility.

ort the i

Thanks for you time and consideration,

Best Regards,

7'.v



Stephen
PacRep



;rtI;Ac;r Mtr u-T

Janet Bombard

From:
Sent:
To:

Subject:

Stephen Moorer <smatprt@aol.com>

Tuesday, APril 05, 2016 4:05 PM

Janet Bombard;craig@sagebuildingsolutions.com; bobbyrichards6@gmail'com;

jettcarmel@gmail.com; carmelspinone@ me'com; gracelee43@ g mail'com;

cityatty@ ix.netco m.co m

Indoor Forest History - RePort #1-

Dear Janet,

please include the following statement in the information packet for the Cultural Commission and,

later this month, for the ,.* City Council. I will be sending several position statements over the

next few days to be included in the Commission, Council and public packets'

Dear Friends,

There was some information regarding the Indoor Forest Theater that went to the City Council that

was in place in early April. I wanted to provide it to you, as well. This should provide some context

for you on the issues at hand.

There are only a few key issues that need more background, which I will send under separate

emails, as I work through the information. This first one, jumped out at me as needing context, so

I'm simply addressing the history and the previous decisions by council.

On page 199 of the recent City Council Packet, the staff report states:

Staff notes that in the past the Children's Experimental Theater moved out of the lndoor Forest Theater

durrng the summer so that the Forest Theater Guild could make use of both the indoor and outdoor
theater during its tenancy. In the interest of farrness and putting a community venue to its besl use it

woufd seem, therefore, that returning 1o this past practice would serve the needs of all.

It,s important, here, that organizationalmemory is not lost. Staff is referringto three decades ago,

prior to Cp1 even havirg u r.r*er program, when extra dressing rooms were needed. Much has

ihanged since then. Since that time, several city councils have weighed on this.

please note that the original sharing alrangement which staff reports was at the discretion of the

downstairs resident tenant (CET at the time), based on their school calendar

- which typically extended into June, and eventually expanded into the full summer.

In 2000, city staff and council unanimously agreed that anestablished year-round school (CET)

was the best use of the facility, most beneficial to the community. and also recognized that the

small space was not designed for multi-users.

Among the reasons cited then:



1) Asking the cET school to move-out every summer was an "extreme hardship" that not only

incruded moving 1arge furnishing, tit . pianos, refrigerators and copy machines, but involved

turning off/moving phorr.r, fax [nes, internet, and other services that the resident tenant pays

for. past security and liability issues were of serious concern. The extra labor, storage costs, and

liability for CET were also cited'

2) Thegreater community good is served by keeping an active and growing school in operation,

rathertf,an sacrifice the school for 2 small dressing rooms'

3) To mitigate the dressing-room concern, the Forest Theater Foundation purchased two portable

dressing rJo*, that met oi exceeded the square footage of the two small dressing rooms

downstairs. These are movable and can be erected on-the outdoor stage on an as needed basis by

the outdoor groups. (These are onsite and will be used this summer')

rn20l1, when similar issues were agatndiscussed, the staff and/or City Council made the

following comments:

1) It was acknowledged that the 5o-year legacy of cET was of high importance to carmel, and that

soDA was the only'iogical choice to .urry"onthat legacy. The cET staff, board and Hovick family

all endorsed SoDA, whole-heartedly.

2) It was recognized that SoDA was an established school with a year-round schedule and alarge

student base that was looking for a home. The program submitted a full proposal, w-ith class

descriptions, teacher registration, financials, etc. It was described as a "perfect fit" for the space and

the community.

3) The Guild provided no financial history, few program details , andno real track record for

*,rn irg a full-fledged school or maintaining a historic facility. They and their new board

were 
"i"orrug"d 

t6 address these issues in the future and "get their house in order".

Note A: The facility has neverbeen operated as a community rental facility. There is much

confusion over this. From it's re-opening in 2000 until 2010, there was only one resident group

(CET) and from 2}l}-2ol4there *u, on. resident organization (SoDA). The only shared use (or

subletting) was at the discretion of the resident organization, based on schedule, staffing and cost

issues.

Note B: The Golden Bough is a busy year-round rehearsal and performance facility' It has been

able to host some SoDA 
"1u.r"r, 

but, during the FT renovation, the school curriculum has

been severely cut back, including all our adult classes, evening rehearsals, and special workshops'

If you have any questions that pertain to historical facts about the indoor school, I would be happy

to answer them.

55



Best Regards,

Stephen Moorer
PacRep



Janet Bombard

From:
Sent:
lo:

Subject:

Stephen Moorer <smatprt@aol'com>

WednesdaY, APril 06, 2016 1:50 PM

Janet Bombard; Chip Rerig; bobbyrichards6@gmail.com;jettcarmel@gmail'com;

carmelspi none@ me.com; gracelee43@ gmail'com; cityatty@ix'netcom'com

Indoor Forest History - New Comments on shared use and sub-letting - Report #2

Dear Janet,

Here is the 2nd statement for the information public packet for the cultural commission and, later

this month, for the new City Council'

Dear Friends,

I wanted to provide you with pacRep's input on the existing shared use of the Indoor Forest

Theater, and the discussion of turning the Indoor Forest Theater into a community rental facility, as

some commenters have suggested.

SoDA & the Forest Theater
pacRep and SoDA have always encouraged resource sharing and have been more than welcoming

in opening our doors to a myiiad of groJps. In fact, we are known for scheduling as much activity

as possibi-e into the facility schedulelThis is our reputation and the reason we are able to offer such

a wide variety of classes, workshops, and performances - for both children and adults. And during

our residency at the Indoor Forest, like cpT before us, we shared our home and hosted numerous

groups and individuals within our walls.

Even when SoDA was "on the road" these last 2 years, we have still tried to play host to others. Just

last summer, for example, we were approached by the developing carmel Puppetry Institute about

housing their perfo.*u.r..r, which due to our reduced schedule we managed to fit in between

shows on the Golden Bough stage. And this year we share the Golden Bough with the Jewish Film

Festival, the Carmel Guia; Society, Carmel High School and Monterey Bay Charter School, to

name a few.

We often share the Outdoor Forest Theater during our residency with small groups that appear on

the outdoor stage from time to time, and have long-planned on sharing our set, costumes and

technical equipment with the Centennial Committee later this year. We are co-hosting the event and

*ill alreadlr have management and technicians onsite to make the facilities clean. safe

le. Wi in olace ith the C

Sub-letting the downstairs school, however, is much more problematic. By contrast, the outdoor

facility, wlth its minimal affributes and separate securable buildings, lends itself to multi-use and

even, with careful scheduling, subletting the entire outside facility. The Indoor Forest Theater,

however, has several obstacles to "turn-key" or sub-letting, a use more appropriate to Sunset

86n



Center, Chery Hall or the Women,s Center. More than anything, it's a design issue, as I explain

below.

By way of background, in both 2000 and2011, this issue was discussed at the city council level,

as well as in 200g when the2ndFT Master Plan was developed. At that time, the subject of private

lockable classrooms was discussed and several options for classroom space were included in the

design. rn1;r4,the need for additional classroom space was again expressed, but not included in

triage.

The need for additional space was identified because the existing school facility is, for the most

part, continuous open space with unsecured access to almost the entire facility. As currently

designed, and from a security and liabilify stand-point, it was decided that it would be extremely

difficult to operate as a multi-user or "four-wall" facility until certain factors were mitigated:

a. Due to its unique nature and layout, the school facility requires onsite management and ongoing

interior maintenance. These needs are currently provided by the school, and subsidizedby PacRep

- as are all phone, internet, cable and computei service and equipment. Hosted groups or activities

generally require these service as well.

b. The lobby and auditorium area arephysically "one-room", separated only by a half-wall of

cabinets. There is no .'lock-out" ,,r..".rtly existing between these areas, and this would require a

redesign, as both are served by the same entrance and share common Space'

c. The boys dressing rooms has no door, as it is also the backstage entrance to the stage, and must

remain cllar and opin (unsecured). Similarly, the girls dressing room has one

clear unsecured op.rri"g from the backst age area. These small dressing rooms would need a re-

design and the aOOltion of exterior doors to make them secure and accessible.

e. The tech-room and prop-room contain an immense amount of school and show supplies which

need to be accessible for the teachers, students and theatre workers. These small rooms are needed

to serve these functions, which are vital to the program'

f. open shelves in the facility (for school supplies) need upgrading to locking cabinets thru-out.

During the walk-thru, you had the opportunity to see the situation for yourself, and hopefully this

list will help you as you assess the issues.

with an
In su

5fi

feature
ical iss ofa

faciliti lnovate entrance



Thanks for you time and consideration'

Best Regards,

Stephen
PacRep

ffi5q



Choirman Richords

Community Activities & Culturol Commission

f would like to toke this opportunity to voice my suPPort for Pocific Repertory

Theotre's request to continue to utiliz e the fndoor Forest Theotre f or their SODA

Progrom. This is o very importont Progrom ond hos olwoys been successful' ond it

embodies the spirit of cET/Morcio Hovick who occupied the rndoor Theotretor

mony Yeots.

As o f ormer employee of the city of cormel-by'the-seo r worked hond in hond

with PocR ep/Steph.n l&oor"r for mony yeors in regards to the outdoor Forest

Theotre. He wos olwoys respectful, thoughtful ond willing to compromise ond work

with the City in our constont discussions with The Forest Theater 6uild f or the

summer seoson. rt wos olwoys difficult ond time consuming working through the

issues with FT6 but r could olwoys count on PocRep/Stephen to be reosonoble'

PocRep wos olwoys timety in poying the monies owed Ihe City ond f never hod issues

with them during the seoson.

The rndoor ForeSt Theoter is smoll ond does not lend itself to sharing' it is olso my

understonding thot Poc ReP holds closses year round ond utilized the indoor

theater before the renovation without issue ond were excellent tenonts. Given

thot, r om not sure why you would even consider this request from The Forest

Theoter 6uild, whose relotionship with the city hos freguently provad chollenging'

Pleosecontinue to support ond oPProve PocRep's request for the yeor-round use of

The fndoor Forest Theatre,you won't regret it'

Thonk you in odvonce for consid ering my opinion when considering your decision ond

pleaseshore my letter with your fellow commissioners.

Best regords,

Christie Miller
(Retired Community Services Director for the Ctty of Carmel-by-fhe-5eo)

bd



March 8,2015

To Whom it MaY Concern'

r am writing to address the proposed cutbacks for the use of the rndoor Forest Theatre

bv the SoDA prosram. Since it,s lncJpi;:;Ji" *h-"-"\Ft had exclusive use of the

,ru.". To atter tr,Ii no* *outd create tiabitity, securitv, and privacy issues, among

other probtems. srnie rhe ctosur" o?-tt," indooi rorerfih""tri rhe ioDA program has

had to severety.riJ".r. it's offerine r;i.iuii"t. I: it truty a detriment to our

community. With-t'fie i"r"r"ty tlmiftd access to Arts prolrams in schoots' SoDA offers

something vitat foi;;;;;ss of our chitdren and future citizens'

Dramatic Arts educatiOn buitds confidence, setf esteem, setf disciptine, setf retiance,

and poise. Additionatty it teaches youth how to o'guni'; and prioritize as wetl as how

ro converse with;;iir. Theatre Atit 
"O'i"tion 

atso frovides devetopment'of some

interpersonat skitis that are not uu,ity uiquitea tike' empathy and compasslon'

often the myths and stereotypes of the arts lead peopte to think of its education as

being frivotous. i;i th" statistics ilY:-"il:;il-;i;o"ntt in the arts consistenttv

out score their non-arts peers on.t[e sar cottege ""urr. 
students invotved in the arts

are four times more tikely to achievl uiua"rni. notice, hotd school offices' win

awards for writing and even enter'siJice iuirr. s.noot attendance for those students

is three times higher than for tfto'"-*l.,o u'" not' Arts students read for pteasure

more often, and perform community servic"-.ut 9 "Lft-ftigl.er 
rate than their non-arts

friends. young r#ij*;t" "."a"ril 
tlr" skitts through performing'

rn addition to the personal and.inter-personal.skitts we iust tatked about, students in

the arts tearn academic skitts ,.,ui n"[p t-n", ln tn" future such as anatysis, probtem

sotving, reasoning, abstract tnint<ing]'iont"ptuttization' and creative thinking'

performing arts programs offer chitdren and youth a benefit they usuatty do not find

in an ordinary ctassioom, instead';;;;;t;Sining LnowteAe" about things' they gain

knowr,edge about who they are and *r,ut th"y .un ao. rn-is hetps kids grow into better

adutts, parents .ra .itil"ns. ro ,mit tne access to the soDA program witl hurt our

comrnunity not onty no*, but wett into the future'

SinceretY,

Laura Cote

FacuLty Monterey Peninsuta Cottege

Parent of SoDA student
lnstructor at SoDA schoot

Qr

I



CACC AGEHtrA IE # ffi flS

Frsrn Barbara Llvlngston grBBfi.Eflrdens@atlnetFri' r-dffi#' ?fl16 5:35 pm

dsl,aiis

To GiltlP Rerlg rerig@sffilobal'net'
ao6uy Rfihards bobbyriffi ardss@gmail'com

IREGRETIAMUNABLEToATTER'IDTHETUESDAYMEETING
oF THE CACC. r woufn h{AVF SFO}ffiN TO THE

tssuE oF OF NOT EHnrqcrr-lc fHr AGREEUENT tsETWEEH

TF{E CITY AHD filE rE* NEP SCHOOL THAT SfiHOOL

HAD tTS BEGrNhirHe k'l r*lgnClA HOVICK'S GIluBREHg

EXp ERt ME NrnL Ti fnfgn. r'l uf'ln REDS O F C$-'l I LD REI'I l{#ME

BENEFtTen rnout mrEse cusses *rtrn I AM SO GRATIFIED

Tt-tAT pAC nep fS Cgf,fifftlurf{G lN I'nARf,lA'S FOOSTEPS'

pLEASE D0 NOT'fnnrpen rrulrr=r frlE EXISTING AGREEMEHT

AETWEEH PAC REP AND THE CITY.

TI{AHK YOU.
BARBARA

( '-

I



-----Original Message-.-l-, a -.
f tom, fratt Defaria2wjdefaria@aol'com>
To: smatPrt <smatPrt@aolcom>
C-"' ino,tiOard <jbombard @ ci'carmel' ca' us>

Seni: Wed, Feb 3, 2016 4"44 Pm

Subject: lndoor

Stephen-justtoclarify.at.todaysmeetingltoldyouthatnoneofusWere
trying to close oown sboa in any wav or tiking awav the indoor theater for

soDA to use. That is still a fact oui'iliJ t*g"i, disiussion I had with the

CitY.

ln a meeting with the city apout four months ago' after hearing that the cities

was considering in" p"Ilioiritv of opening the indoor theater to more groups'

I was asked if its availability wgrq;i;.;i" the Centennial Show' I said that

if any part of it'iirri"iiiabte fir dressing rooms for the centennial

show on oct 2i;; tnri ioutd ie ;;pfri ions.idering the number of

diverse group"'i ini snow. m7'o-iry w1l thil an attempt to harm or

hinderSoDa ,ni',-il-,r-i'iiu,4 ,, oona *troor, to" n"n'nsJe move

out or be seriousln inconvenieffiElunderstand it' the indoor was

occasionally used in the past-as J;Gng rooms,for shows upstairs'

stretching back i" in" orvs otcore wesion and beyond' when shows are

done upstairs the possibility of limited use of the facility for dressing rooms ls

of course very desirable by any group'

From what I understand the city, and I am not speaking for any city

emptoyee, was ioofing at 1ne-Ob9liLilit, 
ot allowino some additional 1imited

use of the facitity but with soDa il;il.";"". rrpJ"ially for such things as

indoor dressing'ro*". This is just my impression and you would need to

tai[witn Janet for actual City thinking'

Walt

3/8/16, 8:40 AM

about:blank

b3

Page 1 of 1



COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES AND CULTURAL COMMISSION

Staff RePort

April 12,2016

To:

From:

Subject:

Community Activities and Cultural Commissioners

Janet Bombard, Library and Community Activities Director

Review draft FOrest Theater use Agreement and forward a recommendation to

the city council ,"g"rding 
"hanges-to 

the use agreement, including the possible

,ooition of certain costs to be borne by the 2016 season user groups

ANALYSIS/DISCUSSION:

The city councir has remanded the request to authorize shared use of the rndoor Forest Theater back

to the community Activities and cultural commission for reconsideration'

since 2005, two Forest Theater user groups - Forest Theater Guild and pacific Repertory Theater -
have operated under five-year license agreements to use the outdoor Forest Theater' The most

recent license agreements were issued in 2011. At that time, Pacific Repertory Theater was also

issuedafive-yearlicenseagreementforuseofthelndoorTheater.

Those contracts have expired, and with the impending reopening of the Forest Theater' staff was

directed to write an updated use agreement (the last agreement was written in 2005)'

The updated Forest Theater User License agreement was reviewed by the City Attorney and CSAC'

the joint powers authority that provides risk management services to the city' Recommended

changes were incorporated into the document'

The Community Activities and Cultural commission reviewed the draft use agreement at its March 8'

2016 regular meeting and at a subsequent ipecial meetin-g on March 17,2016' The Forest Theater

Guild and Pacific Repertory Theater, ,ept"s"nt"d by Pacif-ic Repertory Theater Executive Director

Stephen Moorer, .pot 
" 

to ine draft agreement and Lubmitted a list of proposed changes' The

commission considered the requesteO itranges, and after discussion approved the following

recommendation to ih" C,tv council: "FonruIrd ihe Forest Theater Use Agreement with the following

proposed changes to ffr" Citv Council for consideration" (proposed changes in red)'

o page 2, Number 4, Termination of License Prior to Expiration of Current Term: USER may

terminate the license at any time during the agreement ierm by giving +i+een{rg}120 days written

notice to the city Administrator rtatingine eff;ctive date of termination. clrY reserves the right to

terminate the license prior to expiration of the term, with respect to all or any portion of the License

Area, upon +i+een-(lg,; rzO OaVs piior written notice to USER in the event CITY requires use of

the License Area for any public purpose'

staff notes that 120 days is four months, which exceeds the amount of time the Forest Theater Guild is

allocated for its tenancy at the outdoor iheater, and equals the amount of time allocated to Pac Rep,

thereby nullifying the city,s ability to terminate the license prior to expiration of the current term' lf council

is not comfortable with the item as originatty written, consideration might be given to 30 days written

notice.

64



page Z,Number 4, Line 10: clTY may also terminate the license in the event of any default by

usER in the performance of its obrigations under this Agreement if such defaurt is not cured within

ten{€) thirty (30) days after written notice thereof deliv6red to USER, or such other period of time

as may be sPecified in the notice'

No work, including rehearsals,page 3, Number 8, OutdOOr Theater Hours of operation: No worK, lncluolng rettearuaru'

.^^arr,a*ian rrriil hanin hefnre 9:00 a.m. with the exception of rehearsals all
p"ior*rnaes and construction will begin before g:00 a.m. wrth the exceplron oT tenEaruc's o

..,^-l-i^^l'rAinannnefrrrnfiannfseisshallendbv5:30p.m.;;r[, inciuoing construction of sets, shall end by 5:30 p'm'

=During rehearsals, all

ffidshallbeturnedotrnolaterttian10:0bp.m.A|lrehearsals,performanceS,
and after-parties .nrf f 

"nJ 
no later than 10:30 p.m., and the premises vacated by 1 1 :00 p'm''

non-inclusive of valet or pick-up/drop-off services'

o Page l4, Outdoor Forest Theater Use Agreement, schedule "C"' Occupancy' Theater

occupancy will be limited to 54e 572 perions; in addition, the number of tickets printed shall not

exceed 5/F_-572 Perevent.

o Page 15, Housekeeping Responsibilities, Bullet point 8: User shall repair' within fwe€)

fifteen15 days, any and att oamage io ff'" facilities and grounds or any other property, which

was a result of User,s activities 
"-, "n"o.passed 

by thiJ permit, at organization's expense' City

will be the sole judge of the extent of damage'

o with regard to reserved parking spaces set aside for accessible parking, the person

responsible for the parking ptan may release these spaces, if the parking spaces are not used'

since the commission originally considered the use agreement two additional issues have come up,

both regarding Forest Theater operational costs'

Because the triage phase only addressed fixing theled tag issues, the matter of the Forest Theater

restrooms, noncompliance wiin the Americrnr-*iff' Disabii'lties Act was not dealt with. ln order to bring

the venue into compliance it will be necessary to install three portable ADA.accessible restrooms on

the site: one rarger unit to the south of the stage, prus two units on the north side. A handwashing

station - or lavatory - will be installed in tne la-rge'unit. The two smaller units will share a lavatory that

will be installed outside, in between the two'

The cost for portable restrooms this year will be approximately $770 per month to have all three

restrooms open and serviced, and $610 per month if only one unit is kept open and the other two are

locked during non-performance times. During the performance season, the user groups will need all

three units open, potentially necessitating servicing (and an additional cost) more than once a week'

There will also be an additional charge of $100 each per month for the two lavatories'

Therefore, an additional for the commission's consideration is that of whether to recommend to the

city council that the city bear the total costs of the portable ADA restrooms, or alternatively, whether

all or a portion of the costs should be borne by the user groups.

The second issue for the commission's consideration for inclusion in the use agreement is whether the

user groups should share in the monthly costs to the city for maintaining the venue'

The city's Fiscal Year 2Q12l13 costs for the theater were as follows:

65



. $ 966.76 CalAm
o $3659.14 Pacific Gas & Electric

. $ 240.00 Alarm Fees

o$909'24CarmelAreaWastewater(paidonpropertytaxbill)
. $ 245.84 Monterey Peninsula Waste Management District

TOTAL: $6020.98

ln addition to the above expenses, the city also incurs the following costs on an annual basis:

.$2,000'00peryearforapre.productionSeasonclean-up
o $4,800.00 p"t y"rt for contracted weekly ground maintenance

o $ 9OO.0O per year for bimonthly pest control

o g6,540.00 b"t y"rt for daily janiiorial services including consumables

o 92,600.00 per year for one dumpster and one recycling container on site

TOTAL: $16,840

At minimum, it costs the City $22,861 a yeat in outside services to maintain the venue'

User groups currenily pay $25 per day to rent the outdoor theater on technicar work or rehearsal days'

on days where aomitsioir is charged, ,r"o'pav $zs or 1Oo/o of gross receipts, whichever is greater'

The in-door theater cost is $160'00 per month'

The city cannot make a profit on the theater; however, neither should it be fully subsidizing its costs'

Given that the u"nr" opirrtes on puOficirnOs, the goal should be to recover the costs to the most

reasonable extent p"*iui". rt is therefore staff's recommendation that the commission send a

recommendation tJir.," City corn"it ttrat tre tenants help offset some or all of the City's costs'

The city,s former agreement with waste Management lnc. contained a provision that supplied the

theater groups with additional recycling containlrs and twice yearly 30-yard roll-off dumpsters (one for

each user group,s end of lease). The current contract with Green waste does not contain any such

agreement. The City will provide one four-yard trash dumpster and two 65 gallon recycle bins, with

servicing one time per week at a total cost of $632 per year. Staff recommendation is that any

additional waste / recycling services beyond that will be borne by the user groups'

summary of cost issues for the commission's consideration.

o Should all or a portion of the costs for portable ADA restrooms be borne by the user groups?

o what, if any, portion of the minimum $iez,au in annual maintenance, fees and upkeep should

the user grouPs PaY?
o Should the user grorp, bear the costs for the additional waste / recycling services?

Costs that will be charged to the user groups will be added to the use agreement'

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1: Draft Use Agreement

66



d}ir:x*,*r* l* ut1L*r t,*xr"

67



ATTACHMENT 1

FOREST THEATER USE AGREEMENT

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT, d ted

municipal corPoration (hereina er "ClW") and , <

A. CITY is the owner of th
located at Santa Rita 5

hereto and incorPorat d herein bY this reference.

2016, between THE CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA' a

> is made with reference to the following facts:

real property with improvements commonly known as th9.F9l-".:t Theater

reet and MoUntain Vlew Avenue, legally described in Exhibit 
,,A,, attached

B.

commonly known as the outdoor Forest Theater during the following dates only: 

-' 
Said season

will begin 

- 
and end 

-. 
The CITY is willing to grant a revocable license to USER to use and

occupy the Outdoor Theater of the License Ar6a during the above stated dates for the purposes

authorized by this Agreement, subject to.lt of tft" terris and conditions hereinafter set forth'

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed as follows:

Grant of License. ClTy hereby grants to uSER a revocable license to use and occupy the outdoor

Theater portion of the roresi iheater ror" p,e purpose of providing public, educational, cultural,

entertainment and community events. clTY agrees to use the outdoor Forest Theater for the

followlng purposes and to limit its use to such purposes:..providing public, educational' cultural'

entertainment and.orrnr"ity events with all of the applicable conditions and requirements set

forth in this use agreement.

rrea to be occupied by USER (hereinafter "License Area") shall. be the outdoor

Forest Theater toc.teO it Santa iita Street and Mountain View Avenue, Carmel-by-the-Sea'

Ca lifornia (Exhibit A)'

condition of License Area. Use of the License Area is being granted to usER in its present

*.Oial", *d CITY shall have no obligation to make any alterations or improvements to the

License Area to a.com*odate usER'; use. USER acknowledges that ClrY has made no

representations or warranties concerning the condition_of the License Area or its suitability for

USER,s intended use. tt shall be the respJnsibility of USER to cond uct such inspections of the

License Area as it deems necessary to satisfy itself that the License Area can be used for the

purposes intended by USER. The inspection will be performed prior to the agreed u.pon move-in

date, with clry stafiin .it.nd.n." and concurrent with a CITY staff checklist and video inspection

of the facility, tne puipoie oi *f,i.f', will be to ascertain and document the condition of the facility

prior to USER moving in. USER shall provide a detailed list of work that is planned to be

performed during the site inspection, including what building materials are proposed to be used,

ior staff to review. The facility will also be subject to a CITY staff inspection upon the USER

moving out the purpose of which will be to identify modifications, damages' potential hazmat

disturbances, etc. tirat may have occurred and to assess the general cleanliness of the facility'

Termination of License prior to Expiration of current Term. USER may terminate the license at any

time during the agreement term by giving fifteen (15) day written notice to the City Administrator

stating ttre erective date of termination. ctry reserves the right to terminate the license prior to

expira-tion of the term, with respect to all or any portion of the License Area, upon fifteen (15) days

prior written notice to USER in the event CITY requires use of the License Area for any public

purpose. Should the clTy determine that the operation of the outdoor Theater is causing damage

to the Licensed Area or creates a traffic or health or safety hazard, the CITY may immediately

terminate the license agreement. CITY may also terminate the license in the event of any default

by USER in the perfor.-un." of its obligations under this Agreement if such default is not cured

L.

2.

3.

4.

6<i



ATTACHMENT 1

5.

6.

within ten (10) days after written notice thereof delivered to USER, or such other period of time as

may be sPecified in the notice'

permitted uses. The License Area shall be used and occupied by USER solely for the following

purposes, and limited to such purposes: providing public, educational, cultural' entertainment

and communitY events.

submittal of Performance/Rehearsal/Technical work schedules. USER will submit schedules of

all outdoor Theater performance, rehearsal and technical days with start and finish times to the

community Activities department fourteen days in advance of the scheduled move-in date' Any

and all revisions of said schedules must be submitted to the community Activities Department

at least seven days before said revision willtake place'

Move-in / Move-out, usER shall not begin moving equipment, furnishings, other property or

personnel onto the premises prior to thE move-in date and time' Any equipment' furnishings' or

other property belonging to USER remaining upon-the Premises after the move-out date shall be

deemed abandoned JnO"rrV be disposed oi by CtW, at such time and in such manner as CITY

may determine at its sole discretion. usrR agte"t to pay to CITY upon demand any and all costs

of removal and disposal of abandoneA property' USER a.cknowledges that CITY shall have no

liability whatsoever foi anv loss of or damage to Renter's equipment, materials or other

propuity which may arise as a result of such disposal'

Outdoor Theater Hours of Operation (Restrictions an! Limitations)' No work' including

rehearsals, performances and construction will begin befor5.9:00 a'm' With the exception of

rehearsals all work, including construction of sets,-shall end by.5:30 p.m. All amplification of

sound shall be ,rrn"J off no"later than 10:00 p.m. All rehearsals, performances, and after-

p.rti", shall end no later than 10:00 p.m., and the premises vacated by 10:30 p'm'

Rental Rates. USER agrees t0 rent the Theater and to pay all charges as set forth in. Exhibit "8"

entitled "Rental nateiaJir'.ig"t"; attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference'

Forest Theater Rules and Regulations; Housekeeping Responsibilities. USER agrees to comply

with all Forest rneatei Rules*and Regulations and Housekeeping Responsibilities as set forth in

Exhibit "c"; attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

Building Use Regulations. USER shall not in any way make alterations or improvements to the

Forest Theater without the prior written consent and oversight of CITY. To ensure compliance

with the limitation hereby imposed on the usER, clTY reserves the right to place restrictions

upon, or prohibit, the insiallaiion by USER of any signs, floor coverings or fixtures; or the

affixation by USER oirny nails, spikes, lighting, posters, signs, or adhesive - backed items such as

stickers, tape, etc. to any part of the Outdoor Forest Theater' Additionally, USER agrees to

comply with all Forest theater Rules, Regulations and Responsibilities as set forth in Exhibit "D";

attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference'

Hazardous Building Materials. ln case of disturbance of hazardous materials USER shall notify

the clTy immediately. usER shall be responsible for cleanup of hazardous material pursuant to

EPA standard protocols. USER shall be responsible for any damages / costs incurred as a result of

potential exposure to hazardous materials of occupants / workers.

Compliance with Legal Requirements. USER shall strictly comply with all applicable federal, state

and local laws, incluiing hazardous building materials awareness. Further, USER shall strictly

comply with all applica"ble C|TY laws, ordiiances and regulations. USER agrees to comply with all

Forest Theater Rules and Regulations / Housekeeping Responsibilities as set forth in Exhibit C

attached hereto and incorpolated herein by reference. USER shall have any and all agents,

1.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

b7



ATTACHMENT 1

t4.

volunteers and employees sign and return to USER a copy of the Forest Theater Rules and

Regulations/Housekeeping n-esponsibilities prior to use of the facility. USER shall also notify all

agents, volunteers ano'"rriptoyees that they are to comply with all laws, ordinances, and

iJgut.iion, adopted or established by federal, state, CITY or local government agencies'

lndemnity. USER agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold clTY, and its officers, officials, boards,

commissions, employees, and agents, harmless from and against any and all claims,.demands'

causes of action, iiabilitius, costs or expenses, including attorney's fees, occasioned by or in any

way connected with the condition, use or misuse of the License Area or occasioned by any

negligent act or omission of USER or its, agents, volunteers and employees or arising from any

breach of this License Agreement by USEg or any of its sub-USERs, agents, volunteers and

employees. The indemriity obligations of USER set forth herein shall survive and continue beyond

the term of this License Agreement'

Liability of USER: USER shall assume all liability for any injury:to persons or damage to property

that may arise from any accident that occurs on or about the Outdoor Forest Theater as a result

of the use and/or occupancy thereof by USER,

Retention of Deposit: Any failure by USER to use and/or occupy the Outdoor Forest Theater in

the manner herein provided shall not entitle USER to a return of the deposit'

Security: USER shall provide at USER's expense adequat€ and appropriate suPewilion and

security as to insure the safety and security of the public, personnel and Outdoor Forest Theater

during occupancy.

lnspection: ClTy reserves the right to enter any and all part_s of the Forest Theater at times for

the purpose of exarnining s.me to ensure compliance by USER with the terms of this Agreement

Liability Insurance. During the term of this License Agreement, USER shall procure and maintain

inJurlior." and effect at LSER's expense:r(ii commercialgeneral liability insurance with a limit

of not less than One Million Doltars (S1,0OO,OOO.OO) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars

!eneral aggregate($2,000,000.00); a utomobi le lia bility insu ra nce with a mi nim um of

Sf,Om,Od6.Odtimit per accident; and Workers'Compensation.lnsurance as required by the

Stjte oi California; and employer/s liability insurance with a minimum 51,000,000.00 limit per

.iiiJ"r, insuring against .it li"Oltity of USER and CITY for bodily injury and property damage and

personal a adveitiSng injury arising out of or in connection with USER, use and occupancy of

if,.-fi."nt" Area and itso insuring fierformance by USER) of the indemnity provisions set for in

Section l"0of this License Agreement. The CITY shall be named as an additional insured by

endorsement. USER shall piovide CITY with the necessary Certificates of lnsurance evidencing

ClTy as additio,nal insured to the Community Activities Department. The amount of such

general liability insurance shall not limit USER's liability nor relieve USER of any obligations

Inder this License Agreement. The general liability insurance policy shall name CITY, and its

officers, officials, boirdS, commiSsions, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional insured

parties ihere under, and shall be endorsed to provide that: (i) the insurance coverage there

under shall be primary with respect to CITY; and (ii) no cancellation or reduction in coverage will

be made without thirty (30) days prior written notice to CITY by the carrier. As a condition

precedent to CITY performance pursuant to this Agreement, USER shall file a certificate of

insurance with the Community Activities Department two weeks before move-in date showing

that they have in effect the insurance required by this agreement. USER shall file a new or

amended certificate of insurance promptly after any change is made to any insurance policy

which would alter the information on the certificate then on file.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

-1.'.
lL/



ATTACHMENT 1

20.

21.

Assignment. USER shall not assign, sublease or transfer any interest in this Agreement' or

p.iriiitfr. use of the Outdoor F6rest Theater by any person(s) other than USER' its guests'

agents, volunteers and employees without the prior written consent of the CITY'

Books and Records. uSER shall keep full and detailed accounts and exercise such controls as

may be necessary for proper financial management under this Agreement; and the accounting

and control systems shall'be satisfactory to ihe CITY. The CITY and the CITY'S auditor shall be

afforded access to the Uif n', records, books, correspondence 
-and 

other date relating to this

Agreement tor a periodof one (L) year after iinal payment, or for such longer period 
T 11, 

O"
Agreement for a period of one (L) year after tinal payment, Qriror sucn rorrB,el PeI ruu o

required by law. ln addition, USER agrees to make said re-cOfd*books, correspondence and

other date relating to if ii ngr""r.it available to C;TY aiiffis principal place of business upon

1)

23.

against the other, (formal
in MontereY CountY,

,reasona ble attorneY's fee
tie,and such fee shall be

shall be

-ll



ATTACHMENT 1

FOREST THEATER USE AGREEMENT

Exhibit "A"

Lots one to Fifteen inclusive in Block 85 as shown and so designated on the map of Addition

Number 5 to carmel-by-the-sea, Monterey county, california, filed on the date of February 9,1970,

now on file and on record in the office of the County Recorder of th-q$ounty of Monterey, State of

California, in Map Book Two, Cities and Towns, at page 22' 
.,r.,.*,,,

1U



ATTACHMENT 1

OUTDOOR FOREST THEATER USE AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT,,B,,

Final payment and Gross Receipts must be made to the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea's office within

five (5) business days of performance or, in the case of a series, five (5) business days of last

performance.

RATES AND CHARGES FOR FOREST THEATER

Rental of the outdoor Forest Theater includes use of dressing rooms, backstage area and box office'

t. Technicalwork or rehearsals - No admission charged:szs.ooy'aay

2. Admission charged or other consideration, per performance: t10%) of Gross Receipts, which

is total gate, or s25.00 per day whichever is greater. where fees are expressed as a

percentage of gate receipts, said receipts shall include allsums from gross ticket sales

whatsoever, with no deductions allowable for taxes, costs or other expenses. User shall

submit ticket sales receipts for each and every performance along with payments'

3. A clean-up security deposit of s200 will be required by the city.

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS:

ln event of cancellation, the city of Carmel-by-the-Sea reserves the right to retain the total payment

unless another user reserves the designated space (on that date) in which case the City will retain S100

to cover the administrative costs including rebooking.

USER agrees to pay the clTY szs.oo for each requested use date and on performance dates, a minimum

of S25.OO for each performance or ten pet'cent (10%) of gross receipts whichever is greater. (Gross

receipts are defined as total gate.)

The City has provided a schedule of payments due forthe 2016 season attached as Schedule "A"'

CONTRACT AND PAYMENT

A contract will be drawn up, and only after such contracts have been approved and signed by the User

and the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea City Administrator, and only after appropriate advance payments

have been made willthe agreement become valid. All payments for the use of the theater and/or

supplemental facilities will be made in strict accordance with the payment schedule included in the

contract. Failure to make any payment as scheduled will terminate the contract forthwith. Any User

who charges admission or collection any donation, gift, or other consideration as a condition of

admission will make his/her receipts available to the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea City Administrator for

inspection and will pay any additionalfees [based on ten percent (10%) of gross receipt] due the City' All

payments are to be made in cash, check or bank money order. First payment is to be made prior to

access to premises.

1b



ATTACHMENT 1

FOREST THEATER USE AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT,,C"

ALL CONDITIONS AND TERMS SPECTFIED IN THE FOREST THEATER USE AGREEMENT APPLY TO THE

INDOOR FOREST THEATER.

collects af*itilohat

outside performer (other than < Name o-f User Group>)iffiI b ved by the CltYlW not be rn

conf|ict with other performances at thqr, l]heater' 
'tti'l:illr,i':?,

CONTRACT AND PAYMENT
_i'riut:.]1

A contract will be drawn.up,.and qnry rtt"r ru*,qontacts.#,&t*e,..1 ap&eO and signed by the USER
..:ill.r:i::r'i1i!' "l:tli:l

and city Administratosffir"ntiri$.,.si ctw, adiibn$6&i apiiil@,.gte advance payments have been

made will the agreem"nt bu.or. valQ. All payments for the use of Ihe theater and /or supplemental

facilities will be made in strict accordance wfth the piifuent schedule included in the contact. Failure to

make a pay4ffi duled$Strd€ffiii

collects any donations, gifL or other con
Conteii&:fprthwith. Any USER who charges admission or

availabi$*$-the City administmtor for inspection anifffll pay any additional fee (based on ten percent

(r0%)of'&r.eceipts) oue'i@elw. A$fuents are to be made in cash, check or bank money order.

First paymerit$38, Oe made prio*& accesS"tiiir

fof.i*ts.pectio n a nifiM
rY. An ents are t

b accesitd$remises.

Date:

7+



ATTACHMENT 1

FOREST THEATER USE AGREEMENT

Exhibit "D"

The facilities will be based in accordance with the conditions and requirements set forth in the "Rules

and Regulations for Use of Facilities," a true copy of which is attached hereto, Schedule "C", and User

acknowledges that he is aware of these regulations. User Agreement Erants the right to use only the

facilities, equipment, and services as are specified. User acknowledges that he/she is aware of the

extent and kind of such equipment and services.

The City will permit the User to use the facilities herein described for the periods of time herein set out,

except that if such facilities are rendered untenable by fire, windstorm, earthquake, or other

catastrophe or act of God, this User agreement will be deemed canceled as between the parties; and

the City shall have no obligation to User by virtue of the execution of the agreement except for the

refund of any advance payment and/or deposit.

User agrees to obtain written permission to perform any material subject to copyright from the owner

of the copyright prior to performing the material at FOREST THEATER. User agrees to indemnify and hold

harmless the City from any and all claims, damages, or expenses arising from any violation of or

infringement upon copyrights by User.

Schedule,,B,,isattaChedforSeasonbeginning<>.
for the Forest Theater facility, Schedule "A" will be revised at the discretion of the City.

PROTECTION OF PROPERry AND FACLIT]ES

It is the responsibility of the User to protect all property and facilities in use by User, his/her agents,

employees, audiences or anyone else authorized to enter property by User. An appropriate Clean-up

and Security deposit may be required of each User. At the close of the contract period, the cost of

replacing any loss, repairing any damage or performing any excessive clean-up will be deducted from

the deposit. This includes but is not limited to damage caused to any technical equipment by misuse by

User/staff/technicians/volunteerS or any 3rd party vendor. lf the cost of such correction exceeds the

amount of the security deposit, the deposit shall be forfeit and the remainder due shall become a debt

owed by the User to the City and shall be subject to collection as provided by the law. Any unused

portion of the deposit will be refunded.

FOOD AND BEVERAGES

No food or beverages or other comestibles can be furnished, sold, or given away anywhere in and about

Forest Theater facilities without first obtaining written permission from the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea's

City Administrator office. Such permission can be revoked at any time. The request for the permit shall

state the following:

a) Type of food, beverage, or other comestibles or merchandise to be furnished.

b) The name(s) of the person(s) who will furnish the food, beverages, or other comestibles and

operate the space.

1-'



ATTACHMENT 1

c) The name, address, and telephone number of the responsible person plus the same

information for the person(s) responsible for the cleanup of space used.

Health Department Permit Number

Resale License Number

User will also furnish to the City a copy of each and every Alcoholic Beverage Control License obtained

for the premises.

FOREST THEATER USE AGREEMENT

Exhibit "D" continued

AGREEMENTS

Userwillcomplete a ForestTheater Event Reportforeach event. Form to be supplied bythe City.

prior to the beginning of any set construction. All plans, and revisions for all plans, must

be drawn in accordance with standard construction practices and meet all Uniform

Codes and State safety requirements for stage/set construction at the Forest Theater.

Plans and subsequent construction are the responsibility for stage/set Construction at

the Forest Theater. Plans and subsequent construction are the responsibility and liability

of the user and subject to inspection and approval by the City.

notarized Hold Harmless,Agreement, and provide a liability insurance endorsement

policy in the amount of S1,000,000.00 adding the City, it's employees, elected officials,

officers and agents as additionally insured pursuant to the Municipal Code of the City of

Ca rmel-by-the-Sea.

inspected by City staff for compliance with fire and safety regulations. Any equipment

not in compliance ordeemed unsafe cannot be used in the theater. The City accepts no

responsibility for the equipment, its storage, loss, theft or damage.

electricians, and permits must be obtained from the City Planning and Building

department. All technicians and technical/stage crew personnel must already be

trained on equipment and meet the necessary skill sets of equipment operation.

dumpster-area clean and free of trash, waste, and rubbish. Any costs for cleaning

incurred by the City will be charged to the user.

disabled audience members to and from their theater seats.

7a



ATTACHMENT 1

lf conflicts or disagreements arise in regard to this Forest Theater use Agreement and

are not resolved, the matter will be given to the City Administrator' All decisions by the

City Administrator are final.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

city will provide to the best of its ability and at its expense, utilities, maintenance of

public restrooms, and waste management services. Any mechanical failure will not void

this contract; the city will make every effort to correct technical and mechanical

problems regarding utilities but cannot be held liable if such problems are beyond City

control. Available dressing rooms will be provided a&llQ cost to the User' All other

services or conditions will be at the expense of U-gffi$itr is responsible for contracting

the city to arrange deliver and pick-up of a dump-sgL during set-up/strike' The city will

clean the site prior to opening. The user .qreq to ab-rde by all rules and regulations as

out of the City in Exhibit "D" and Scheg!$g,ry' 't*{,.

., .. ,,1:,t1,.

'i;j,ti:ir:. .itial!:ii:li

:

n



ATTACHMENT 1

FOREST THEATER USE AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT "E"

All visitors, including people with disabilities, must be able to move about with safety and ease' lt is the

responsibility of the USER to develop and implement a plan to provide a method of providing accessible

parking to patrons with disabilities who are attending events in private vehicles' The plan will address

the issue of getting people with mobility impairment safely between their vehicles and the theater box

office and seating, and will address both the outdoor and lndoor Theaters'

Tenancy will

78



ssoo.o, to cover the administrative costs incruding rebooking. 
..,:,,:i::,.iiiir:11

USER agrees to pay the Clry SZS.OO for each requested use 43.9- f , performance dates, a minimum

of 525.00 for each performance or ten percent (10%l of tl1giffi&':@'ipts whichever is greater. (Gross

receipts are defined as total gate.) 
,,,,,,ii1i'tt'' 

t 
'

USER agrees to pay g< > (< > tech/rehe"relffi; in days) advance payment due no later than

< > and further agrees that additional paymen,t ,!." made asJollows: t1QL.

'l,O% ofgross receipts for [namp$play] no latei f '
and

10%of gross receipts for [name of '-@] nol@5han < Dffi*r:.
and . 'r,,l.ii*;1'., '.t::.

ATTACHMENT 1

OUTDOOR FOREST THEATER USE AGREEMENT

SCHEDULE "A"

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS:

ln event of cancellation, the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea reserves the right to retain the total payment

unless another user reserves the designated space (on that date) in which case the City will retain

signed: ,..t*t{*t};;iiiirrr,,, ''r;,:}i;:iri ''-' ".,,,.",... ... .. Date: 

-

7q



ATTACHMENT 1

OUTDOOR FOREST THEATER USE AGREEMENT

SCHEDULE,,B"
(List Scheduled Performances)

yo



ATTACHMENT 1

OUTDOOR FOREST THEATER USE AGREEMENT

SCHEDULE "C"

Forest Theater Rules and Regulations

Smoking

Occupancy

Lighting

Exits

Materials

Personnel

Fire

No smoking shall be permitted within any part of the Forest Theater including

stage and backstage areas. All programs printed by the User shall bear a

statement indicating the regulations on smoking'

Theater occupancy will be limited to 540 persons; in addition, the number of

ot exceed 540 per event. When selecting and producing

performances, User shall be sensitive to the'neighbors concern for noise and the

beauty of the surroundings. No standing or sitting in aisles or on the stairways is

permitted. The User will not perrnit any person to act in any manner, which

creates a hazard, an annoyance or a disturbance within any City premises; and

the User will immediately take all needful corrective action should such a

situation arise.

All legally required lights must be on at all times when facilities are occupied'

No exits from any r6om, theater, stage, backstage or dressing rooms areas shall

be blocked or be permitted to be blocked or obstt'ucted in any way.

Only non-flammable materials shall be u.sed in the construction of scenery,

drops, props,'drapes, or decorations, unless they have been treated with flame-

retardant material approved by the State Fire Marshal. Any flammable scenery

Or materialsfound on the stage, backstage area, or any other area, shall be

immediately removed regardless of whether or not a performance is taking

place.

All front-of-house and backstage personnel will be subject to the direction of

the person in charge. An adult individual (21 years or older) must be present for

all activities associated with this use agreement.

The Fire Marshal/Carmel Fire Department shall be responsible for the

enforcement of fire safety regulations. He/she may require the presence of fire

marshal, il in his/her opinion, one is needed.

The potice chief/carmel Police Department shall be responsible for

enforcement of security regulations. lf he/she determines uniformed police are

required, User will be required to pay any costs for some.

8;l

Police



ATTACHMENT 1

Schedule "C" - continued

Parking

Sleeping

FOREST THEATER USE AGREEMENT

User shall NoT be permitted to charge for the use of parking facilities' There

shallbenoreservedparkingotherthanthatnecessarytoprovidefora
City-approved accessible managed parking plan'

overnight accommodations in house trailers, campers, recreational vehicles'

etc., on the premised will not permitted'

HOUSEKEEPING RESPONSIBI LITIES

Carmel Fire Department and the City'
. Fires in the pits are allowed only during full tech rehearsals, dress

rehearsals, and Performances

' OnlY ctean, unpainted firewood may be burned

. No painted, varnished, plywood or particle board may be burned

' No trash may be burned
. A garden hose must be available to extinguish the fires in an emergency

and after the Performance

' Fires must be extinguished after the performance and the exit of the

Patrons
. Fires must be of a size so as not to endanger the vegetation, sets,

actors, or audience
, Fires shall be extinguished immediately if the Carmel Fire Department

deems then unsafe for anY reason

the City.

the Carmel Police DePartment.

in a clean, sanitary and litter free condition and will restore the area to as good or better

condition than it was received.

area and stage immediately after each outdoor performance'

any other property, which was a result of User's activities as encompassed by this

permit, at organization's expense. City will be the sole judge of the extent of damage'

Signed:

#?

Date:



COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES AND CULTURAL COMMISSION

Staff Report

April 8, 2016

To:

From:

Subject:

Community Activities and Cultural Commissioners

Janet Bombard, Library and community Activities Director

Margi Perotti, Community Activities Coordinator

Review event and consider a request for a waiver of fees associated with

the Concours on the Avenue event

esday,August16,2o16willmarkthe10thyearoftheConcours
on the Avenue event.

The estimated fees for the event are $29,903.00, of which the event organizer is proposing to

pay $9,000.00.

ANALySIS/DlscussloN: The event continues to grow in popularity since its inception in

2007. The attendance in 2OO7 was expected to be 7,500 and currently the attendance is

1 1,000 plus spectators.

The event will be similar to last year including the use of Devendorf Park. The event includes

the use of Ocean Avenue; Junipero to Monte Verde - East and West bound lanes (including

parking); Mission; Dolores; San Carlos; Lincoln from Ocean to 6th, and Dolores and Lincoln

;; O;"rn to 7th until 9:00 P.M., or when all cars have left the venue; San Carlos to Bth until

11:00 A.M ; and a portion of San Carlos and Mission to the entrance of Red Eagle Alley. ln

addition, the parking spaces on the west side of the center island on Junipero between 3'd and

4th Avenues are used for event trucks and the south side of 6th between Lincoln and Monte

Verde are used for golf carts.

Signage in the park and throughout the event will be the similar to last year and used for

"brand partnership presentation".

As in past years, the awards pavilion will be located at Lincoln and Ocean. The pavilion

features a stage, audio system, and spectator seating. ln addition, a smaller staging area

was approved in the intersection of Mission Street and Ocean Avenue, consisting of an

elevated platform to display cars, a podium, and a microphone for the speaker. The event

organizer did not use this staging area in 2015.

x j

I_



Per City policy c95-06, cost Recovery section, "the city shall not bear financial burdens

created by private, short-term use of public spaces unless there is a direct connection to the

City through sponsorship or fundraising." The policy further states that "the staff committee

will estimate direct costs for Police, Fire, ambulance, trash, portable toilets, Forest and Beach,

Recreation, public works and Administration. Permit applications will be billed for actual staff

hours, equipment and associated costs, these are considered non-eligible fees"' The City

tracked overtime hours for police, Public Works and Community activities staff in 2015 and

calculated this cost for the day as $8,430.00'

ln order to comply with City codes and policies, staff is proposing that the event organizer

reduce the subsidy of public funding and assume responsibility of the $29,903.00 in fees

associated to the event.

The event organizer has requested and received a waiver of fees every year since the

inception of the event in 2OOT . He is again requesting a waiver of the 2016 Concours on the

Avenue event fees in the amount of $20,903'00' The total Council Discretionary Fund budget

for fee waivers if $27,500, and if this request is granted would leave $6597.00 available for

the remainder of FY 2016117 for other event organizers requesting fee waivers'

The Community Activities and Cultural Commission has reduced the subsidy to other event

organizers and has asked them to find ways to reduce the subsidy for public funds for their

event.

The Commission has three options to consider:

1) The Commission can recommend to City Council that the Policy should be applied and

no fees would be waived due to ineligibility;

2) Make a recommendation that no more than $5,000.00 in fees be waived per the policy,

which the event organizer may appeal to the City Council for additionalfee waivers;

3) The Commission can choose not to apply policy and make a recommendation to the

City Council to subsidize the event. lf this option is chosen, staff would recommend the

event organizer pay for all overtime staff hours (considered non-eligible fees) in the

amount of $8,400 and a minimum of half of the eligible fees in the amount of

g10,451 .50. The City would then subsidize the remaining unpaid fees in the amount of

$10,451 .50.

\-(-/
I



ATTACHMENTS:
Attachmen I A: 2016 Concours on the Avenue special Event Permit Application

Attachment B: partial list of documentation required for a fee waiver as per city council

Policy C12- 02 as submitted by event organizer

Attachment C: Estim ated 2016 fees for Concours on the Avenue

Attachment D: city Foricy cg5-06, short-term Use of pubric spaces and Municipal Buildings

for SPecial Events
Attachment E: City council Policy c12-02, Event Fee Waivers

t'5



DFAflT $4-
Hbv*t+kd ,/rr (tU

Special Event Application
Non-Beach Events

Commu nity Activities Department
6lt6lz0ts

\a



EVENT DESCRIPTION

DATE OF REQUEST:

DATE OF EVENT:

January 7 ,2016

Tuesdav. Ausust 1.6. 201'6

EVENT ORGANIZER: Motor Club Events, LLC

EVENTTYPE: n Rthletics/Recreation
I Exhibits/Art

I Pa rade/Procession/Ma rch

X Other: Concor[S-dllgga n!e-
I Festiva l/Celebration

EVENT TTTLE: lOrH ANNUAL CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA CONCOURS ON THE AVENUE

EVENT DESCRIPTION

Be as specific and detailed as possible. lnclude ALL equipment to be utilized

sound equipment, props, generators, etc. Attach additional information on

for the event, including tents, tables, chairs,

a separate page if needed.

The Tenth Annual CBTS CONCOURS ON THE AVENUE scheduled for Tuesday, August L6,2A76 will feature

European classics (such as German, French or British automobiles) and class American Muscle cars. The vehicles

will be displayed on both sides of Ocean Avenue, allowing for pedestrian viewing of the vehicles' Ocean Avenue

will require certain street closures to allow for the parking for the vehicles and pedestrian traffic. The event cars

will be staged on san Carlos between 8:00am - 11:00am and then systematically staged within the venue. The

staging of the vehicles on ocean Avenue will involve parking the vehicles side by side along the curbline at 60

degree angles. The vehicles will be staged in a single row allowing for emergency traffic along the center median

lane of traffic (referred to as the #3 lane of traffic). An awards pavilion will be located at the intersection of ocean

Avenue and Lincoln Avenue. The event will be open to the public for viewing to benefit The carmel Foundation.

off-site parking for trucks and trailers will be provided by the event organizer. Event organizer will be seeking

sponsorship to assist in defraying the cost of the event, however event organizer will abide by all Carmel-by-the-

Sea rules and regulations governing signage and corporate sponsorship. No food or beverages will be sold within

the venue. Timeline for the day will be provided closer to the event and will include set-up, tear down, judging

times and awards presentations. Event organizer with The Carmel Foundation will notify all businesses in the

commercial district of the event in the days leading to the event. Pleose see ottoched sheet ot end.

ls this an annual event? XYes E No How many years have you been holding this event? 9 previous

TotalAnticipatedAttendance: 10,000+

APPLICANT AND SERVICE PROVIDER INFORMATION

EVENT APPLICANT NAME: Doug Freedman

ADDRESS: 2575 PEACHTREE ROAD, NE, SUITE 305, ATLANTA, GA 30305

TELEPHONE: DAY: 404-237-2633 EVENING: CELL: 404-805-1650 tAX: 4O4-237-2644

List all professional event organizers,

authorized to work on your behalf to
event service providers, or commercial fund-raisers hired by you that are

plan, produce and/or manage your event. Attach additional names and

Euk



CityofCarmel-by-the-SeaSpecialEventPermitApplication

information on a separate page if needed. Note: Any person, firm or business conducting or carrying on any type of

business within the city must have a city of carmel-by-the-sea business license'

1. SERVICE PROVIDER NAME:Tri Cord Tradeshow Services

ADDRESS: 738 NEESON ROAD, MARINA, CA 93933

TELEPHONE: DAY: 831-883-8600 EVENING: CELL: FAX:

CITY OF CARMEL_BY-THE-SEA BUSINESS LICENSE NUMBER:

2. SERVICE PROVIDER NAME: Glastonbury lnc. (Audio Visual)

ADDRESS: 495 ELDER AVENUE, SAND CITY, CA 93955

TELEPHONE DAY: 831-641-0880 EVENING: CELL: FAX:

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA BUSINESS LICENSE NUMBER:

3. SERVICE PROVIDER NAME: National Parking & Valet

ADDRESS: zOt-D CALLE DEL OAKS, DEL REY OAKS, CA 93940

TELEPHONE DAY: 831.-646-0426 EVENING: CELL: FAX:

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA BUSINESS LICENSE NUMBER:

4. SERVICE PROVIDER NAME: Proserve Facilities Services Hector Marquez

ADDRESS: 557 BRUNKEN AVENUE, SUITE G, SALINAS, CA> 93901

TELEPHONE DAY:831.424.2136

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA BUSINESS LICENSE NUMBER

CELL:EVENING: FAX:

SPECIAL EVENT LOCATION

please be as specific and detailed as possible. lnclude street names, intersections, parks, and/or any other pertinent

directional details. (You may continue on next page.)

Ocean Avenue, Junipero to Monte Verde East and West bound lanes (including parking), Mission, Dolores, San

Carlos, Lincoln from Ocean to 6th and Dolores and Lincoln from Ocean to 7th until 9:00 pm or when all vehicles have

left the venue, whichever comes firsU San Carlos to 8th until 11:00 am. Based on applications accepted we will use a

portion of San Carlos and Mission to the entrance of Red Eagle Alley.

The road closures needed include Ocean Avenue between Junipero and Monte Verde; Mission, Dolores, San Carlos

and Lincoln between Sixth and Ocean and Mission, San Carlos, Dolores and Lincoln between Ocean and Seventh.

Street Closures:
o Mission between 6th and Ocean Avenue

3

--- -4
X{



City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

SPECIAL EVENT LOCATION CONTINUED

Mission street between ocean Avenue and 7th (Access will remain to wells Fargo parking lot and the carmel

Plaza parking garage during event)

o W/B Ocean Avenue from Junipero Avenue to Monte Verde

o E/BOcean Avenue from Junipero Avenue to Monte Verde

e san carlos between ocean Avenue and 7th BARRICADE AT WELLS FARGO BANK (Access will remain to wells

Fargo parking lot and the Carmel Plaza parking garage during event)

. San Carlos between 6th and Ocean Avenues

r Dolores Street between Ocean Avenues and 7th

r Dolores Street between 6th and Ocean Avenues

o Lincoln between Ocean and 7th

r Lincoln between 6th and Ocean

Devendorf park will be used for brand partnership presentation on Tuesday, August 16. Erect an approx.20'x40'tent

and outfit with generalfurnishings. Erect an approx. 10'x1o'tent for general storage. Tents will use water barrels

and/or weights for tie downs (not stakes). Display seven vehicles and two motorcycles. Twelve signs of various types

(no lights, balloons or streamers), included in total number of signs. set up time will not begin 12:00 am on811'6/16'

Breakdown of the park, including removal of all event items and cleaning will be completed by 9:00 pm on Tuesday

glt6lrs. Any tents placed in the park and event will need to be inspected by the fire department prior to use. This

can be arranged through the Monterey Fire Department via the Community Activities Department'

NARRATIVE TIMELINE
please provide a narrative timeline of your event. Attach additional information on a separate page if needed

ADMISSION - please explain
Willthis event require admission, entry or participation fees? ny.t nXftfo
lf so, please list any and ALL required admission, entry or participation fees, including sponsorship fee

Number of HoursTo (lnclude AM/PM)From (lnclude AM/PM)

Set up / Load in

Tuesdav, 8/t6lt6
Tuesday, 8/L6176Take down/ Load out

TOTAL HOURS REQUIRED

There is no charge for the spectators. This event is open to the public. Vehicle entrants pay an Application for Entry fee'

tl
i
I

l\



City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event

SITE PLAN/ ROUTE MAP
oute map(s) of your event. lnclude the

following information in your site plan / route:
./ An outline of the entire event venue, including the names of all streets, intersections, or areas that are

part of the venue. lf the event involves a moving route of any kind, indicate the direction of travel and

all street or lane closures.
,/ The location of all fencing, barriers and/or barricades. lndicate any removable fencing for emergency

a reas.
,/ The provisions for minimum twenty foot (20') emergency access lanes throughout the event venue'

The location of all portable restrooms, including accessible portable restrooms. Note: portable toilets

are not permitted on Scenic Avenue or the beach'
,/ The location of all stages, platforms, scaffolding, bleachers, grandstands, canopies, tents, booths,

cooking areas, trash containers and dumpsters, and other temporary structures' Note: portable toilets

are not permitted on Scenic Avenue or the beach'
./ A detail or close-up of a food booth or cooking area configuration, including booth identification of all

vendorscookingwithflammablegasesorbarbecuegrills.
,/ Generatorlocations and/orsourceof electricity. Note: generatorsarenotpermittedonthebeachor

Scenic Ave.
,/ Placement of vehicles and/or trailers.
,/ Exit locations for outdoor events that are fenced and/or locations within tents and tent structures'

./ The location of first aid facilities and ambulances if applicable.

,/ ldentification of all event component that meet accessibility standards.

,/ Attach additional detailed map information on separate page(s) as necessary.

RESERVING PARKING STALLS

ationtomarkthelocationoftheparkingstall(s)youwishtoreSerVe.PleaseNote:
parking stalls on scenic Avenue and in the Del Mar parking lot cannot be reserved. Parking stalls cannot be reserved on

Tuesday and ThursdaY of Car Week.

please indicate specifically how the parking stall(s) will be used. Required information must include, but is not limited

to, the following: how many stalls, the number of days the reservation will cover, whether the stalls will be for private

or public use, start and end times each day, how many cars are expected to use the space(s), etc.

Signs to be posted 48 hours in advance. All parking stalls in the following locations:

On the north side of ocean Avenue between Junipero and Monte Verde (B), on the south side of Ocean Avenue between Junipero and Monte

Verde (B), on the north ,iu. iio; o.tween Junipero and Monte Verde, on both sides of Junipero between 6th and ocean Avenues (MST), on

Mission Street betwee" o..* r.a J o"".r", on virrion between ocean Avenue and 7th, on San Carlos between ocean Avenue and 6th

Ave nue, on Sa n ca rlos 0",*". 
" 

a; a ,o;lr" "r" 
(6a m-noon only B/t6/76), Sa n Ca rlos betwee n ocea n Ave nue and 7'h , sa n ca rlos between 7th

;;;8;ii6;;- noonj, ,oror", street between o.".n nr.nr" rnd'6ii, ootolus between ocean and 7'h 1B1, Lincoln between ocean and 6'h,

Lincotn between ocean ""oliitl, ".;.;J; Jiti b",*""n Junipero and Monte Verde, Monte Verde between ocean and 6th (for MST), east

side of Casano6 n"t*..n i.".n a ,in fro1. r,nsit, designed handicap parking will be on E/s Junipero between ocean and -/'n,s1B center isle

Junipero between 3'd and 4th (for Doug's trucks). Any No Parking signs, barricades inside the event will be removed by 8:00 am. Two parking

stalls on the south side of 6th il",*u.,,"r,*oln and Monte Verde - behind the Pine lnn for golf carts only at the corner of Lincoln and 6th the

first two spaces..On the South side east and west corners of 6th at Lincoln, Dolores San Carlos and Mission

flXy"r nruo Willyoubeerectinganystructures(stanchions,etc.)orplacinganyobjectssuchascarpetinginthe
road? lf yes, a temporary encroachment permit - which will be issued to in conjunction

with your special event permit - will be necessary. Attach a copy of a site plan detailing all

structures/objects and their placement to this document'

5

'.- (J
/) t-J



CityofCarmel-by-the-seaSpecialEventPermitApplication

n nruo willyou be using a valet service to manage parking in the reserved stalls? lf yes, please provide the

required information on page 5 and attach a copy of the valet parking plan to this rrnrrrrls6f'

Company name: Motor Club Events, LLC

Address:2575 Peachtree Road NE, Suite 305

State: GA> ZiP:3

felephone number: O 404.237 .2633 C 404.805'1"650

City: Atlanta

SECURITY PLAN
ecurityco,panytodeve|opandmanageyourevent,ssecurity

plan? XYes n ruo

Security Organization: UretskY

Address:

Telephone: Day: Cell: Fax:Evening:

Private Patrol OPerator License #

Attach a copy of the security company's valid private Patrol operator's License issued by the State of California to your

application.

A total of two security guards will be on duty at Junipero and Ocean as well as Monte Verde and Ocean during the

course of the event.

MEDICAL PLAN
rofessionalemereencVmedicalservicesorovidertodevelooandmanaeeyour

event's medical plan? X Yes E ruo

Medical Services Provider Name: Monica Nathan,

Address:

Telephone: Day:

Fax:

Evening: 831.373.3610 Cell:831.601,7469

please describe your medical plan. tnclude your communications plan, the number, certification levels (MD, RD,

paramedic, EMT) and types of resources that will be at your event and the manner in which they will be managed and

deployed. lnclude location(s), hours of setup, and dismantle of medical aid areas. You may attach the plan to this

application if necessary.



Citv of Ca rme l-by-the-Sea Speci{lygl! Ign' it

all CitY' CountY' State and Federal

access requirements. You may attach more detailed information if necessary'

Xv", f] ruo Will there be an accessible Clear path of Travel throughout your event venue? Please describe:

ACCESSIBILITY PLAN

,* *^."", -il* *rked in a single row allowing for emergency traffic along the center median lane of traffic

(referred to as the #3 lane of traffic)'

Handicap parking will be provided on E/S Junipero between ocean and 7'h. Designated parking signs will be posted the

morningoftheevent. TheparkingareawillextendfromthecornerofOceanAvenuesouthtoSeventhAvenue'

ffiyoudevelopedaDisabledparkingand/orTransportationPlan(includingtheuseofshuttle
services) for your event? lf yes, please describe:

Ey", Xruo will a minimum of to% of portable rest rooms at your event be accessible? lf no, indicate why'

Please describe your accessible portable restroom plan:

The event coordinator has agreed to hire contracted cleaner, Proserve Hector Marquez to maintain the City restrooms

in both cleanliness and supplies located at Devendorf Park, Lincoln and Sixth and Picadilly Park'

nyes EXr,lo Will all signage be placed so pedestrian flow will not obstruct its visibility? (Note: all event signage must

be approved by the City Planning Department.) Please describe:

Event signage will be located at various intersection corners throughout the event location. The signs are intended to

be the same as in previous years, consisting of Meter boards 3.2 feet wide and 6 feet high standing up in bases' There

will be no lights, balloons or streamers attached to the signs. The type of signage for this event is not part of the

general plan of the Clty, however the event requires this type of signage to enhance the sponsorship and overall quality

of the event. Midpoini signage may occur by sponsor. lt is anticipated to have sponsor signage on each corner of the

interioroftheeventandatoptidomesplacedintheintersectionsof Mission,sancarlosandDolores. Thetotal number

of signs placed on corners or street area within the event shall not exceed 62. This includes banners in Devendorf Park'

This number does not include the banners placed on poles on the center island s by Tri-Cord.

I yus E XNo lf an information center is provided at your event will customer services representatives be

available to assist disabled individuals? lf yes, please describe:

r



CityofCarmel-by-the-SeaSpecialEventPermitApplication

X yes I ruo lf all areas of your event venue cannot be made accessible will maps, programs, or information be made

available to show the location of accessible rest rooms, parking, drinking fountains, and first aid stations? Please

E y., nX uo will your event involve the use of a parking andlor shuttle plan? lf yes, please describe (or

provide an attachment of your plan).

n X*, tr *o will your event involve the use of traffic safety equipment? lf yes, please list all equipment'

Equipment ComPanY Name:

Address:

Telephone: Day: Cell:

Equipment SetuP:

Equipment PickuP:

Evening:

Date:

Date:

Time:

Time:

Fax:

Envr E pvt

trAM trPVI

^, 
,l* *r", ,f ,l* 

"vent, 
an information booth will provide visitors with the locations of the above mentioned items'

Each block on the event footprint will also have a volunteer class Host that is trained and outfitted with a binder that

has maps enabling them to best answer any questions relating to the locations of services noted above'

SAFETY EQUIPMENT

Fire extinguishers as well as kitty litter (in case of spills) will be available during the event'

AMPLtFIED SOUND AND/OR ENTERTAINMENT

Xt", tr *o Are there any amplified sound and/or musical entertainment features related to your event? lf yes,

complete the following information or provide an attachment listing all band/performers, type of broadcast or type of

music, sound check and performance schedule.

Number of stages: one temporary awards pavilion (see below)

Location of stage(s): At the intersection of Lincoln and ocean

Number of performers / Bands: n/a (add singing of anthem, closing God Bless America)

performer(s)/Band name(s), type of broadcast, andlor music type(s): The awards pavilion will be

utilized for announcements and awards presentations. A smaller staging center will potentially be located in the

intersection of Mission and Ocean for further commentary and announcement on displayed vehicles' This

staging area willconsist of an elevated platform to display selected cars, a podium and microphone forthe

speaker.

.*L\-l\



City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event permit Application
Xyer Eruo Will sound checks be conducted prior to the event?

rf yes, start ,,ru,l-zso i I Xnru E prvr ,,,F,so--l Inrv 1Xprvr

Xyes Eruo Willsound amplification be used?

rf ves, start time: 8:30 EXn'r E pvr ,,n,rr, ,,rf rg0 --l Earvr rXp'r

[] yes D ruo Do you plan to have a patron dance component to either live or recorded music at your event?
lf yes, please describe:

Please describe the sound equipment that will be used for your event. rncrude how the sound equipment will be used,location(s) of the sound equipment and how the equipment will be powered:

Audio system speakers will be located in Lincoln, Dolores, san carlos and Mission intersections with oceanAvenue and can be operated together or independently. A sound system will be utilized in the venue for thepurpose of announcements, background music, National Anthem, awards presentation and staff will workwith police officers assigned to the interior of the event monitoring the volume throughout the day andadjust if necessary by request to event organizer

Ey"s X ruo Does your event involve the use of alcoholic beverages?
lf yes, then please check all that apply:

fl freeluost Atcohol

f] Rlcohotsates

E Host and Sale Alcohol

E seet

E g"er and Wine

E B"ur, Wine and Distilled Spirits

Please describe your security plan to ensure the safe sales or distribution of alcohol at your event:

%)



Citv nf Carmpl-hrr-thp-Spa Snprial Frrcnt Pprmit Annlication

rooo coNcESSlONs OR PEEqAE4IleNl

dconcessionandlorpreparationareas?lfyes,pleasedescribehowfoodwill

be served and/or Prepared:

-Ive, X No Do you intend to cook food in the event area?

will be used:

lf yes, please specify method(s) and all equipment that

MERCHANDISE

The organizer may or may not be selling event programs and posters at the event' Policy C95-06 allows the sale of

event merchandise.

Ir", I Xrvo Will items or services be sold at your event? lf yes, attach a complete list of vendors and describe the

items or services they will be providing:

require portdbte restrooms ot ony event. The number ond type witt be determined by City Stoff'

lf No: Please exPlain:

lf Yes: Proposed total number of portable toilets:

Portable Restroom ComPanY Name:

Address:

Telephone: Day: Evening:

Date:

Date:

Cell Fax:

Equipment SetuP:

Equipment Pickup:

Time:

Time:

Nt\r\.r l\\11i ,. ,r'

E nvr I prvr

Invr Eprvr

PORTABLE REST ROOMS

Ir", tr* Doyouplantoprovideportablerestroomfacilitiesatyourevent? Note:thecityreservestherightto

10



City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

SANITATION AND RECYCLING

ffiTffJ#riilil;r,;ffi;;;; ;"".*',n, containers, and a ptan for waste stream diversion. rhe Citv reserves the
t t- - -:L.

right to require portable restrooms ot ony event. The number and type witl be determined by City

Per Municipal code section 8J4,the use of single-use carryout plastic bags is prohibited at any sF - -

Additionally, cups, plates, or any type of food or liquid containers made of styrofoam are not permitted'

Sanitation Company Name: TriCord Trade Showw Services

Address: 738 Neeson Road, Marina, CA

Telephone: Day: 831-883-8600

EquiPment SetuP:

Equipment Pickup:

Evening:

Date:

Date:

Fax:

Time:

Time:

I nvr E prvr

Eavr E prvr

Event organizer will provide their own dumpster and personnel to clean during the event and immediately after the

conclusionoftheevent. ThetrashplanincludestheuseofTricordrradeshowservices. Twopersonnel hiredbythe

event coordinator responsible for picking up and emptying trash during the event' Trash will be hauled away from

theeventwithuseof apick-uptruckprovidedbyTricord. Theeventcoordinatoragreestomaintaincontroloftrash

throughouttheeventandensureproperclean-upofareaimmediatelyfollowingtheconclusionoftheevent' 
The

event coordinator agrees to be the primary contact for Tricord should there be a need to coordinate additional trash

collectionduringtheevent. lnaddition,four(3yd)dumpsterswill needtobesuppliedfortheremovaloftrashfrom

the event. These dumpsters will be placed outside the immediate event area and used throughout the event for

immediate removal of trash.

Location(s) of dumpsters, trash cans, recycling containers:

MITIGATION OF IMPACT

EYes I ruo Have you met with the

directly impacted by your event? lf yes,

residents, businesses, places of worship, schools and other entities that may

please attach a complete list of these entities. lf no, please explain:

Designated delivery loading zones will be coordinated through the cPD.

X Ves I ruo Do you have a sample of the notice that you propose to distribute two weeks prior to your event?

lf yes, please attach. lf no, please explain:

T



]NSU RANCE REQU I REMENTS

City of Carmet-Uy-tfre-Sea Specia

or more' ALL ProPertY and

tocations that are to be utitized / insured ,rri b. listed and reflect the citv's interest': tl:^:ti:?:,,::".0,t:';r*t 
::"*locatlons rnaI dle tu u

must read as forows: The City of carmel-by-the-sea, its pubric officiars, officers, agents, and employees are names as

additionally insured in respect to <EVENT> on <DATE>. This information is typed in the "Description of

operations/Locations/vehicles/Exclusions Added by Endorsement/special Provisions' A separate' "Additionally lnsured"

endorsement page, with the same wording as above, is arso required. rf appricable, proof of workers compensation is

arsorequired.Theporicymustspecifycommencementandexpirationdatesforcoverageoftheevent' 
NAME/ADDRESS

oF rNsuRED must read:city of carmer-by-the-sea, po BoxCC, Carmer, cA 93921. The name of the insurance company

writingthepolicy,policynumber,address,phoneandfaxmustbeincluded'Thelnsurancecompanymustbea
company doing business in california and must be rated A+ or better. The rating of the company must be attached to

the Certificate of Liability/Additionally insured Endorsement'

please attach a copy of your proof of insurance to this document. lnsurance certificate matching all previous years

provided no less than 30 days prior to event'

I*, I 
^" 

," ,* intend to request a waiver of event fees? lf yes, please answer the following questions:

Iyes x I no ls the Event organizer/Applicant a commercial entity?

I yes NoX ls the Event organizerlApplicant a bona fide tax exempt, nonprofit entity? lf yes, attach a copy of your

IRS 501(c) tax exemption letter providing proof and certifying your current tax exempt, non-profit

stat us.

IXves Iwo Are patron admission, entry, sponsorship or participation fees required? If yes, please provide

amounts:

S250.O0 per Application for Entry accepted

Iyes Iruo Are vendorfees required? lf yes, please provide amounts:

Estimated gross receipts including ticket, entry, vendor, product and sponsorship sales from this event'

Please explain in detail how this amount was computed:

S expenses
was com

What is the projected distribution or net dollar amount the Event Organizer/Applicant will receive from

this event? Please explain in detail how this amount was computed:

l"

nrquesr FoR wArvEE eIlyElIIEE!

t2



City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

The following additional required documentation must be attached to this document:
o Proposed budget for the event
o Anticipated economic impact on the City and community
o Anticipated positive and negative impacts of the event on the community
o What charitable contributions will be made (if any), either directly or indirectly, to the 93921. zip code

area? What is the anticipated amount or percentage of the contribution(s) and to what organization(s)

will it be made?
o Written survey of businesses and/or residents affected by the event indicating their acceptance of the

proposed event

Additional required documentation for established events that have previously received fee waivers:
o Past financial statements since inception of event
o Documentation showing actual charitable contributions to organizations within the 93921 zip code area since

inception of event

Guidelines
o The number of years for which an organization will be eligible for ongoing waivers of fees for the same event

shall be no more than three years from the inception of the event
o Charitable contributions will be made to charitable organizations within the 939212ip code area

o The total dollar amount of fee waivers authorized each fiscal year shall not exceed 527,500
o The City shall waive no more than S5,000 in fees for a special event
o Priority will be given to organizations that provide educational and/or community programs and events that are

open to the general public free of charge

, 
REGULATIONS AND GUIDELINES THAT PERTAIN TO SPECIAL EVENTS I

The f
1. Applications for a Special Event permit must be submitted at least sixty (60) days in advance of the event.

2. Per City Policy C95-06, conditions that require a Special Event permit for use of public property include the following:
o A request for the private use of any portion of City property to the exclusion of the general public

. Any request that involves the support of any commercial enterprise
o A request that involves sound equipment greater than a 12 volt system
. Any request that involves special outside or City support, including - but not limited to - traffic control, traffic

cones, city equipment or staffing, signage, barricades, portable restrooms, etc.
. Any request that involves the erection of any structure, including -but not limited to- stage, tents, arches, etc.
. Any request that involves a gathering or assemblage of 50 or more people
o Any request that involves the use of any internal combustion engine (gas generators, etc.)
. Any request for exemption from current City codes, rules, regulations, restrictions, and policies governing

activities on city property
3. Per CMC Section 5.04.020 any event using the support of any professional or business services must

ensure that each service either has, or obtains, a City Business License.

4. Cost recovery for events that involve City staff support will be charged as follows:
r Public Works Department personnel andf or outside contract labor: a two (2) hour minimum will be

charged in order to place equipment at their locations prior to the event, brief city personnel and handle
any delays or changes in the original plan once the event starts.

o Police Department: Mandatory two Police Officers Security/Traffic Control; four hour minimum
Staffing levels will be determined by City staff.

5. All new proposed events - and recurring events for which there have been substantive changes - will be reviewed by

the Community Activities and Cultural Commission at a regular meeting.

5. Requests for exemption from current City codes, rules, regulations, restrictions, and policies governing activities on

{{
( ;.-L

l>



City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

city property _ after being reviewed by the Community Activities and curturar commission at a regular meeting -

must be authorized by the City Council at a regular meeting'

6. per city poricy crz-azarr requests for fee waivers must be reviewed by the community Activities and cultural

commission at a regurar meeting. Requests for fee waivers from events going into their fourth year or more must go

to the city council after being reviewed by the community Activities and cultural commission'

7 . percMC chapter 9.20 it is unrawfur for any person to drink any arcohoric beverage in or upon any public street'

right-of.way, alley, park; any publicly used exterior grounds of a service Station or parking lot; any school or school

ground;anypublicassemblyhallorauditorium;anymunicipalchambers,postofficeorlibrary.SpecialEventpermit
requests which involve the consumption of alcohol must go before the city council at a regularly scheduled meeting'

g. per cMC Chapte r 17.AOsigns and disprays, incruding those which are visibre from exterior areas accessible to

pedestrians and which arl flastring, self-iliuminateJ, neon, phosphorescent, glossy, incorporate internal lights or

movement or that incrude strings of sma, rights around doors or windows are prohibited' Arso prohibited are

exterior signs, displays, or other instailationi that include balloons, streamers, and other notice-attracting

appendages.
g. per cMC 12.0g.030 any event or request for a parking starl requiring any structural additions, structurar displays

and/or the professional set-up or personal set-up of such structures' may require an Encroachment Permit and prior

inspection. This includes, but is not limited to, erected structures, carpets' tents' arches' stanchions' displayed

structures, etc.

10. per CMC chapter g.74 the use of single-use carryout plastic bags is prohibited from use at any business' restaurant'

corporate or individual special event'

11. per CMC section g6.020 cups, plates, or any type of food or liquid containers made of styrofoam are not permitted'

12. Live music and sound production equipment are ailowed in parks and on the beach between the hours of 9:00 a'm'

and 10:00 p.m. for the private entertainment of people within a range of 25 feet from such equipment' and amplified

onlytothedegreesuitablefortheenjoymentofpeoplewithinarangeof25feet.

Special Event Non-refundable Processing Fee S155

Sound Permit
Film Permit

Beach Permit
Refundable Damage Deposit (Beach)

Devendorf Park (first four hours)

Devendorf Park (after first four hours)

Refundable Damage DePosit

A-Frames
Ba rricades
Traffic Cones

NO PARKING signs

Street Closure

Parking Stall

Parking Stall during Car Week, PGA Golf

Events, & Last 2 Weeks in December

Valet Service - private events (2 stall minimum)

CURRENT FEE SCHEDULE

S 27 per day

$266 per daY

$400 per daY

s2oo

s401
5300 per hour

s3s1

$25 each per daY

565 each per daY

53 each per daY

53 each

S3o5 per day (no charge for neighborhood functions)

StOO per stall Per daY

S200 per stall Per daY

S2OO per stall Per day

t4

i\t\



City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event permit Application

Encroachment Permit Ses.3s

AFFIDAVIT OF APPLICANT
Note:ThisAFFlDAVlToFAPPLlCANT(S)mustbesignedbyallparties,includinga
(including, but not limited to, any and all caterers, event planners, and contractors/vendors that will provide support
services for and/or at the event).

I certify that the information contained in the foregoing application is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and
that I have read, understand and agree to abide by the rules and regulations governing the proposed Special Event
under the Carmel-by-the-Sea Municipal Code. I understand that this application is made subject to the rules and
regulations established by the City council and/or the city Administrator or the city Administrator's designee. I agree to
comply with any other requirements of the City, County, State, FederalGovernment, and any other applicable entity
which may pertain to the conduct of the Event. I agree to abide by these rules, and further certify that l, on behalf of the
Host Organization, am also authorized to commit that organization, and therefore agree to be financially responsible for
any costs and fees that may be incurred by or on behalf of the Event to the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea. I understond thot
submitting this application octs as o request, not o guorqntee.

1..

Print Name of Event Organizer/Applicant

Signature Date

2.

Print Name of Service Provider

Business Name

Signature Date

3.

Print Name of Service Provider

Business Name

Signature Date

4.

Print Name of Service provider

Business Name

Signature

lf necessary, attach additional signature pages to this document.

C:zF,'t
,<-t---J



City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

&

1_6



CityofCarmel-by-the-SeaSpecialEventPermitApplication

Thonk you Ior completing your Special Event Permit Applicotion. Belore submitting your

_ opplicdtion, pleose review the checktist below to ensure thot you hqve completed ond attoched qll

necessory information thqt pertoins to your event'

As applicable to your request, have you:

Signed and dated Your aPPlication?

Attached your event site Plan?

Attached your event securitY Plan?

Provided a copy of your security company's Private Patrol Operator's License?

Attached your event parking and/or valet and/or shuttle plan(s)?

Attached a complete schedule for the event, including an entertainment list if applicable?

Provided samples of letters that will be distributed to impacted residents, businesses,

and other entities?

provided copies of City of Carmel-by-the-sea business or "in and about" licenses for all of the vendors you will

be using for your event?

Attached proof of insurance for your event?

Attached a copy of your event medical plan?

Attached any additional permits (County, State, Federal)that may be requlred to hold your event?

lf you are requesting a waiver of event fees, have you attached all required documentation?

EMAIL yOUR COMpLETED AppLICATION TO: mmperotti(Dci.carmel.ca.us and ibombard@ci.carmel.ca.us

Questions: Call 831-620-2020

OR

SEND yOUR COMPLETED AppL|CATION TO: community Activities Department

PO Box CC

Carmel, CA 93921

Attn: Margi Perotti and Janet Bombard

D
D
D
D
D
D

D

D

D

D
D

1+

9'v

T



City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

Additionot comments regording event description:

The event will include:

closure of East and west bound ocean Avenue from Junipero to Monte Verde. closure of Mission, Dolores, San Carlos

and Lincoln between 6,h and ocean and portions of Mission, san carlos, Dolores and Lincoln between ocean and 7th'

Each of the event streets will be shut down from 4:00AM the morning of the event until Midnight. The official event

hours would be g:30 AM to 6:00pM. Access for emergency vehicles will be maintained via ocean Avenue throughout

the venue. The #3 lane (closest to the center median) will be open in both directions throughout the event' There will

be clear intersections for emergency vehicles to pass through the event at Junipero and Monte Verde. The perimeter of

the event will be blocked oy temporary barricades that can be moved easily by event staff of emergency personnel

should it be required.

Temporary closure of san carlos between ocean and 8th to stage the vehicles before entry into the venue' Vehicles will

be arriving at about 0g30 hours. vehicles will enter the venue from the south and use san carlos Street to stage'

Vehicles will be checking in at san carlos & gth. They will then stage on San carlos between 7th and 8th. Periodically, the

vehicles will be sent to san carlos and ocean where they will be guided to their respective location on ocean Avenue'

A three tent display area will be created by the event organizer in each of the intersections of Dolores and ocean' San

carlos and ocean and Mission and ocean coordination with the fire department willtake place forthe inspection of the

tents prior to the event and the tents will not be secured to the ground by the use of stakes or other devise that may

damage the roadwaY.

Event headquarters, information will be set up at cypress lnn on Lincoln and 7th. This will be contained to a small area

within the CYPress lnn.

u.rYI
18

T



Fee Waiver Request

Date: 29 February 2016

CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA CONCOURS ON THE AVENUE was born with simple ideas...

1. Generate a quality event for one and all... Economic Development

2. Build awareness of and for The Carmel Foundation.
3. Promote contributions in dollars for The Carmel Foundation.
4. Present the event on an underutilized day and connect the dots between the pre-

reunion and reunion weekends thereby generating an important linkup of ten

days and not just a long weekend as existed before the advent of the Concours

on the Avenue event in Carmel.

Mission accomplished...
1. lncreased occupancy to at least 90% Monday, Tuesday and Wednesday of Car

Week for City inns/hotels AND brought in exactly the type of guest the City is

seeking.
2. Kept Carmel restaurants full.
3. Generated serious levels of awareness and dollars for The Carmel Foundation.
4. Created an important linkup of ten connected event days.
5. lncreased retail shop business was also at the heart of a

simple idea.
6. Worked with carmel and/or Monterey and/or california

businesses as a given from daY one.

The message that has been sent around the world about Carmel-by-the-Sea has come

from our own personal efforts to not make it about us...instead to make it about

everything and everyone else...We have given in every way.

Sincerely,

Motor Club Events, LLC
Doug and Genie Freedman

ci <



Fee Waiver Request

CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA CONCOURS ON THE AVENUE 1oth event year

Contact: Doug Freedman
404.805.1650
Motor Club Events, LLC
2575 Peachtree Rd. NE, Suite 305
Atlanta, GA 30305

1. Detailed ScoPe of Event

See application for entry and special event permit application where all detail is

provided

2. Proposed budgetfor 2016

See spread sheet

Anticipated Positive and Negative lmpacts on the Community
'1. Positive public relations message sent out to the world that is not quantifiable for

Carmel (value untold thousands)
2. Positive halo effect for Carmel that is not quantifiable (value untold thousands)

What Charitable Contributions Will Be Made:

CONCOURS ON THE AVENUE linkup with The Carmel Foundation that has built

awareness and major contributions for nine consecutive years since before the first

event year in 2007. This is a very successful two way street relationship that works for

bOth ThE CATMEI FOUNdAtiON ANd CONCOURS ON THE AVENUE.

Past Financial Statements for the past 4 years:

See spread sheet

Charitable Contributions to Organizations within the 93921 Zip Code Area since

lnception of Event:

The Carmel Foundation is the sole non-profit partner and has received $289,902.93
since 2OO7 as a result of Carmel-bythe-Sea CONCOURS ON THE AVENUE

qc"



2013 Actual
REVENU E

2016

none

s s2,s00.00

S 133,2s0.00

2015 Actual 2014 Actual

Ticket Sales

Application for Entry Fees

Brand PartnershiPs

Patrons

none
q

S

s

51,250.00

133,250.00

none
(
)

57,325.00

72,500.00

2,747.77

none

s

(

53,000.00

17,260.00

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES

(

2016

185,750.00 s 184,500.00 s L32,566.77 s 70,260.o0

20732015 20t4

Awards

Golf Carts, Special Parking Lot, Security, Convoy

Windshield Placards

Judge and Volunteer Gear

Commission to Brand PartnershiP

Convention / Trade Show Services*

Hotel - EventTeam lnc (F&B)

City Park Restroom Maintenance, Street Cleaning / Janitorial

Bank Fees

Office Supplies

Bicycle Bells

Credentials

Onsite Computer

Flowers for Awards Pavilion

Back Office Support at Event (Bob)

Architectural ExPense

Website, Domains, Etc.

Advertising or PhotograPhY

Event Pins

Carmel PD Overtime and or Special Event Permit

Additional SecuritY

Misc. Cash / Gratuity

Accounting / Tax PreP

Audio Visual

Carmel Business License

I nsu ra nce

Chamber of Commerce MembershiP

Survey

Rental Car, Airline Tickets, Misc.

Judges, Volunteers, Staging Team Hospitality

Gifts for Judges

Gifts for Entrants

Volunteer & Judge Hats

Pre-Event and Event F&B Hospitality

Consulting / Legal Services

S

s

s

s

s

$

5

5

S

s

$

s

5

S

s

S

S

$

s

s

S

s

S

s

s

)
S

s

S

s

s

)
S

S

S

S

S

s

s

s

S

s

s

5

S

S

5

s

s

s

S

)
S

S

s

s

s

)
s

S

)
s

S

s

s

S

s

5

$

S

s

$

S

$

s

s

S

s

s

)
s

S

5

5

S

s

S

s
S

s
S

)
s

s

s

s

)
)
5

s
s

S

s

S

s

)

s

$

s

s

s

S

)
s

s

s

S

s

S

s

$

$

$

s

s

S

s

5

5

$

S

s

S

)
$

S

$

s

$

s

s

s

8,000.00

8,600.00

7,500.00

900.00

2,500.00

70,000.00

25,000.00

2,700.o0

75.O0

170.00

85.00

2,100.00

2,500.00

1,000.00

1,s00.00

2,000.00

750.00

1,000.00

9,000.00

1,500.00

1",000.00

900.00

25,000.00

2s0.00

2,500.00

410.00

5,000.00

5,000.00

3,500.00

3,500.00

500.00

600.00

7,967.74

8,552.00

7,512.00

900,00

2,500.00

68,248.36

24,t36.77

2,700.9L

60.00

L67.96

2,O31.04

1,180.00

1,138.00

2,055.32

7s0.00

935.14

9,000.00

1,575.00

1,000.00

850,00

23,556.00

785.21.

2,055.00

410.00

4,751.00

3,296.22

2,625._OO

3,320.6L

100.00

594.00

7,L94.OO

7,72t.O0

7,168.00

900.00

2,000.00

38,766.00

20,630.00

900.00

90.00

168.00

81.00

t,897.OO

1,,475.00

6,500.00

3,750.00

940.00

2,647.-00

933.00

1,888.00

1,500.00

1,,000.00

500,00

20,843.OO

127.00

2,05s.00

405.00

3,800.00

5,708.00
7,000.00
3,000.00

2,000.00

7,283.00

4,466.96

7,721,.00

6,815.00

1,200.00

28,811.02

28,728.9L

770.00

90.00

403.66

6,415.20

7,500.00

3,645.18

5,500.00

929.55

2,320.O0

1,500.00

1,000.00

L,600.00

22,210.O0

122.69

2,050.00

395.00

4,717._93

1.,98L.1.4

7,O04.67

158.93
Shipping

Labor
L95,040.00 s 184,163.22 s 160,969.00 s 748,111.18

Sub-TOTAL EXPENSE

Additional Exoense Proiected for 201"6

Recycle Plan

Porta-Potties 5 ADA and 8 Regular

FreemanXP Sponsorship Gen (not related to Freedman)

TOTAL EXPENSE

GAIN / LOSS

Zero value for principals, back office or home base cost included

'Construct awards pavilion, Rental chairs, Refuse handling, Street layout,

Garabge can setup, Optidomes, stora8e and delivery of event supplies, Misc

S 3,293.00

s 2,ooo.oo

s 28,000.00

$ 228.333.00
<42.583.00>

{,,r



l'lrr' { .xrn:*'i l,:tirt**ltl :{}tr

tu$arclr 1, 4016

TE Ydhcrn it h,la} es*rerfi:

Scnce 1S*?. The farrnel fuLlnd*iion Xras been lhe nen-Sr*fi't ben*frriary of COi{CSUR5 fl},lTl-{E AVgf'dUE-

Fronr ?007 througt* ?8i,5, CSf{tfiUHS fit',lTHE AVEltd{JE irr cc,n*prt r*'ith The Carffief FsBndatisF has

gBn€r*ted $1"&9.58I.93 in finanelel silppfifi *f prsgremn*ing xrtd ggrui€es fpr seninrs ir* su'r Epnrnnilnit}.

Sf that g*tal $1S, 3.83 i.uils genera L*d in !815.

Att*rl1ed p$exs* find the,threE pege App$icatlon fer €r1try, A.E nstsd" each applicant ls r*quired to F*Y a

r*inirnurn qf $110 as sn entry fee" ,lrrdividu*[ Frutr3nts era Bndour&gcd t* giue +!:ove the $Z5O m'in]nri:r*'tr

in rupgolt Thr Canne{ Fer-r*dati+n, Any fees ouerthe $,2S0 required,fiifiiritum are ca*lected hy

csNd0uRS CI,t,t THI AU€ruuE e{'rd are forx*rded to The carrxel Fqund*iicn. Each .gear, numer&u5

indiuid{Jals h,*ue ahas*n to pr&\ridE tl'ris additlorte I trinanc$a] suppCI.t-

Thn*l.l.6h the yeart,, fr n*r6-,flber sf indir'Edraab asss*iated witir C0tr{COURs trtS THI Al,'E],lUE have ala* sent

denafiens directfo to The earnrel Fer.,ndat&Bn, lnreedE erud rei.atisnshiF.$ be!:ttle€fi th*ss ir:l'rOfuerl luith
fiof't.ctrufts 0H THg A!.EillUE and th* Feundatisn irare b*en establis.hed bey*nd tl',e eue*i ie5er"

P&e*se Feel $rgg tr c.erftfa6q rrre rrryith anf q$e5t.i4fr5,

5in€'erElyr

',,)a_ 
{__. ;.-

lMsi',*ni*l*
President/eES

ene

atY



h,tu LTI-h4ARQUES 1 94A - *)7 3

American Luxury
American Sport
Continental and EuroPe SPort

American Family Favorites
Hot Rod
Muscle Car
Historic Race

Italian Sport
Micro Car
Motorcycle
British Sport
British and European Luxury
British, European & Japanese Family Favorites

*All classes. whetl.rer listed or not, are subject to addition, nrodification or deletion'

A WAR-DS O}; Dl ST'1}"IC'T}ON

FER"R"AII{ 194?-1989
166,195,212,250
340,342,37s
Speciale. SA. SF. 365 Calilornia
275
330/36s GTC
365 GTB/4
365 GTC/4
2+2
2061246
Flat 12

308/328
Non-production Race Car

Limited Production Road Car

THE BARRY RILLIET LAGUNA SECA AWARD
For tl,e velricle tlrat best represents the spirit ofLaguna Seca

THE MICHAEL T, LYNCH AWARD
For the entry tl,at best represellts exceilence in engineering

THE SUE MCCLOUD MAYOR,S CUP
For the indivtdual that best represents thc spirit ofmotoring and

ofCARMEL-BY-THE-SEA CONCOURS ON THE AVENUE

THE MICI'IAEL FURMAN ARTIST'S CHOICE AWARD
For the entry that exudes design and aesthetis excellence that

satisty an artist's eye

THE ROBERT "CHARLIE" MAST AUTOMOTIVE MAGAZINE AWARD

For the entry that a magazine u'ould most like to describe lbr its readership

THE STEVE J, RANA PRESERVATION AWARD
For the entry that is the very essence oforiginality and authentieitl surviving

through the years u,ithout ever having been restored

THE M]CHAEL G, '|ILLSON III RADNOR HUN'| CUP

For the entry that has been sympathetically restored

THE SAM GARRETT OCEAN AVENUE MOTOR CLUB AWARD

For the entry that best represents the hard-to-deflne fun tactor

ilAH-h'{}.1} ,-t3Y -'{'t {li-5HA
{l{"}hiC*tiR$ {}T! '1l l}i AV},N[l]:

T'riesdaY, August 16, 201f)

SOPltiS"flCA'['iO]'l Wi'f]{ A nASil O}t irljlu'l

A{J'r}-lEN'rICiTY, {X{.IC I}l A} .{'l',Y, }'} R ti slil{.vA' ri (}}',i

{}.] A WELCOMTNG ATMOSP}IERE]

POr{SCHL, 19-18-1989
3 56 Pre-A/3 564. SPeedster

356 Pre-A Coupe and Cabriolet

356.4 Coupe, Cabriolet and Convertible "D"
3568 Coupe and Cabriolet
356C Coupe and Cabriolet
91 1 Short Wheel Base (l964-1968)
Early 912 (1966-1969)
911 (1969-1973)
9r2E (t976)
91 I Carrera 1973 RS and US Carrera (1914-1975)

91 1 Carrera 3.2 Coupe, Targa, Speedster (1984-1989)

914
Non-production Race Car

THE DENNIS A, LEVETT BEST OF SHOW AWARD
For the entry that is the unanimous choice ofthe
Chref Class Judge s (selected fronr the Ftrst in Class wim.rers)

THE TOM AND VIRGINIA JENNARO I.'ERRARI CUP

For the Ferrari selected by the ChiefClass Judges

]'HE BRUCE ANDERSON PORSC].IE CUP
For the Porsche selected by the Chief Class Judges

THE JOHN C. KERBY-MILLER AMERICAN EXCELLENCE AWARD

For the automobile that best represents the era when American cars

tumed heads around the world

THE CHRISTIE L, MILLER BRITISH CUP

For tl,e automobile that best represents posrworld War Ii
British excellence

THE ROBERT J, RICHARDS CONTINENTAL CUP

For the automobile that best represents post-WorJd War lI
Contlnental excellence

THE CHAMBEROF COMMERCE TRANS ATLANTIC PACIFIC CUP

For the entry that best represents speed u4rether in a straight line,

around a track or on the street

THE CARMEL FOUNDATION AWARD

For the automobile that might be seen in period on Scenic Road with the driver showing visitors the stghts

Motor crub Events' LLc ffi f,.ilffi:m::j[.'ff;,?..,j;,3ixl'::,T"' 
I rer: 404-237-2633

il*i
P1 -il1l16b



APPLICATION FOR ENTRY INFORMATION

ff5.:tffit:Jfi"YTl8',l?J 
"o*MEL_By_rHE-sEA 

coNcouRs oN rHE AVENUE appreciate y!{^s^uppsrt of our benefitins

oroanization, The carmel Foundation. The Foundation-is a membersniporganzatlori *itn o*is,o00 membersorer55 years of age'

cliaritabledonations enablethe Foundationto futfiii it;;isionto assist local s;;iorson the Monterey Peninsula lncorporated asa

non-profit organization in'isso, the Foundation's misiion statement is "to prorioe i place for seniors to gather and enjcy a variety of

activities and services in an environment of respect ""J""rr*oerie." 
As there is no government funding' the Foundation is

supported solely by the generosity of friends'

ENTRY POLIGIES
The call for entries will be followed by a review, acceptance and confirmation process by the Entry selection com m ittee classes may

be added,combined,divided or deletedsunjectto-tiJr"."pGo entries. rntrilsfor Displayonlyare welcome All classes will close no

later than April 1 of theeventyear. The Entry setectiln Comrniit"" ,"r.*ustne- rlgni to decline any entrv A recent 4 x 6 inch color

originar photograph (no colbr copies or oiscs) musi accomfany eacn entry. nti Eniri"r will be noiified bf acceptance or declination

No ,,For sale,, or other signage, displays or illustrations will be allowed on or near ihe entry except that which will be provided by the

event organizer. Entries *rsiob driven onto the event venue and in place no iiiut than 1'1iooa m of the event day Entries must be

accompanied by theirowner or presenterouring;u;gint. rrro entry may be removed from the eventvenue priorto the conclusion of the

awards of distinction presentation.

JUDGING POLICIES: ThE iNtENtioN Of CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA CONCOURS ON THE AVENUE iS tO EXhibitthE AUthCNtiCity' OTigiNAIitY ANd

preservation of each ,rrqr". juoging will be focused on that authenticity' originality and preservation'

1. The owner or otji.irriv ui.Jpt"o presenter must accompany the entry during judging 
.

2. The categories of evatuation are Exterior]ini;;i;r-;rd iiiginelcnassirl onrv r"u.tor"v o"ptions or dealer-installed options (with

documentation) will be considered as orioinal'
3. The Chief ctass Judge will be responsinre'iol'introOuctions, Final Class Decisions and the submission of Results'

4. Each entry commenceswith a perfect score oi too points. The same judge(s) will evaluate all entries in a given class

Deductions of 0-s points will be made ur o"""rn"Jripropriate nv tne irJdelij. First Place.requires 95 points or above' and

second place requires 90 points or aoovJ.-ij"rv nlirl In c.rass *inn"rl wiit be eligible for the Best of show Award' Judged

entries are eligible for any Award of oistinction Lno class Awards. ol.prav entries-are eligible for any Award of Distinction except

5. Pi.ntStl,ll rt?3|'rtlo'[3 o" fury operationat and fury assembred.,Atl parts (i.e tops, bumpers, wheels, etc ) are to be attached in

the originat position. Judges wiil not r,rnii" oiop"i.iethe entry. Judges miy sit inside ihe entry for interior evaluation'

The demonstration of equipment and component functions (wind;;"s, tignts, raoios, air conditioning, etc) will be done by the

6. BYj}"JI?j:i;}]?tnt eraruation wil be judged whire. the engine is idlins. Anvmalfunction mav be corrected bv the owner/

presenterwithin fifteen minutes of judging completion. ^7. convertibleswill be judgedwiththetopu'pinJ'r"cured. Removableroof panelsmustbeinplace Anyoriginal tools'manuals

anO pouches (including authorized reprints) should be availab,le 
,

B. Modifications required by Federal r-a* anJ'sitety itu*. (seat betts, mirrors, exhaust, etc.) are acceptable if they do not detract

from the original appearance of the entry'
9. Replacement components such as tires,'spark plugs,.battery, etc 

_must 
conform to the original profile Tires must be fitted to

the original rimi. ine spare tire must match unless it is an original special item.

10. Confirming documentation should n" prouiouO t- any entry-with uniqueor extraordinary characteristics'

DEADLINE
All applications for entry in CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA CONCOURS ON THE AVENUE must be received by April

entry must be accompanieo-ov a recent original 4 x 6 inch color photograph (no color copies or discs)

returned. All entries ur" irOl"-dtto approvat 5y the Entry Selection Committee Applicalion acceptance or

.r"ri"g J"t;. please mait ;;;i;;i,i;r]i"'n(s) and check(s) (made outto MotorClub Events' LLC) to:

1 of the event Year. Each
Photographs will not be

declination will follow the

Motor C.lub E\,ents, LLC I 2515 peachtree Road NE, Suite 3O5, Allanta, Georgia3o3os | 1'el: 4C4-237-2633

M.carmelconcours com I info@carmelconcou rs com

/;t,

P2-111116b



APPLICATION FOR ENTRY

TELL US ABOUT YOURSELF:

NAME:

ADDRESS:

CITY: STATE: 

-ZIP:
TELL USWHO WILL PRESENT YOUR ENTRY TO THE JUDGES:

NAME:

ADDRESS:

CITY:

EMAIL:

PHONE:

CELL:

EMAIL:

PHONE:

CELL:

MAKE YOUR CHECK PAYABLE TO MOTOR CLUB EVENTS, LLC"
send with a recent origiilal 4 x 6 inch color photograph (no color copies or discs) to the address below. Return this page only' use

separate application forms and write separaie cneits foi each application. All entries will be considered, however preference will be

given to entiies not shown in any prior CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA CONCOURS oN THE AVENUE'

I Szso.ooorgreater ToTAL $

CLASS:

MODEL:

EXTERIOR COLOR:

ls your entry?

ls the EngineiDrive Train?

ls the Body Work?

ls the ChassislFrame?

ls your entry to be?

STATE: 

-ZlP

MAKE:

BODY STYLE: CHASSIS lD #:

INTERIOR COLOR:

This application must be submitted by April I of the event year'

YEAR

ENGINE #

$25o.oo or greater entry fee. please consider providing an amountgreaterthan the standard fee. Monies received above the entry fee will be

considered a donation to The carmel Foundation, a non-profit that pr6vides meaningful senior services including low-income housing, meal

delivery to those homebound, free medical equipment loans, and over 50 classes weekly. Your additional donation will be forwarded to

The Carmel Foundation and a confirmation letter will be seni to you. lf your entry is not accepted, the total entry fee including any additional

donation will be refunded. Sorry{here are no refunds onc,e an Application for Entry has been accepted'

TELL US ABOUT YOUR ENTRY:

I presented this entry at the CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA CONCOURS ON THE AVENUE in:

E 2oO7 tr 2008 tr 2oO9 tr2010 a2U1 rl2012 A2U3 tr.2014 82015

PUBLICITY RELEASE
As a condition of application for entry acceptance owner and/or presenteragree to permit Motor Club Events, LLC, CARMEL-BY -THE-SEA CONCOURS

oN THE AVENUE, CARMEL-BY-THE-sen oiEnN AVENUE MoToR CLUB, the Carmel Foundation, the City of Carmel-by{he-Sea and ali their owners,

employees, judges, contestants, volunteers and representatives the use of their name, voice and/or likeness for news, publicity, and feature use including

radio, television, and printed media, and in connection with advertising and purposes of trade. He/SheiThey further stipulate that no prior agreementwith

a sponsor or any other party is in conflict with this agreement'

RELEASE OF LIABILITY
The undersigned hereby submits this apptication for entry to the cARMEL-BY-THE-sEA coNcouRS oN THE AVENUE. ln consideration of the acceptance

by ihe Entry Selection Com m ittee, the undersigned, on behalf of himself and all his participants, exhibitors a1d.9u-e:ts in CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA

CONCOURS ON THE AVENUE and retated events, does hereby release Motor Club Events, LLC, CARIVIEL-BYiIHE-SEA CONCOURS ON THE AVENUE'

cARl\4EL-By-THE-SEA Ocean Avenue Motor Club, The carmet Foundation, the city of carmel-by-the-sea, and all their owners, employees' judges'

contestants, volunteers and representativesfrom any liability arising from said events. Acceptance of this application for entry creates a contract between

Motor club Events, LLC and the entrant guaranteeing that the entrint or his representative will abide by the policies established by the event organizer,

and that the owner or his representative-will not remove the entered car or motorcycle until the award ceremonies have been completed

"Entries may be changed from "Judged" to "Display," but

may not be changed from "Display" to "Judged."

Signature of owner: Printed name of owner: Date:

Secured parking, on a "first come, first served"basis, will be provided from 6:0O p.m. on the Sunday priorto the event until the day

after the event, Wednesday, until 9.00am.

Mail Application for Entry and your check io:
Moror Ctub Events, LLC | 2575 Peacfrtree Road l.lE, Suite 305, Atlania, Georgia 30305 I Tel: 404-237-2633

www.carmelconcou rs.com I info@carmelconcours.com

I ontctttRL or ! nesronro

! oRtctNnl or I ruoolrteo

I ontctttRl or I uootrteo

! ontctrunL or ! tuootrtro

I luoceo- or rorI DIsPLAY* only

SIGNIFICANT HISTORY

LlDl

P3- 1 t1 t1 6b



From:
Sent:
To:
Subiect:
Attachments:

-- Attached is the survey
-- The amount we have budgeted for
paid last year. We would appreciate
event.

J ill Sheffield [jsheffield@carmelfou ndation'org]

Thursday, APril 07, 2016 4:52 PM

Margi Perotti
FW'"Con"orrs on the Avenue Fee Waiver Request

survey.pdf

- -- - -Original Message-- - - -
Fnom: liII Sheffield
Sent: Thur^sday, April 07, 2Ot6 3247 Pl\

To: 'mper"otti@ci. carmel. ca. us'
cc: chip Rerig (cnenie(aci.carmel.ca.us); Douglas Freedman (douglasfneedman{amsn'com)

Subject: Concours on the Avenue Fee Waiven Request

Mangi,

Here is the infonmation I owe You:

this yean's event is $9,@OO, which is equal to the fees

your consideration of using the same figur e for our 2OL6

If you have any fur^ther questions, please don't hesitate to call me'

I il1

litl Sheffield
President/CEO
The Canmel Foundation
SE Connen 8th & Lincoln
P.O. Box LO5O

Carmel, CA 93921,

831,.620.8700 dinect line
-j sheff ield@ca nmelfoundation . ong

t0Z-



'fell Us What You Think

*i Could You take a moment to give us

your thoughts about the events of car week

2g15? Please describe how your business
was during August 10-16'

-,awrlria:l: 1./"1 51rl:i.l€(i. l

Excellent

9A% 1000/.
lAYo 3A% 40%

Respon$es

42.69%

19.88%

11.11%

7.6A%

18.71%

73

J4

32

171

13

&t Please give us Your comments to
explain the rating above.

Responses

We have the same guests thal return each year

Many clients expressed the gratitude in having lhe meters removed'

We do roofing & solar. lnstalled solar project jn Carmel in time for car party' but don't expect looal referrals from il'

Perhaps locals at large were distracted from home improvements at this time'

Th€se world-class events bring clien'lele, as well as events, as weil as positive media coverage, and positive + visual

social-media coverage to us.

Oata

91812A15 10:08 PM

9/812015 5:54 PM

9182Q15 4:43 PM

9/8/201 5 3:39 PM

prettysoodmW

Not so good

Poor

My business is
noi affected.,,

Answer Choices

Excellent

Pretty good

Not so good

Poor

My business is not affected by this event

Total

*
1

?

3

4

.1+ll-
tDa



5

6

7

B

I

10

11

12

IJ

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

Tell Us What You Think

getting a llttle too crowded

Sofiie stores/restaLrants experienced highr:r sales ihafi LY' others did nol'

The besl I have attended tnus far in USA

EVen though there were a lot ot people ln town, not many were going inio retaii stores odd ocean. l! see{I,]ed that ihe

restaurants did well, but l'm not cerlaln abolrt other small snL'ps like mine'

Clients in from out oi town

This year it was a struggle fo get 100% occilpancy especially on Sunday

Volume of sales was the best ever for Car Week

Peopie lhat wsre here lor the Car evenls <Jid not conre into th€ gallery for arl

No intarruPtions

hotel full every nite

Not so many people buying. Mainly just looking arounc'

My business may get affected iry this event in the future Once it witl be better established'

Full occupancY

The inn rryas full ali week rile people ihai ccme for ihis weak's evenls love it and apprec,alo whai the lown of Carmei

of{ers.

No downtown business.

Very few people actually came into the sholvroom given how many people were on ihe streets'

No ofle buying art

we are in lhe real estate tJusirle$s. Mosl Visitors to car lveek are ihere to see the cars arld rtot to buy real esiale

Sometifies they return at a later daie to consider buylng real estate'

Always the best weok of the Year.

we had to do sorne Iesser rate on a late canoel that we were able to {lll, bul not at the rack rate. otherwise it ivould

have been excellent.

Outstanding event-

our business was noi affected, since wc are located in salinas. ,'m suro the evenl was gleat for businesses located tn

Carmel thoughl

The people who attend car week are not people ivho wani to go wine tasting' and I think all of the lasting rooms sufier

during this time.

This is a great week for us. We are always full and people seem to like to spend'

My clionts (iocals) are inconvenienced by the traffi'-

Better contlol than last Year

regular guest and we've added a felv for the Carmel Concours

we have fcund from previous years that "car people" are noi really our art buyers we did have one good sale that the

client was here for the car show. This is a first for us'

We rely primarily on locals, who stay away from Carmel during the evsnl'

/leg new prophet in town looking for reai estate

Not as good as last Year.

Not as good as lasi Year.

Volurne up

ThisweekmayhavebegunourAUgUstsiowdcwn,butSalesremainedverystrong{orlheentireureek'

l,4y business is not visitor orienioc

Not fully booked

glBl2C15 3:29 PM

9r3t20151139AM

g/B/2015 1 1:29 AM

9/Bl?015 11r20 AM

9/8/2015 1r-i:37 AM

918/2015'10:15 AM

91812015 10:12 AM

91812A15 9:37 AM

9i8l2C15 9:35 AM

916i20i5 E:07 AM

918l?0157:2A AM

9/712C15 9:25 Plvl

9/712015 51 18 Pl\'l

917/2015 5:46 PM

91712015 5:32 PM

9/7/2015 5:05 PM

9/7/2015 4:59 PM

S/7/2015 d:58 Pil

g17i2c15 4.56 PM

9i712015 4:44 ?tll

917 !2015 4:32 PM

9/712015 4:30 PM

9l7i2tl15 4:28 PM

9/7i2015 4:27 PM

917i2015 4:24 PM

9/712015 4:23 Ptr4

gl72A15 4:?3 ?M

91712015 4:19 PM

9t7 2015 4.19 ?M

9/7/2015 4:13 PM

9,ri'l2015 4:1C ptvl

91712C15 4.1A Pl"\

97 ?Q15 4:Ag PM

9i7i2015 4:05 PM

s1712015 3:58 Ptt

9i"1t2015 3.57 PM

24

25

26

27

?8

29

30

3l

32

33

34

36

37

1a

40

?+e
lu4



4i

42

44

45

46

47

+o

49

5t

52

qn

55

56

57

58

59

60

Tetl Us What You'fhink

Realtor. wilh coldweli Banker. fu,!ade great conlacts at events. I am i! car person and thi$ is rny favorite evenl'"

Big dollar week

The tour ilus traffic wl:} normally get during tile summer is a$senl during lhat v/eek'

Sold out Thursday ihru Sunday. Wednesday had 1 left unsold'

The Hotel Business We were lan]med

\Jewereafewroomssho*oJsellingou!Monday Tuesday andWed Overall busyasusual

Well organlzed, well attended and fun

TheTuesdayEvenlhasgrowntoobig{oradownlownvenue,it|iterallyclosesdowntheen|iretoyvn

The week of the events sales were strong - sunoay ihe day of ihe blg event sales were BELCW our average Sunday

Town was packedl

booked the usual suspecis...new business hard to find..carmel and fulonlerey hotels using scab lransportallon

companies from out of the area at reducerj rates i\'loT cot\'ll'4uN|IY MINUED '

As expecled. very busy.

We tradilionally haYe th€ same guests, which makes ii a very lun week {or all

ln raai estate it is a benefit when lois of visitofs come to town'

lactually schedule around lhis event, I either complete work carly and deliver il to tirerrl prior to ihe everlt l do nol

sche<Jule ctient appoinlm€nts during this week, too difficult to predict traf{ic and be on tin"le

Car events altracl all the business Nobody interested in anything else

Full occupancY Wed through Sun.

always fuil every Year

\rve find very few to no extra guests cdminq in during the Car Show

ourbusinesstendslohavealooalCustomerfolloivlng'LocalsknownottogoouldtiiingCarweakduetothe
excessive traffic. our business picked up AFTER car week with visitors that slayed in the area atter the events ended

and local came back out ol hiding.

weekly sales figures were around 10% over 2014

NLlmbers down from last year. Less cars out on ocean Ave Tuesday, with cannery Row nolv in the mix. I feel a lot of

people went there,

It seefired a few nrore people came in, b,u! many rnore complained about lraiiic and lack of parking and stayed away.

our customers are mostly local so we feel a small slow down in volume during car week but the customers during car

week spend more and make up foi'the volume

We manage vacation rental hornes-we were full!!

l'm a teacher. so car week does not really alfect me (excepl for lhe aoded traffio' of course)

Being a local bank, we don't cater to visitors'

Traffic was bad, palients did nol want to schedule appts'

we had a great day on Thursday and we were grateful for the Concours Cafe

We still had events

The focus was on cars, cars' cars.

As usual we lvhere booked and had happy guests

We hacl two gooci sales lrorn car week atlendees

Unfortunately rny business isn't so good most of the t'nle'

we were completely sold out rrom Aug. gth thru the 16th so we were busier than lasi year' car week hiqhlights

carmel is a wonderful way anal brinqs the type o{ guestwho slay in the inns and have nroney to spend in town

ltwasbetterlastyear-maybeduetotheecorlomy.Alsosic,reVisilorsweremanybutnolbuyers'

los

9i712015 3:30 PM

$fi i2A15 3:24 trN|

gt2r2{}15 12 56 PiU

911i2015 8:C0 PM

9i 1lZtl15 5:06 PM

9/1i2015 4:58 PN1

9/1/2015 1:02 PLI

8/31/2015 2;52 Pi\"4

8131/2015 12:10 PM

8i31i2015 10:5C AM

8/3112015 B:58 AM

8/3012C15 ll:52 PM

8129t2015 5.25 PM

8129/2015 2:04 Ptl

8/?8/201 5 6:05 PM

8/28/20152:35PM

6t?,82015 1.59 Ptd

8128t2015 12r01 Pt4

8128!2015'11:C0 AM

8/28/2015 9:47 AM

812812015 B:.40 ANl

a/27t2015 5108 PI1,4

81?7i20'15 4;00 PM

8t27i2015 2.26 Pl,4

8i271?A15 210 ?M

Bl27 i2A15 1:55 PM

gt27 i?015 1 .46 PM

8127t2015 1:3A PM

827 2A15 1.14 PM

8127 2A15 1.06 PM

8l?7i2A15 12:11PM

Bl'21 2015 11:44 Af"'l

8t27i2A15 11:26 4tu1

AQ7i2015 11:16 Alil

AQ7i7O15 1.1:1'1 AN4

8iZ7l2A15 10:04 AM

6'1

6t

t)J

64

66

67

oo

69

7A

71

73

74

75

76

H-+4



7i

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

Tell [Js What You fhink

Very crganized, went very well this year 201 5

Our lodgs was solC oul and thc restaurant was busy all week

Lois of peopl€ oil ocean but our busln€ss is on 6th. we had sonle vralk in but hardly any puichases.

we had many visitors stop by the church during the Yr'eek and Ieceived sorne anonymous donai;ons.

U/e count on locals who go the events or hide at home or ieetve town'

Sales were up, crowds were big anc respectful, Traffic was reasonable'

Hot vr'eather affecled brrsiness negalively.

lJhe weather was conducive lo driving or visiling the beach 2-so nlany car evonls wilh blocked traffic that wenl tor

miles

Traditionally our business is very slow during Oonoours and AT&T. Visilors are ai the multiple events and not

browsing the shcps. Almost none oi our sales were lrom Concours atiendees. We gave out 400 special tasting tarJs

tO Concours attendees as a test and nol cne was redeemed. The normal visitors don't come during Concours week

due to lhe exorbitant holel prices which also slows business.

All tho locals stay home All the "ncrmal pecpie" can't afforri a room ($600 and a 2 night min) at carmel l\lission lnn'

All the car people want to be seen in expcnsive places.

I was out of iown.

Loved both Concourse o0 the Avenue and the Tour d'Elegance. We and our guesis walked in for both events'

However, we are very disappointed that ttte PG Rally weni in the other direction this lrear That's a big missl

lwork for Pebble Beach Company 8126i2015 6 29 PM

$/ehadthelowesttraliicandsalesfortheweekall year.Tuesdaywehad5peopleall day-lhurscJayiustasiew.The 812612C1156:1i) PM

vlsitors were too involved in events. Vy'e averaged a $14.99 sale per day. lvlany businesses u/ere complarning and had

no sales.

Best car week ever 8/26/20'15 5 14 PM

do not own a business in carmel, I think lhe business was excellent as I live in carme!. 8i26!2A15 5:12 PM

plus the upscale demographic was perfecr. 8/2612015 5:04 PM

It was busy outside not as mush inside 8i26l2015 5104 PM

Completely booked. al26l2a15 5 41 PM

Ouality of clrentel 
". 

81261?015 4:52 PM

Retired & nol a business owner 8128/2015 4:49 P\4

NIA 8/26t2015 4:45 PM

Business would probably be groat lhat week anyway since it's the lasl big week ol summer, Sin.c we sell ladies llerns 8!2612015 4 44 ?M

the predominantly male events could be a hindrance.

Hard to move due to road traFflc

My work is at the places of brrsiness of rny clients. Due 10 Lhe extretnely high traffic, it was extremely ditficult to be

able to make appointments or get tc my clients. trui fo('rnately il uvas only a Jeu/ days and everyone local understgod

the problems associaied with the events.

This is a rnale oriented crowd nct our people. lf women {ind the store they bring a man with them lvhc

spends the whole time bored out of his skull and figeting .

??

Loved Cars on the Avenue. li was a busy week and the crovvds can be frustrating but il's such a fun boosi to the

economy here and really puts Carmel and PB on ihe map lo get 3ll the other fantastic press we gel th e resl of the

year.

Whiie Car week did not bring in lots of visrtors tlre visitors that came in did buy.

After 25 yrs. in this location, Crt. of Fountalns, I have hail little or no business Curing th.- concourse wk However. I

like the car show. And hope it stays on.

People come to the area lo buy cars not holrles.

4*fr4 { DL

Bt27t20i5 s 42 AM

B/2712015 9:40 Al'4

8/27t20159.2.4 AM

8127l2C15 8:58 Af!4

8i 271201 5 8:55 AM

8i27 i?-A15 I 32 AM

8/2712015 8:37 Al'4

8/27t2O15 12:20 r\M

8126!2015 11:53 Pill

8,126i?015 10:43 PM

Bl26t2o15 7.1j7 PM

8126/2015 6:40 PM

at2at?015 4'.27 PM

E126tZA15 4:25 PM

8t26i2415 4.24 PM

8i26i20'15 4:23 PM

8126t2A15 4 16 PN4

B/26i2015 4:16 PM

8/26/201 5 4:0? PM

8t26t2015 4.0?PM

87

B8

89

on

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

144

t0?

105

106



108

109

110

'111

112

113

114

Teil LJs lVhat You Think

we,re always busy at the beglnning oi lhe schooi year. car week does not really impacl our business cir+ctly'

They here for concourse' not ily to!rs'

lam wilh Carnlel lvagazine

It just seemed like everycne was enloying ii]ernselves' Workers and attendees'

Our business was beiter than pretty good but nol up io excellent

Huge boost to our econorny that cannot be replicaled by any olher event

well run evenls enjoyed by all. when the papers reported that $53 million was coming in during lire vr'eek' how could

wecomplain?ltisbecauseolsuchtouristrevenuesthaiweenjoytheqr':alityoflifethal'wedo-thewondcrful
restaulants, shops and cultural aciivitics

Full house each and every night

our gallery always supports car week. we have a car related show but cjo not expect a lot for ihe show or car week

Usuallywedoverywellafteralltheeventsareover'Ho''vever'thisyearAugustwasapoormonihforLls'

customers avoid coming to carmei to shop during car \rreek. There is no parking and heavy trafiic ' Retail is effected

teribly with loss o, bu$iness

I do not have a siorelront lhat worrld be lmpacted

TheConcoursonlheAVeandlheThUrsdayevenlbroughtthousandsofpeop'letoourdoor.wemadeccntectwiih
several, it was a great cotiple of Caysl

Traffic getting to Monterey from Carmel

was not busy during hours of the events but had customers on the off hcurs'

Not as good as Previous Years

Not my clientel

Full occupancy and some of ihe L'est revenue in the restaurant for the sntire year'

people do nol seen] io be purchasing a$ much now as they used to when they come into town for the big evenls

Located in Monterey

I insure valuable cars for PeoPle

LodgingProperty.Sameguestseachyel]r-Aniccl]reakfrornthesufilmerguesls.qualityguesiswhospendmoney
while they are here

Felt like a busier year

We had an increase of attendance from visliors 10 car week'

Our magazine$ rvere picked up in record time-

My business is on Junrpero st and that streels parking was taken away while the cars were on oeesn ave l hac a lot

ofcomplaintsandpeoplencshowuplortheirappointmanlsbecausetheycoulcn.tfindparking,

better than 2007 levels which lYas lhe besi so far

We had the opportunity io sell tickets to our everi Curiog car week' li was hugely success{ul

*i Looking at the big picture, do yot"l think
it is good for Carme!-by'the'$ea to have so
many people in town for car week events?

Which of these ideas most closelY
represents how you feel?

8126/201 5 4:C0 PM

8i26l2015 3:54 Ph'i

8/2612C.15 3:53 P['1

8/26/2015 3:53 PM

E/26r2015 3:52 PM

El26/2015 3:49 PM

8/26/201 5 3:38 PM

8/26/20'15 3:38 PM

Bi26l2015 3126 PM

B12612015 3:26 PM

B/2617-A15 3.26 Pl',n

8/26/2015 311g Pl"4

8/2612015 3:18 PM

8/26120'15 3:17 PM

8/26i2015 3:17 PM

8126i7015 3:12 ?M

8126t?015 3.12- PM

8l)6i2015 3.11 PM

8/?612015 3:1 1 PM

8126i2015 3;10 PM

8126/2015 3:09 PM

8/26/2015 3:09 PM

812612015 3:08 Pl*l

81261201 5 3:07 PM

8/26/2015 3:06 PM

8/26i 2015 3:06 PM

8126/2015 3:04 PM

116

120

121

122

124

126

127

128

129

130

l.)t

132

IJJ

134

ffi'{ )o7



It wa$ a great .i..i:,. r'r':i

week! ..::::ri.ii.i'l:'

,,r"^'rT:,I:j.:ffi

Tcll Us What You Think

40% 50%

:

Th e eve n t is rrlii:,li;ll|i,:..1i-:t_.!.,.,-::::l

sreat ror th... ..,iaiirli:r:il,iiiiLLli,,::

I don't tike ffi
theeventS,,. ffi

I
0o/. 3A%

Answer qnoices

It was a great week!

I didn,t do much business but I know visiiors will be back because lhat they had a great experience

The event is great for the inns & restaurants but not for my business

I don'i like the events because of traffic and parking'

Olher, please specifY

Total Re$poildenrs: 170

20% 60% TAok 801d sa% 100%

Re3ponses

$1.76a/o 'i 05

10.00% 1 /

?5.88% 44

9.41% 16

10.00% 17

#

1

?-

4

q

6

Other, pleas6 sPecifu

Due to photos + social media, beneflts extend Beyoncj iust the event-days themselves

It is hard to ditferentiate yet.

Great week for inns/reslaurarrts, $$, touqh for locals

Also, I thi4k car week discourages people from visiiing Carmel, who are not into cars'

As iong as it is only one special week oui of the year!

does not impact our business. iust makes traffic difficult and locals seemed lo be unhappy with dif{iculties more this

year than every

smaller evenl was belter.

It is a fun event and iraific event management NEEDS to be PRIORITY ONE going forward. I know communities are

looking {or more business, however, visitors are grumbling thai il any more evnts that iam traffic to ihe point of noi

moving and they will stari to reducs their stay or stay away altogether...communities need to coordinate with each

other as to when they are holding their events and where to bleller control traffic flow dttring peak events

I volunteer for lhe tour as it gives me a chalrce to be helpful to our visilors'

we always want to do better and since we are new we expect repeat customers nexl year

Great Exposure, dirty bathroorns, create this week only flyers for walkers to hand out all week.

The reduced parking is too much and too long, Signage should come dovJn immedialely after the events. 1ug566y

event needs to get with il and pack up QUICKLY

Dale

9/8/2015 3:39 PM

9,?i2015 9:25 PM

9t712015 4:44 PM

9t712015 4.28 PM

917i2O15 4:27 ?M

917t201s 3:54 PM

8!31t7015 2 52 Pt'n

8/3112015 B:58 AM

8/28/2015 6:05 PM

8127i2A15 1.14PM

8/26/2015 6:1il Pil

B/26t2A15 4.44 PM

q

10

11

12

*l*++ lo8



13

14

to

17

Tcll Us What Yoti Think

This is our most prosperous 1 0 days of lhe year'

Retail suffers

Greal week of course but geiting harder to handle

hard on residents I th;nk. parking traffic etc'

My guests bought shoes, apparel and iew€rly

8/26i201 5 3;52 PM

8/26/2015 3:26 PM

8t26t2015 3 17 PM

8/26/2015 3:10 PM

8/2612015 3:09 PM

9rl% 100%

Date

91812Q15 4:a3 PM

9/8/2015 3:39 PM

91812A15 10:37 AM

9/8/201 5 9:37 AM

917t2015 4.19 PM

9,ry/2015 3158 PM

sl7l2a15 3 57 PM

9/712015 3:30 PM

8i3112015 8158AM

8/3012015 3:52 PM

8l2Bl2A15 11:31 PM

812812015 9:47 AM

&4 lf your business is downtown, did you or
your employees take advantage of the

August 11 & 13 free employee shuttles frorn
the Carmel Mission?

.4ttsrY*rerf; 1ll $icin!r*Li rl1]

::.r:rii!..ri:li:a:lt irri:tir:.-::::i:'

.r-i:,i!!iiilii.-r-lili,
litr:11:.alii!:ji.!::li!:iiil

Yes ,: -t.'-r' 
*.1i.*,tti-:ill,l*i!*
.l:ii*.tt|:r.:ttr.i-!iil,:ii-ilili.?..

Anew€t Cholccs

Yes

No

Tolal

# ..
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I
o

10

11

12

Reapdnse€

18.40%

81.60%

Comment

nla

lwas elsewhere in the area during those times, then on ioot

N/A - businass ai RYan Ranch

We have our own Parking

N/a

NA

Na

would coldweii Banker realtors on Junipero and ocean be able to take advantage oJ that transportation?

nla

not sure if anyone used it. my husband helped our staff with drop offs

Not all of them

n/a

23

125

f,1-+4 
I o ?



14

if,

to

17

1.E.

1g

)^

21

),

24

Z6

27

ta

)o

30

31

?1

JJ

34

36

38

39

40

Tell Us What You Think

We have ample on-site parking for employees

not downtown option nol available' data \'r'ill be wrong

we used il in teh AM bul we are open late so we did our own shuttling afler hours

Business is oul rn the valleY

Nol downtown

Noshuttleorparkingavarlablewhenattemptedneverwentbackdidn,trunlateenaughtoUse(8pm)

6 o,clock did nor work for our bllsiness 'open later

We tried to, but the lot was full

We have no employees and I park at the Carmel Plaza'

NA

N/A

not applicable

No need. We have underground parking'

Operating my studio alone, I cannot afford to go to P B-

nla

ouronlycomment|sthatwestayopenduringthistimeunlilT:30,thencloseoutwhichtakesanothe'30rninutes.We

"*t 
o^" person to get thelr car so they coukl drive us back lo ours or one person did not park lhere'

a couple did

AII of us live in carmei and can walk or uge our parking space in the sth & Dolores street garage'

Very inconvenient for me l\4y buslness is on the other side of downtown

Not in town.

not down town - we are in Big Sur

not sure

I NEVER park inside the shopping districl

The sunset center lot should be as it was permit and pay

We have Parking

nla

No need

N/A

ffiS lf not, whY not?
A,lswtrt{l: -!}6 $hi!,lrji}: ?8

8/2712015 1:46 PM

8/2712015 1:30 PNt

St27t?015 1:14PM

8/2712015 8:40 AM

8n612A1510:43 PM

8/26/2015 6:10 PM

8i26i2015 5:37 PM

8/26/2015 5:14 PM

Bt26t?015 4:52PM

8/26i2015 4:49 PM

812612015 4:45 PM

8126i2015 4:24 PM

8/26i20'15 4:15 PM

812612015 4:o??M

8/26/201 5 3:53 PM

812612A15 3:52 PM

812612A15 3:38 PM

8126/2015 3:26 PM

8/26i2015 3:26 PM

8/2612015 3:26 PM

8t26t?015 3:25 PM

8t2612A15 3:19 PM

8126/20'15 3:11 PM

8/26/2015 3:10 PM

8/26/201s 3:09 PM

81261201 5 3:09 PM

8/26/201 5 3:07 PM

812612015 3.04 PM

8t14 //o



Didn't know
about it

Other, pleas€
specify

Tell tjs What You Think

4oaA 50%?aa/, 300/" 60o/o 8A%71ah 90% 100%0% 10%

An$rea Choic.B

Didn't know about it

Other, please specifY

Tdtil' I i" i

#

1

2

5

4

5

6

7

I

I

10

11

12

13

14

15

to

1q

'19

20

21

23

24

Respon6es

14.58o/o

85.42%

96

Othnr, piaqpt qpecrfy

they elected to not Pa'ticiPate

We provide parking for most of our associales

We have our ov/n Parking

not needed

Wasn't needed

Not necessary

We have offstreet parking and many of them take the bus.

No downtown business.

not'equired

Ease of access necessary

Didn'l need it.

We are not located in Carmel

Not relevant to our visitors.

It was a greai idea, however, w9 are a hotel and the timing did not work tor our shifts

We have parklng gsraqe in building

We have erployee Parking

Can't use itn

NA

not in town

We Iound other means of getting 1a work or found parking nearby.

I live in town and walk to w0rk

Some of live close to where we work. so we walked, we also arranged for rides/drop off and pick up

Not useful in my business.

i live one block oui ol carmel by the s€a

lil

Drrie

g/8i20151 1:29 AM

s|8t2A1510:12 AM

9/81201 5 9:37 AM

9/7/2015 S:sB PM

917 i2015 7:29 PM

917120156:18PM

9/712015 5:46 PM

9nt?015 5"32 PM

9/7/201 5 5;05 PM

9712015 4:56 ?M

9/7/201 5 4:38 PM

9,7/2015 4:30 PM

9t7i2015 4"28 PM

9712015 4:27 PM

9/7/2015 4:19 PM

9l7i?015 4:19 PM

9fi12A15 4:a9 ?M

9/7/201 s 3:58 P[a

9/7/2015 3:57 PM

911/2A15 4:58 PM

Bt31t2A15 2.52 PM

8129t2015 5:25 PM

8t29tZA15 2.04 PM

8i28i2015 6:05 PM

9l 14



25

26

?7

,o

30

JI

3?

33

3.1

35

36

37

J6

ao

40

41

44

45

46

41

48

49

50

51

(1

54

55

56

59

60

61

ol

63

fcll tjs What You'fhink

U/e have onsite Parking

no need to

nla

brrsi{ress is o.rtsicie Carmel By The Sea

we have parking

'ioo lar away and time c0nsuming

have private Parking

We have our own parking {or slaff and clients

Business is nol dou'nlown

had a parkrng garage space available to me

\r'/e had our own parking

walked to work

parked at a friend's ltouse instead.

Many of my employees took the bus & I am tortunate to have off-sireet parking'

Walked

Prefer to lust walk fadher.

We walked to work.

we have our own Patkinq

Didn't need to.

Live in town.

they found parking in ernployee zorlcs

Employees prefer to park in lhe no limit areas closer to the store

We were on vacation

onsite parking at Pebble Beach

Attempled once. no shuttle or parking irr site had to be on time, didn't run late enough for schedule (8pm) loo far to

walk back haci io transport rnerchandise in vehicle

was able io make olher plans because o had a place to leave my car

not be able to make the 6 o'clock tinle irame

We tried. bui iile lot was full. Good ide?), though

they're stubborn!

Had other arrangements

Our business is more in residential area.

We have no employees and I park al the Carmel Plaza.

NA

and get a ride. also. i was concerned thai i would

Have our own parking

I have no employees, and I live downlown. so I have an undergrolind parking space :)

We don't need it

they are all independent contraclors so they corne and go

No ne6d-

need the shutile to operate longer hours

work from horne

8/28/2015 1.59 P[,1

8i28t2015 1'1:00 A[4

8128i2015 9:47 Alt'l

8/28/2015 8:40 AM

827 t?015 9:46 ?M

8t27i2A15 4.AA PM

8/27 t2A15 2 26 PM

8/27i2015 1:46 PM

8i27i20'15 1:06 PM

8127 2A15 12:11 PM

8t27 i2015 11 .44 AM

8127i2O15 11:26 AM

8i27i201511r'16 AM

Bl27 2015 '1 1 :1 -1 AM

8/2712015 9:25 ftln

8t27t2015 9 24 AM

8!27i2A15 8.58 A.M

8/27i2015 8:55 Al'v1

8t27t2015 8.52 AM

812712015 8.37 AM

8t27t2015 6.16 AM

8127 2015 12:20 AM

8t26t2015 7.07 ?l'l

82617015 6:29 PM

8/26/2015 tir10 Ptu4

8l2Bl20 15 5:37 P\4

8t2qt2015 5 14 PM

B/26t2015 5:04 Pl\,1

8/26i2015 5:0a PM

6/26/2015 5:01 PM

8t26i2015 4.52PM

8/26i20'15 4:49 PM

N26t2A15 4.44 ?M

8t2612015 4:25 PM

8t26!2015 4.24 PM

8/2612015 4:16 PM

8t26t2015 4.16 Pf.i

8/26/2015 4:0C PM

8t26t2015 3.53 PM

10t14
latt*J-

- 
I



64

65

66

67

68

bY

70

71

73

74

75

to

77

to

7g

80

81

6t

Tell Us Wirat You Thir*

Had to be onsite prior to Bam and lelt ailer 6pm

Same comment as #4.

refer to ques:ron #4 response

Not in town

not down town

we are not in downtown but we reccommended the shuttle to everyone

I walk to work, no emPloYees

Parked and walked

Parked a1 Sunset Center

I was able to flnd parking in the residential area

I would have had to travel further to get to the Mission' Easier to park in the neighborhoods and walk'

Located in MontereY

not helpfui

We have Parkirrg

nla

Our business is in Salinas

d,dn't need

Does not run late enough

nla

Bi26l201 5 3:38 PM

8/2612015 3:26 PM

B/26/2015 3:26 PM

8i26l2015 3;26 PM

8126/2015 3:25 PM

8126/2015 3:25 PM

8!26i2015 3 17 ?M

Bt?612015 3.17 ?M

8t26t2015 312 ?M

8/2612015 3:1 1 PM

8/26i2015 3:11 PM

8t26t2015 3"11 PM

8/26/2015 3:10 Pf'.'l

B/26i2015 3:09 PM

8/26/201 5 3:C9 PM

8/26/2015 3:08 PM

8i26l2015 3:07 PM

812612015 3:0a PM

al2e,t2115 3:AZ PM

*S Where is the primary address of your
business?

.&rswer**l 16? SkiPili{i: 7

ln
Carmel-by-th...

ln Carmel but
outside the...

outsid€ Carmel

10% 30"/,, 40% 50Yo 60% 80% s0% 100%

R€spon$as

61.08%

1 8.56%

23.35'/,

7A%

Angi*erchoices .

ln Cannel-by-the-Sea

ln Carmel but outside the one-square-mile city

Outside Carmel

102

31

/t
11114

39



Total R6sponded!: 167

On a street
where car6 w.,.

No cars were
displayed on...

Angwer Ghgices

On a street wnere cars were displayed

No cars were displayed on mY street

Total*espondanls: 11? :'

Tcll Us What You Think

ffi'f lf you are in Carmet-by-the-Sea, where
your business?
Arslvlrr:,rj: j 1t $ttit:g:t:tl: 'i?

is

90% 100%
10"k

ffi& What best

Responses

43.7s%

38.44%

49

65

describes your Primary line
business?

Ar::*;*red: !$! 3kllr$riri: 5

of

12t14
tt '{



Tcll Us What You Think

Accommodations/ .-...' - "'.
r'asi,sriii|*|r_:.i.ii.1,i:-1|.Xiji

= ,"4.
Art garrery :${}A*

rertorming f,
arls/attract... f

Media Ll{

Food&b€veras" 
I

Consumer : :.4l..:,:l'::::::::iir:....:.

servi ces,.. .i:::lil ii:a:i:

*::?",::::: I
wedding and S

special even... ffi

ttedical or I
health/fitne.'. I

Non-prorit X

Other, Please
SpecifY

Oo/. 10% 20Yo 3A% 40% 5)ok 60% 70Yo 80% S0% 10Ao/'

ResPonses
Answer Choicos

20.12% 34

Accommodations/lodging 
fi,oz'/" 22

Retatl & shoop'ng centers

8.88% 15

Art gallery.
2.96% 5

Performing arts/attraclions 
16.s7oh zg

Food & beverage

8.88% 15

Consumer services (banking, insurance, real estate' title insurance' etc)

4.73% 8

Professional services (legal, accounting)

2.37% 4

Wedding and special event services

1.7$o/o 3

Medical or health/fi tness professional

10.06% 17

Non-Profit 
3.bs% 6

Media

17.73Yo 30

Other. Please SPecirY

Total RespondentB: 169

13114 ils



f

'Itll {ls What Yor: Think

Other, Please SPecifY

Ccnslruction. r0ofrnq & Soi6i

Real Estate

government servic:es

ForQueslloll#7.OUrS|.eetlrarkingw3SbiockedoffforEmerllencyVehicles

Education, Ari.s and DesiEn

Home Managem:nl

Real Estate

Sr'.rali Bustness A.sslslancc

Wrne lasling

Personal seruices

Bottled water

pl

Concrerge

t0Llrism

transpcrtatlon' iinlousires

P0rsonal ProPeriy aPPraiser

Winery and TasiinE Roorl

Education

Golf

Clturch

packrng ano snlcPlng

NA

Real Estate sales

Bike shoP

Y/ine Tasting rccrr

Tour guide

PUbIic

Speciality tsridal Eoulrque in a Coirfiyard

Property/E stale [o'1a na ge rne n1.

Real Estaie

ilate

g18r:10'1 5 4:43 Ptul

9i81?015 lir39 Ph'l

9r8,2C15 11 211 AL4

9t8i201 5 9:37 A[1

9l7l?015 9:25 Pll

gl7l2ol 5 5:32 rrl"4

9i7 lZA'.'5 4.38 ?1,4

917r2015 ,1r3C PM

9/7r!015 d:2& Ptu']

gl7r201 5 4:24 PM

911.t2-C15 4.it9 ?t'i

9r7r20',15 3:30 PM

9i7i 20i 5 3:24 Pf\,1

97i2015 9.29 AM

B/3ri2015 8:58 Al,4

B/28120'15 6:05 Pll'l

812812C1 5 B:40 AM

8127,;2315 l:55 PM

Ar21l2O15 t):4q l\M

8r2712015 B'58 Ar/

8/2 //201 5 I 55 AL'i

fll20/2015 4:4$ Plvl

E!26;2015 12/ Pkl'

8126120'15 4r21 P['1

812iii2015 4 16 P[4

B/2612015 3.54 PNI

8126i2C15 3:31 PM

812612C15 3 26 PNl

8i2{-ii2c15 3 26 P[,4

8/26/2015 3:19 PM

?.

3

5

6

7

B

I

10

11

12

13

4,4

i5

16

11

19

2A

21

22

23

7-5

26

28

29

30

14114

T



z.\
>1

io
o-

.P_(J

E
.9
LL
C
0
ro

J
P
(o

OI
q)

GI
E

(,lJ

o
rl
*

(E

=bo
0.)
L

sl
E
C(!

o
N
v
(I]

;_cl
o-
Lfl
>l
P
6

LN
N
r+
1t>

>l
c
o
o

I

r-l
I

@
Fo

E
o
q
ol
L
(E
UI
C
G'
tl

L
(o

oo
GJ

$

o
Ic!

P
o
;
-v.
L

o-

(U
L

-o
=i-co
Cl
(E
!
co.
.Y
(!

d_

oo
o
ao

00
1tt
ai

.E
6
P
oc

q
cnr\$
r-{
N
ii
o)

(o

=OJ
o)

I

o
o
-o
:go
E

3
o
-cl
6J

EL
t
qJ

o
o
6-I

Ln
to
<t>
x
co

o
(o

E
(E
CJ
rh
L

-c.
<f
x

I
I
(U
P
6(\

f
oc
(E'
P0
OJ

tr
P

o
o
6
o)
P

:>P(J

:l
F
E
o(J

:,

:

3
=os
r-l

(o
Pq:
(o

OJ

,F
L
OJI

o
(o

=bo
OJ
d.

col
co
LL\\
=io-

I

6

o
.C
I'\rl
x
f
o
-C
L
(u
o-
Oo
co
<f>
t^

=o
-c

o*
G)
P
I
(U
-=
P
C
qJ
E

o
E
C
OJ

oo
t+

s-t
Os
1./\
6

=r;
-Cg
-l=Ne

EE
P L

-+
o-(o

PocooJ
oid

I(oo
(oE
JC

o
50J9!oJt+
{x

o
P

E
l!
oo
N
r-l

e.,
(o
r'l
P

oo
=
tr
o
L*
E

OJ
d.
-:z
L
(o
o_
FL
oEl
(l)

OJo

(IJ

c.E
tr
(E

(!
OJ

o-ol
0.)o
+l
o
Oo
t-'{
rl

o
I
'o
OJ
E
o
6.)
C

.P-
E
=(o

al
OJ

oti
od '=
gb
JO3;
NirO
tt {/}

P L'=(U
=N
oJ '=

=E
oE
P=(u(o
o 

=1*L

*=
(oP
P Oj
L-

3 el

-gI
(o
o
a
<r>

IA

ovo
(u
c
oo

-c(J
(!
OJ

oo
'riN
<t>

er
o
rllvl
OJ

(o
g

LL

-c.(J
(lt
OJ

oo
,t;
<rt

crL

o
rn
c!
-tt,c
bo
,Z
bo
C'tt
l!
o-
oz

O
(o
OJ;
LN(o
1J't
P
(o

o
an

q
oJl
(E

.(J
L

(o
cO

E
tr
=to
o-
'o

=ott,

av
Uo
E
O
N

(J
o
-ot
L
OJ
o-
U)(ol
co
4,rt

q
0)l
L
J

o
(J

-.:zU]
o
co

I

.=
o
o-
OJ

s
oEc
d.)

0)o

OJ

(Ei
E
c
5

Ioi
d. l

c
oci
-OJ
o

LL
bot
.Eq
ojoo
L
o-
P
C]
G,
>Lr
(o
'6
OJ

(o

o
N
ol
5
c
o

OJ
3
c
o
o

ou
tr
o(J
L
o
6
o
o.)
u-
!,
@P(!
Er
ti

Lu

lt-7



CITY COUNCIL POLICY C12-02
trVENT FEE WAIVERS

Revised iulv 1^ 2014

I. Purpose
II. Community Event Fees

III. Application Process

IV. Documentation Requiled w'ith Waiver Recluest

V. Additionai Documentatioir Required lor Established Events
VL Guideiines

l. Purpose
The City supporls and encourages events that have a significant economic, charitable, or
community bcnefit. The City u,ili consider waiving certain fees in order to promote the City and

special events, The City is regulariy being approached to rvaive fees for Community Events.

1'his policy is designed to outline the process and crilcria for the submittal, and review by
Council. of fee waiver requcsts.

IL Comrnunit,v Event Fees

Fees eligible for Waivers:
. Speciai Event Pern,it Iee
r Fees associated with street closures
o Fees associated with events on the beach or at City Parks
r Parking stall t-ees

Fees not eligible for Waivers:
o Granl writirrg expenses
e Damage deposits
o Overtime costs lor City personnel
o Costs for persomel u,ith which the City contracts in order to facilitate tire event

IIL Application Frocess
o An applicanr shall submit in writing a request fbr a fbe rvaiver to the Community

Activities Director
r AII speciai event fee naiver requests r.vill trrst be considered by the Community

Activities and Culturai Commission (CA&CC) at a reguiariy scheduled meeting.
a. In the case of requests for fee waivers for nerv events - or established events
that have previously received a waiver of fees and are within the three-year
windou'outiir-red in the Guideiines below'- the Community Activities and

Cuiturai Commission may make a formal request to the City Administrator to
rvaive eligible lbes up to $-5000 instead of securing Council approval
b. Requests for fee wairrers from events going into tireir fourth year or more
l1lusr come Lo the City Council aiier being review'ed by the Community
Activitics and Cultural Commission.

. The City Administrator shall be given arithority to apply this policl,' for w-aivers up to
ss000

)lk



. Staff or the applicanr can appeal a waiver request to tire City Council.

r Events proposed for co-sponsorship must be placed on a City Council agenda

IV. Documentation Required With Waiver Request

r Detaiied soope of the event
. Proposed br,tdget for the event

o Anticipated economic impact to tire City and community

r Anticipated positive and negative impacts of the event on the con-rmunity

o What charitable contribr:tions will be made (if any), either directly or indirectly. to the

communily? What is the anticipated amount or percentage of the contribution(s) and to

what organization(s) w'il1 it be made?

o Written survey of businesses andior residents affected by the cvent indicating their

acceptance ofthe ProPosed event

V. Additional Doclimentation Required lor Established Ever-rts That Have Received Fee

Waivers
r Past financial statements since inception of event

o Documentation shou,ing actual charitable contributions 1o organizations within the 93921

zip codc area since inception ofevent

VL Guidelines
o The number olyears for rvhich an organization r.r,ill be eligible for ongoing waivers of

fees fbr the same evelt shall be no more than three years lrom the inception of the event

r Charitable contributions rvill be rnade to charitabl e organizations within rhe 93921 zip

code area
o The total dollat'amount of fee u,aivers authorized each fiscai year shail not exceed

s27.500
. The City shall wair,e no more than $-5,000 in lbes for a special event

r Priority will be given to organizations that provide educational and/or courmunitv
programs and events that are open to tire general public fiee of charge

Irl



POLTCY l{O. C95-06

SHORT.TERIVI USE OF PUBLIC SPACES AND
}TLI\:ICIPAL BLTLDIXGS FOR SPECIAL E\TENTS

GENERAL:

The City of Can'ne1-by-the-Sea provides for the short-term use of municipal facilities and

public properly by groups and individuals. Facilities and public properties will be made

available at no fee if the event is sponsored or cosponsored by the City. Co-sponsorship
with communiry groups shall be determined on a case-by-case basis by the City Council.
Activities may be conducted in or on municipal faciiities and public property subject to
the permit process and criteria established herein. This policy also applies to the

following:

1. Support Group as designated by the Cify Council which are also regulated
by Policy No C89-45.

Z. The use of Lrbrary facilities, Vista Lobos and Sunset Center, which are also

governed by adopted policy.

EVENTS REOUiRINIG PER.V{ITS

Conditions that require a formal permit for use of public property in the City of Carmel-
by-the-Sea are those that include any of the following:

1. A request for the exclusive use of any portion of any City properry to the

exclusion of the general public; or

2. Any request that involves the support of any commercial enterprise, e.g.

caterer, pona-polties, etc.; or

3. A request that involves sound equipment greater than a 12 volt system; or

4. Any request that involves the erection of any strucfure, e.g. stage, tents,

etc.; or

5. Any request that involves special outside or City support, e.g. traffic
control, traffic cones, barricades, signage, extra trash pick up, etc.; or

6. Any request that involves a gathering or assemblage of more than 50

people; or

7. Any request that involves the use of any internal combustion engine, e.g.

gas generator; or

8. Any request for exemption from current Cify codes, rules, regulations,
restrictions, and policies governing activities on City properry.

228

l2c



PERMIT PROCESS

On forms provided by the Ciry, a corlmon activity group or individual may make

applicarron to the Crty to hold a special event using public property. Applications are to

be submitted at least sixty (60) days in advance of the event and be evaluated by a staff
committee, whicir shall forward its recommendation to the City Adrninistrator for action.

The decision of the City Administrator is appealable to the Ciry Council. The application

may be approved, denied, or approved with condrtions. The staff committee membership

is as follows:

* Risk Manager - Chairman * Police Chief
* Fire Chief * principal Planner

The committee may be expanded at the discretion of its chairman by enlisting the aid of
other City personnel. For example, if the proposed use would occupy a park, the Forest,

Parks and Beach Director would be part of the committee.

if the proposed use is deemed, by the commiftee, to potentialiy impact a certain segment

of the communiry or the general public's well being, the committee shall provide public

notice and an oppornrnity for comment prior to making its recommendation.

For annual or continuing events (e.g. Surfabout) the permit would be renewabie.

However, foliowing each event, the staff commiltee would evaluate the activity and

determine rf permit conditions shouid be amended before the next renewal.

For events subject to special Ciry permits (e.g., use permits) or subject.to environmental

review, the sraff committee would make its recommendations to the appropriate Ciry

decision-making body, All environmental reviews would be forwarded to the Planning

Commission.

PEfuVIT CONSIDERA.TION REVIEW GUIDELNES :

In reviewing permits, the Committee would constder the following issues (and may add

new issues raised by the particular application):

{' "staging" requirements (space, special equipment, etc.)

* parring
.i. street closures
{. noise
* lights
.1. vehicles (tnrcks/number of vehicles)
.i. season of yearltime of daylduration of activity
* conflicts with other events
* advertising and signage
.i' sale of merchandise
t General Plao consistency

Rcv 3i2ooo 229

t\
/.}t- /



[n reviewing permits, the Committee shait neither discriminate nor infringe on rights
related to free speech, protected classes or other Constitutional issues. If such issues

arise, the City Attorney would be consulted. The Committee may deterrnine that public
notice to the surrounding neighborhood is required prior to reaching a decision. In such

cases, the applicant shall be responsible for disfnbuting such notice.

MERCHANDISE A}iD ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES:

There is no distinction befween "direct sales" and "sale by donation". Table I hereof

shall be used as a guide to determins where such sales would be appropriate. In all cases

where alcohoi is sold or distributed, the operator must have all of the appropriate licenses,

permits and insurance coverage.

Authorization to sell merchandise or food/beverages at locations outside the commercial

district and outside a f,rxed place of business are usually prohibited by the Zoning Code,

the Busrness License Code or the General Plan. Granting a permit under this Policy must

therefore be limited to special events that are of limited duration, within a defined space

and consistent with Table L

COMPETING NTERESTS:

The Chief of Police will mainrain a calendar to schedule events at specific sites. This is
intended to avoid overiapping requests tbr a scarce resource. The following ranked

priority list shall be used as a guide by the Committee in resolving conflicts among

competing interests:

1. Confracfual obligations (leases, etc.)

2. Ciry Councii, Commission, or department actrvities

3. City-sponsored or cosponsored events

4. Permit renewals for annual events

5. Events to raise funds tbr Ciry programs

6. New-events - nonprofit organizations

7. New events - for profit organizations

RESOLVNG CONFLICTS:

If two or more events are proposed within the same prioriry at the same time and place,

the committee shall use the following criteria for making a recommendation on which
event to approve;

Local organization vs. regional or outside organization

Impacts of the event on the community
Date of application
Ease of rescheduiing to another time or piace

Nr

Rev. 1i2000 230



COST RECOVERY:

The City shall not bear financial burdens created by private, short-terrn use of public

spaces unless thers is a direct connection to the City through sponsorship or fund-raising.

Through permit rs-liew, the staff committee will estimate direct costs (labor, equiprnent

and material) for Police, Fire, ambulance, trash, portable toilets, Forest and Beach,

Recrearion, Public Works and Administration. Permit applications will be billed for

actual staffhours, ;quipment, and associated costs.

Fees are established for the use of certain Ciry facilities by Resolution of ihe City

Council. These fses, wtrich are rncluded in City Policy No. C90-01 and Resolution No.

94-1A6, shal1 apply to short-terrn use for special events.

Exceprions: Cosi recovery will not be required for City-sponsored events (e.g.,

Halloween parade, Parkfbst, tree-lighting), Cost recovery will not be required for fund-

raising events whers at least 80% ot the firnds raised w'il1be donated to an approved Ciry

program.

INS URANC E REQ LIRE}IENT S

The City oi Carmei-by-ihe-Sea w:i1 obtain insurance liability coverage for up to thlrry-
five events at public facilities per ye^r. In determining the allocation of the thirry-five
comn:unity events, first priority wili be given to organizations based within Carmel-by-

the-Sea, followed by those based within the greater Carmel area (Sphere of Influence),

the N{onterelr Peninsula and lvlonterey County.

The determination as to whether or not a waiver of the insurance liabiiify coverage shali

apply to a requesting party is left to lhe responsibiliry tund judgment of the City staff. If
thi{r-five events have been held uaCer the insurance waiver or, at the determination of
City s:aff, the eveni should not receive a waiver because of the type of acivity, then the

group using a municipal faclltty shall rnaintain proof of insurance liability coverage for

one million doilars ($1,000,000) and shall name the City, its public officials, and its

employees as additional insureds on the insurance policy certificate. In no event will the

City's insurance waiver of thtrty-five communinT events per year include an eYent at

which alcoholic beverages are to be served, unless such events has been sanctioned by

the Ciry Council.

CzuTERiA FOR WAIVER OF INSURANCE REqUIREME}ITS

In order for an applicant to receive a waiver of the insurance requirements, the following
criteria shall be met:

l. The event to be held in a municipal facility and/or on public properfy must

be pnmarily a public service to the community and without a commercial

objective, The eveat shall be primarily educational vs. primarily

commercial, and will not be for obvious commercial gain.

Rev. 3i2000 23l

iJj



1

3.

The event shall be open io the general public.

Events shall take the form of meetings, speeches, discussions, forums, etc.No event which involves extensive pnyscat exlrtion ar actiyity will be
issued a waiver.

The event must be a one-time special event or not part of an ongoing series
of activities.

No admission charge, fee or donation shall be assessed for the general
public's participation at the evenr.

No alcohoiic beverages shal1 be serv'ed in conjunction with the event except
as specified above.

4.

5.

6.

A1l request for a waiver of liability insurance must be made on a City .,Liability
Insurance waiver" form and submitted to the Assistant City Administrator, who shallreview all requests and determine u'hether the appiication complies with the guidelines
and citena of this Policy. The request for waivi. shall then be submitred to the CifyAdministrator for approval andJor a determination to forward the warver application tothe City Council- If the application is to be reviewed and determined by the CityCouncil, the Council's action sha1l be approved via the adoption of Resolution. The Cityreserves the right to deny the waiver of liabiliry insurance for any event or activity that, inthe Citv's opinion, poses health, safety or insurance risks.

For rnsurance requirements related to alcohol, see policv No. cg9-17.

Rev 3/2000 -arr**



TABLE I

MERCHANDISE, FOOD A}ID ALCOHOLIC BE\ERAGES IN P{-]BLIC PLACES
AND/OR MI.INICIPAL BLTILDINGS

Municipal
Location

Carmel Beach
Del Mar Parking Lot

Parks:

Improved (P-2)
(Forest Hill Park, Devendorf
and Piccadiiiy)

Sunset Center Faciiities Complex:
Sunset Center
Scout House
Cottages
Forest Theater
Vista Lobos

Ciry Facilities:
Indoor
Outdoor

Commercial Streets

and Parking Lots

Merchandise

No
No

Yes

Food Alcohol *

No
No

No

Yes
Yes
No
Yes
Yes

Yes
No

No

No
No

Yes No

Natural (P-1) Nc
(Mission Trail Nature
Preserve and Carmel Beach)

No

Yes
No
Yes
No
No

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes

Residential Streets No No
and Parking Lots

t Alcohoi: Permittee must have a license for sales and distribution.

Nc

Rev. 3/2000 \4.{



COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES AND CULTURAL COMMISSION

Staff Report

April 8, 2016

To:

From:

Subject:

Community Activities and Cultural Commissioners

Janet Bombard, Library and community Activities Director

Margi Perotti, Community Activities Coordinator

Review event and consider a request for a waiver of fees associated with

the Pebble Beach Tour d'Elegance

ursday,August1B,2o16willmarkthe,l9thyearofthePebble
Beach Tour d'Elegance.

This is the first year the Pebble Beach Tour d'Elegance has requested a fee waiver.

Estimated fees for the event are $15,910.00, of which the event organizer is requesting a fee

waiver of $5,000.00.

ANALYSIS/DISCUSSION: The Pebble Beach Tour d'Elegance event has been popular for

the last 1g years and as such continues to grow. The event organizer estimates attendance

to be around 5,000 plus.

The event is similar each year. The Tour arrives on Ocean Avenue in between 11:00 a.m.

and 12:00 p.m. Cars are parked on Ocean Avenue from Junipero to Monte Verde for

spectators to enjoy, while drivers and support staff enjoy a 2-3 hour luncheon catered by the

pebble Beach Company in Devendorf Park. Light jazz is provided as background music in

the park during the event.

The street closes down around 9:00 a.m. and reopens at approximately 2:30 p.m. when the

cars depart towards Pebble Beach through the Carmel Gate.

lnformation signs are be placed in the intersection of Ocean and Mission and Ocean and

Dolores Streets.

per City policy C95-06, Cost Recovery section, "the city shall not bear financial burdens

created by private, shod-term use of public spaces unless there is a direct connection to the

City through sponsorship or fundraising." The policy further states that "the staff committee

will estimate direct costs for Police, Fire, ambulance, trash, portable toilets, Forest and Beach,

Recreation, public Works and Administration. Permit applications will be billed for actual staff

hours, equipment and associated costs, these are considered non-eligible fees". The City

tracked overtime hours for Police, Public Works and Community activities staff in 2015 and

calculated this cost for the day as $6,902.00.

I --\ ,.ldb



This is the first year the event organizer is requesting a waiver of fees. The total council

Discretionary Fund budget for fee waivers if $27,500. The event organizer is asking the

commission to recommend waving $5,000 in event fees'

The community Activities and cultural commission has reduced the subsidy to other event

organizers and has asked them to find ways to reduce the subsidy for public funds for their

event.

The Commission has three options to consider:

1) The Commission can recommend to City Council that the Policy should be applied and

no fees would be waived due to ineligibility;

2) The Commission can recommend that no more than $5,000.00 in fees be waived per

the policy, which the event organizer may appeal to the City Council for additionalfee

waivers;
3) The Commission can choose not to apply policy and recommend the city council

subsidize the event. lf this option is chosen, staff would recommend the event

organizer pay for all overtime staff hours (considered non-eligible fees) in the amount

of 96,912.00 and a minimum of half of the eligible fees in the amount of $4,499'00'

The City would then subsidize the remaining unpaid fees in the amount of $4,499'00'

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment A: 2016 pebble Beach Tour d'Elegance special Event Permit Application

Attachment B: partial list of documentation required for a fee waiver as per city council

Policy C12- 02 as submitted by event organizer

Attachment C; Estimated 2016 fees for Concours on the Avenue

Attachment D: City policy C95-06, Shortterm Use of Public Spaces and Municipal Buildings

for SPecial Events
Attachment E: City council Policy c12-02, Event Fee Waivers

^-4/Jt

Ir



?&thlr, ffear,Vt {cm*

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT
APPLICATION

inI iv



City of Carmel-by{he-Sea Special Event Permit Application

EVENT DESCRIPTION

Event Title:

Date of Event:

Event Organizer:

Date of Request: 11512016

Type of Event.

E nruexniuts

Pebble Beach Tour d'EIegance

Nqgust 18, 2016 (Thursday)

Sean Jacobs - Tour Director

u
X Parade/Procession f] RunAlVatk

tr
x Car Show

E FestivallCelebration f] Otner

Describe the event. Be as specific and detailed as possible. lnclude all equipment to be utilized for the event, including
tents, tables, chairs, sound equipment, props generators, etc.:

Parade of approxjmately 160 cars entering Ocean Ave around 1 1 :00am-12:00pm, parked fror approximately 2-3 hours while participants enjoy
catered lunch in Devendorf Park. Spectators are able to attend for free and enjoy up close and personal look at some of the most historic ind
rarest vintage and ciassic cars in the world. Tents / tables / chairs / and sound equipment to be limited to setup in the park, with the exception
of possibly 2-3 tables with umbrellas to be staged in the iniersection of Ocean Ave. for ''info tables." Signage/banners to be installed a few
days prior to the event. Pebble Beach Catering to supply all equipment and prep-stations for the lunch taking place in the park. Pebble Beach
Concours to provide all volunteers stages in and around the park, and along Ocean Ave. The event wili conilude at approximately 2:30pm,
after all participating cars leave at one time through the Carmel gate to The Pebble Beach Lodge.

ls this an annual event? Yes._ How many years have you held this event? 18 years

Total anticipated attendance: Participants - Approx. 160-'175 cars / Spectators - Approx. 5,000+

APPLICANT AND SERVIGE PROVIDER INFORMATION

Applicant Name: Pebble Beach Concours d'Eleqance

Address: 200 Ctock Tower Ptace, Suite 205-A Carmet, CA 93923

Telephone/Cell/Fax: Office: 622.1700 Celt: 408.685.8704 Fax: 622-9100

List afl professional event organizers, event seruice providers, etc., hired by you that are authorized to work on your
behalf to plan, produce and/or manage your event. Attach additional names and information on a separate pag6 it
needed. Note; Any person, firm or business conducting or carrying on any type of business within the City muit have a
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea business license.

Service Provider; Pebble Beach Comoany Catering

Address: 1700 17-Mile Dr. Pebble Beach CA 93953

Telephone/Cell/Fax: 574.5606

Business License #: PBC will provide

Service Provider:

Address:

1

l' ,Y 'i



Telephone/Cell/Fax:

Business License #:

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

SPECIAL EVENT LOCATION(S}

Describe the proposed location(s) of your event. Be as specific and detailed as possible. Include street names,
intersections, parks, and/or any other pertinent directional details:

Parking of Pebble Beach Tour participant cars (approximately 180 cars) on Ocean Ave. from Junipero to Monte Verde, both
North & South sides. The use of Devendorf Park for a seated/catered lunch from approx. 11:00am-2:00pm.

EVENT SCHEDULE / TIMEUNE

Date From (lnclude AM/PM) To (lnclude AM/PM) Number of Hours
Set up / Load in 8t18t16 7:00AM 11:00AM 4

me of event 8t18t16 11:00AM 2:30PM 2%
Take down/ Load out 8118t16 2:30PM 3:30PM 1

Will this event require admission, entry, participation or sponsorship fees? No snectator fee / admission to
particioate as a driver is bv invitation onlv
lf so, please list ALL required admission, entry, participation and sponsorship fees:

SITE PLAN / ROUTE MAP - 2016 Tour d'Elegance Map attached, @ Tour route also aftached. Updated
2016 route will be provided when complete (minimal changes expected from 2015 veftiion)
Attach a Site Plan and/or Route Map to this application. lnclude the following information:

. An outline of the entire event venue, including the names of all streets, intersectionsr or areas that are part of
the venue. lf the event involves a moving route of any kind, indicate the direction of travel and all street or lane
closures.

. The location of all fencing, barriers andlor barricades. lndicate any removable fencing for emergency areas.
o The provisions for minimum twenty foot (20') emergency access lanes throughout the event venue.

The location of all portable restrooms, including accessible portable restrooms, Note: portable toilets are not
permitted on Scenic Avenue or the beach.

o The location of all stages, platforms, scaffolding, bleachers, grandstands, canopies, tents, booths, cooking
areas, trash containers and dumpsters, and other temporary structures.

. A detail or close-up of a food booth or cooking area configuration, including booth identification of all vendors
cooking with flammable gases or barbecue grills.

o Generator locations and/or source of electricity. Note: generators are not permitted on the beach or Scenic
Avenue

o Placement of vehicles andlor trailers.
r Exit locations for outdoor events that are fenced and/or locations within tents and tent structures.
. The location of first aid facilities and ambulances if applicable.
. ldentification of all event components that meet accessibility standards.

RESERVING PARKING STALLS
List the exact location(s) of - and how many parking stall(s) - you wish to reserve. Please Note: parking stalls on
Scenic Avenue and in the Del Mar parking lot cannot be reserved, Parking stalls on Ocean Avenue cannot be reserved
on Tuesday and Thursday of Car Week. Parkinq stalls mav not be used for the purpose of offerinq test drives.

. All parking stalls on the north side of Ocean Avenue between Junipero Avenue and Monte Verde

/ ""1 
_\.

i ;.:;



. All parking stalls on the south side of ocean Avenue between Junipero Avenue and Monte verde

. ntt parrin6 stalls on 6rh between Junipero Avenue and Mission street

o Atl parking stalls on the east and west side of Junipero Avenue between 6th and Ocean

Avenues for MST Bus Zones.

o All parking stalls on the east and west sides of Mission Street between ocean and 6th Avenue

I All parking stalls on the east side of uission street between ocean Avenue and 7h Avenue (for support

cars onlY)
. All parking stalls on the east and west side of san carlos between ocean Avenue and 6th

o All parking stalls on the east side of san carlos between ocean Avenue and 7th Avenue

r All parking stalls on ine nortn side of 6th between San Carlos and Lincoln (CFD request)

. All parking stalls on the west.side of Dolores street between ocean Avenue and 6rh Avenue

r All parking stalls on the east side of Dolores Street between Ocean Avenue and 7th Avenue

. All parking stalls on Monte Verde between 6th and Ocean Avenue

. All parkin! stalls east side of Carmelo between Ocean and 7th Avenue (for MST)

.AllparkingstallseastsideofCasanovabetweenoceanandTthAvenue

. DesignatJd Handicap Parking will be on ES Junipero between Ocean and 7th Avenue

. Weslside Monte Verde between Sth & Ocean 7 AM - 3 PM

What dates do you wish to reserve the stall(s)? Au€ust 18' 2O16

Will the stalls be for public or private use? Nn

Start and end times each day: 10:00AM / 3:00PM : : :::
How many cars are expected to trse tfre space(s)? Approx' 160'175

(Continued on next Page) City of Carmel-by'the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

lf yes, per carmel Municipal code 12.08.030, a temporary encroachment permit, which will be issued in conjunction

with your special event permit, is required. Describe in o6tait all structures/obiects and their placement in the road:

Willyoubeusingavaletservicetomanageparkinginthereservedstalls?@
lf yes, provide tne fotlowing iniormalion and- attach a copy of the valet parking plan to this document:

Service Provider: N/A

Address:

Telephone/Cell/Fax:

Business License #:

SECURITY PLAN
Have you hired a licensed professional security company to develop and manage your event's security? No

lf so, please provide the following information:

Service Provider:

Address:

ltt

willyou be erecting any structures (stanchions, etc.) or placing a.ny objects such as carpeting in the road? 2 "INFO

^*,1 n^656 .g nalnrac cf



Telephone/Cell/Fax:

Business License #:

Private Patrol Operator #:

Please describe your security plan including crowd control, internal security and venue safety, or aftach the plan to this
application:

MEDICAL PLAN
Do you have a medical plan for your event?

Describe your medical plan. lnclude the communications plan, the number and certification levels (MD, RD, Paramedic,
EMT), and types of resources that will be at your event and the manner in which they will be managed and deployed.
lnclude location(s), hours of setup and dismantle of medical aid areas.

Have you hired a licensed professional emergency medical services provider to develop and manage your event's
medical plan? lf so, please provide the following information:

Service Provider:

Address:

Telephone/Cell/Fax:

Business License #:
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

ACCESSIBILITY PLAN
This list is intended to serve as a planning guideline and may not be inclusive of all City, County, State and Federal
access requirements. You may attach more detailed information if necessary.

1. Will there be an accessible Clear Path of Travel throughout your event venue? Please describe:

Yes, we will provide a large cadres of volunteers to clear road and safety zones for emergency vehicle access and
spectator safety

2. Have you developed a Disabled parking and/or Transportation Plan for your event? tf yes, please describe: No

3. Will a minimum of 10o/o of portable rest rooms at your event be accessible? lf no, indicate why. Please describe your
accessible portable restroom plan:

4. Wilt all signage be placed so pedestrian flow will not obstruct its visibility? Please describe. Nofe: all event signage
must be approved by the City Planning Department before your Special Event permit is issued-

Yes - signage will only include banners to be hung, and 2-3 large "info" signs

5 lf an information center is provided at your event will customer services representatives be available to assist
disabled individuals? Please describe;

Yes, info tables will be available and easily accessible

I 't ..t
/ ,),r'-



6. lf all areas of your event venue cannot be made accessible will maps, programs, or information be made available to

show the location of accessible rest rooms, parking, drinking fountains, and first aid stations? Please describe.

AMPLIFTED SOUND AND/ OR ENTERTAINMENT
musicalentertainmentfeaturesrelatedtoyourevent?lfyes,completethe

following information:

Number of Stages: No Stage
Location of Stage(s): N/A

Number of Performers / Bands: 1 performer
Performe(s)/Band name(s), type of broadcast, and/or music type(s): Jazz

Willsound amplification be used? .

Do you plan to have a patron dance component to either live or recorded music at your event? lf yes, please describe:

Please describe the sound equipment that will be used for your event. lnclude how the sound equipment will be used,
location(s) of the sound equipment and how the equipment will be powered:

The performer will set up inside of Devendorf Park, a full list of equipement may be provided once performer has been
confirmed. We limit the amount of equipement and setup time needed.

ALCOHOL
Does your event involve the use of alcoholic beverages? lf yes, then please check all that apply: No

Free / Host Alcohol 

- 
Alcohol Sales- Host and Sale Alcohol 

- 
Beer 

-
Beer and Wine 

- 
Beer, Wine and Distilled Spirits 

-Describe your security plan to ensure the safe sales or distribution of alcohol at your event:

PARKING/SHUTTLE PLAN
Will your event involve the use of a parking and/or shuttle plan? lf yes, please describe (or provide an attachment of
your plan).

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

FOOD CONCESSIONS I PREPARATION

Does your event include food concession and/or preparation areas? lf yes, please describe how food will be served
and/or prepared:

Do you intend to cook food in the event area? lf yes, please specify method(s) and all equipment that will be used:

PORTAELE RESTROOMS
The City reseryes the right to require portable resfrooms at any event. The number and type will be determined by City Statf.

Do you plan to provide porte

s'
rJ;/ _'\- \/ _)



lf Yes: Proposed total number of portable toilets
Number of ADA accessible portable toilets:

Restroom Provider:

Address:

Telephone/Cell/Fax:

Business License #:

Eouiqment Selup: Date: Time: Eoujpment Picltuo: Date:

SANITATION AND RECYCLING
rnovalofrecyclab1egoods,wasteandgarbageduringand-afteryourevent.lndudethe

number of dumpsters, trash cans, recycling containers, ani a plan for waste stream diversion. Per Municipal Code Section

g.74, the use oi single-use carryout ptastiJOags is proniOiteO at any special event. Additionally, cups, plates, or any type of

food or liquid containers made of styrofoam are not permitted.

Location(s) of dumpsters, trash cans, recycling containers:

Waste Provider:

Address:

Telephone/Cell/Fax:

Business License #:

qquioment SetuD: Date: Equipment Pickup: Date: Time:

MITIGATION OF IMPACT

@notifiedtheresidents,businessesandotherentitiesthatmaybedirectlyimpactedbyyour
eventi lf yes, please attach a complete list of these entities. lf no, please explain:

Attach a sample of the notice that you propose to distribute to this application.

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

@requiresliabilitycoverageforoneMillionDollarS($1,000,000)ormore.ALLpropertyand
locationi that are to be utilized / insured must be listed and reflect the City's interest in the insured property. The policy must

read as follows: The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, its public officials, officers, agents, and employees are narnes as additionally

insured in respect to <EVENT> on iDRtgr.tris information is typed in the "Description of

Operations/LocationsA/ehicles/Exclusions Added by EndorsemenUspecial Provisions. A separate, "Additionally lnsured"

endorsement page, with the same wording as abovi, is also required. lf applicable, Proof of Workers Compensation ]s- also

required. ffre policy must speciry co.rJncerent and expiration dates for coverage of the event. NAME/ADDRESS OF

INSURED musi reai: City of barmel-by-the-Sea, PO Box CC, Carmel, CA 93921. The name of the insurance company writing

the policy, policy numbei, address, p'hone and fax must be included. The lnsurance Company must be a company doing

business in California and must be rated A+ or better. The rating of the company must be attached to the Certificate of

Liability/Additionally insured Endorsement.

AFFI DAVIT OF APPLICANT{$}

,{

i ZUItl



Note: This AFF|DAVIT OF APPLICANT(S) must be signed by all parties, including applicant(s) and all service providers

(including, but not limited to, any and all caterers, event planners, and contractors/vendors that will provide supPort services

for and/or at the event).

I certify that the information contained in the foregoing application is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and that I

have read, understand and agree to abide by the rules and regulations governing the proposed Special Event under the

Carmel-by-the-Sea Municipat CoOe. I underitand that this application is made subject to the rules and regulations established

by the City Council and/or the City Administrator or the City Administrator's designee. I agree to comply with any other

requirements of the City, County, State, Federal Government, and any other applicable entity which may pertain to the conduct

of ihe Event. I agree to-abide Oy tnese rules, and further certify that I, on behalf of the Host Organization, am also authorized

to commit that Jrganizaiion, ani therefore agree to be financially responsible for any costs and fees that may be incurred by or

on behatf of the Elent to the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea. t understand that submitting this application acfs as a request, nat a

guarantee.

1 Sean Jacobs - Pebble Beach Tour d'Elegance Dilector

Organiz€rrApplieant

Signature

Prlnt Name of Service Provider

Business Name:

Print Name of Service Provider

Business Nam6:

Signaturo

Print Name of Service Provider

Business Name:

Signature

EMAIL YOUR COMPLETED APPLICATION TO

OR

SEND YOUR COMPLETED APPLICATION TO:

Ouestions: Call 831 -620-2020

Oate

mm perottt@cr. ca,|Il!el. ca us a nd itlombatd{@ci. carmel. ca us

Community Activities Department
PO Box CC Carmel, CA 93921
Attn: Margi Perotti and Janet Bombard

7/
1,

/ -:\/ _/ -'



P.

&t
3l
-t

-s/

,'1...\'tt:':'.:3,

t.;

tot+

na-.'..

I
\Z
;o

+..'6'
aa

. ,.7
eE i
Eg i"

i
!r
t:

s.'
c.

'l 'pnte
: oq)ueU
i laure)

N
()

ca
I(r)
()

Qtr

a

@

oX
Ftllts.Jha,? ';At l-1;ofrfr

ffi
ut{
E

@
{/.oo*'7 -d

'.ooo"

UX{zsttxqJE

// se'/.As
o-

&a

t$ ,/g
o\

E]
r*U
*,2 \DY< E

HH }
HE H
iri n( 5
ftg

H

ti*b* E, iE )r,
FI\. E : _..tat"'-
E is" '.--t.t'*'arri5;:t<;

qqx;

sEgl*or:* E!.+,q&
i
i
c
I

,..-€ '.. Y.,nr 
".. 

*fr Lye M i/-\ ** Hfi
, .- ,t\ '{ 

g n v'/'l-/ ', .. t \, .i.;.^ ......r.......".,..€....j..-..-.rt .,
,, ... " 

= 
( ) .,t

'r- 
t'.....r.......r"'..6....Y 

. -.n,
q" ;r-\- ^-lsl\f"(/"r/t, 1

,/ rt)r/u
i

l=/
/?a



6.-:: '-%\ /)\ '*=*{
- #L ,*/X,.:": i1... ,"-'"""i

PEBB LE
CONCOURS

BEACH
D,ELEGANCE

START &
FINISH

\-"

I 14

3
I
I
{
J

&n&#
l*tv

_l_\"
lr-

\\
lr\r\ltl\a\q

24.5 miles/39.4 km
South of Rio Rd., Carmel

Pfeiffer Big Sur
State Park

Ripplewood Resort
/ (turn around

\-!' destination)

Ripplewood

C-7-- /2 / ,/ ,

-/c,rr+ >U€ahe
THU RS DAY AUGUST 13, 2015

7:OO o.m. Cars begin to line up along Portola Road near rhe
Equestrian Center.

8:OO o.m. Departure in groups escorted by the California
Highway Patrol (CHP).

9:00 o.m. Groups begin arrival at Tehama Monterra properties.

Il:30 o.m. Luncheon Buffet begins at Devendorf Park in
Downtown Carmel.

l:30 p.m. f)rivers and guests rerurn ro your cars.

2:15 p.m. Departure from Carmel to Portola Road in Pebble
Beach.

2:30-3:00 p.m.
Champagne Toast at Credit Suisse tent, Portola Road.
Times are approximate.

Deporlure Point:
Equestrian Center Pebble Beach - Portola Road -
Berween Equestrian Center and Pebble Beach Golf
Academy. Note: Zero out odometer at stop sign before
departing Porto la Road.

Check Point:

M Km Zero your odometer.

0.0 0.0 Exit stam area, rhrough Gate / veer right.

O.l 0.3 tTurn Right at first street on Right
(Ondukdo Road - Warch for Fkgmen).

O.2 0.3 1Tur.r Left at first srreer onro Stevenson Drive.

0.5 0.8 1Tur., l.eft onto Alva Lane.

O.5 O.9 lTurn Left at The Lodge gate and pass in front of
The Lodge at Pebble Beach.

1.2 1.9 At the inrersection, tturn Right onto 17-Mile
Drive. Follow the double yellow lines with red stripe
indicating the 17-Mile Drive.

2.2 3.5 \7hen you come ro a fork in the road \ veer Left to
the Pebble Beach Main Gate (Highway 1 Gate).

3.6 5.7 Exit thc Pcbble Beach Main Gate.



MKm
3.7 5.9 \Tur., kft in the direction of Highway 68.

lTrrn Right immediately thereafter at the signal onto
Highway 68. You will be crossing over Highway 1.

1Tu.r, Left on to Aguajito Road. The California
Highway Patrol will direct you. Do not go onro rhe
freeway!!

Caution road narrows.

\ Bear Left at Y, Loma Alto and Aguajito Road,
continue on Aguajito.

WAICH BRAKES, STEEP DOWN HILL

tTake SHARP RIGHT rurn at Vejo and
Aguajito. Again stay on Aguajito.

f>Tur.r Righr onto Monhollan. (lYatch for Flagmen)
Monhollan becomes Olmsted.

tTu.r, Right on Via Malpaso.

Pass thru Gate to Monterra.

Restroom Stop on the'Ithama Monrerra properry.
Follow the directions ofthe volunteers in order to
park your car. This is a brief 10 minure resr srop.

THIS IS A 10 MINUTE REST & BAIHROOM
STOP, Restrooms available.

After you return to your cars, continue on Via
Malpaso. / Veer Right at Guard House - just
before entrance to Tehama Golf Club-and pass

through the gate on the fught. The road becomes
Tehama.

tTurn Right onto Carmel Valley Road.

At third stop light, a t,r., Left onto Carmel
Rancho Boulevard. (Sign says Carmel Knolls Drive.)
(\Watch for flagmen. CHP will control intersection.)

tTwn fughr at T-.junction onto Rio Road.
Continue through rwo traffic lights - ger inro the
left turn lane.

At the third traffic light tu.n1 Left onto Highway
i heading south to Big Sur.

Pass over the famous Bixby Bridge.

Pass by Poinr Sur Naval Sration.

1 f.n turn inro Ripplewood Resort parking area.
This is your destination ro rurn around for return to
Carmel-by-the-Sea. Volunteers will direct you with
the aid of the California Highway Patrol.

Restrooms are available if needed.

MKm
4O.4 65.0 Exit Ripplewood Resort. -Riglrt onto Highway 1

North toward Carmel.

66.4 106.8 At the first signal light 1 trrn Lefr onto Rio Road
(Shortly thereafter you will be asked to pull over
and form a group for a parade line into
Carmel-by-the-Sea.) There will be a parade lane, a

form-up lane. ('Watch for Carmel Police and CHP
to direct you.).

67.1 lO8.O At Stop sign / veer soft fught onro Junipero.

68.I 109.6 At Fourth Stop Sign 1 t,r..r Left onto Ocean

Avenue and park where directed for lunch

- lunch is served at Devendorf Park.

Bring your Tour credential for entry into the
park Please do not leave purses or valuables in
your car.

68.5 1.10.2 After lunch continue down Ocean Avenue ro San

Antonio. tT,r., fught onto San Antonio. (You

will be asked to form-up in groups.)

68.8 llO.7 At Stop Sign I turn Left and conrinue through to
Pcbble Beach Gate. You are now on Carmcl \Vay.

68.9 ll0.9 Proceed on Carmel Way and \ veer Left at fork in
the road. STEEP HILL, [(EEP REVS UP.

Conrinue through Stop Sign. 1 Turn Left onto
17-Milc Drivc.

69.3 lll.5 Return to EQUESTRIAN CENTER/FINISH LINE.

Total Mileage/Kilo meters:

M - 69.3 ,/ Km - III.5
Congratuktions!

'We invite you to join us at the Credit Suisse tent on
Portola Road for a glass of champagne to celebrate

completing the 2Ol5 Tour d'Elegance where you will
find your participation ribbon and photo

EMERGENCY SERVICES NUMBERS
Hagerty Assistance Thucks: l-877 -922-339 4

Antique Auto Restoration:
Randy Reed, 83 1-2 33-4555
Toni Reed, 83L-238-0961

Pebble Beach Concours Office:
831-622-1700

In an Emergencyt Dial gll

3.9 6.2

4.8 7.7

5.3 8.5

6.4 tO.2

8.0 12.8

8.5 13.6

9.5 15.2

9.7 15.6

12.1 19.4

15.4 24.7

15.5 24.9

15.7 25.2

28.9 46.5

34.6 55.6

40.2 64.7

/ 3v



Pebble Beach Concours d,Elegance
200 Clock Tower place, suite 205-A, Cat.lmei Ca.93922
Pebblebeachconcours.net

831.622.7700

March 30,2016

Margi Perotti

Community Activities Coordinator
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea

mmperotti@ci.carmel.ca.us

Dear Margi,

on behalf of the Pebble Beach Concours d'Elegance, I wish to submit our request for a fee waiver, up to
$5,000, for the 2015 Pebble Beach Tour d'Elegance, taking place on Thursday, August 18th, 2016 in
downtown Carmel-by-the-Sea.

Entering its 19tr'year, The Tour d'Elegance has enjoyed a long and beneficial partnership with the City of
Carmel. We believe our year-round promotion of the City of Carmel to our large group of affluent
participants, along with their presence downtown during the day of the event itself, is a strong value add
to the local economy.

We appreciate all of the efforts made by the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, Carmel Police Department, and
Carmel City Parks & Recreation department to ensure the success of The Tour d'Elegance over the years,
and we look forward to working with all parties once again :r:.2015.

Sean Jacobs

Pebble Beach Tour d'Elegance Director

4s!;a'txr,qrehblekashea,nEsssJls!

831.622.1700

/ 3'l



L
o
(E

=OJ
o
lJ-
L

o(ts
ooc

o-
o-

,6

oo
CJoa
FI
{J\

oq
ooo
-i!>

*ooo
d
-l{J\

oo
doo
oi
v,

oo
CJo
rr')

+ltt

EBOEo(o
aE

J

oq
oo
rl
<fi

oo
cio
Lr'!

c.i
4J\

oo
CJ
tn
N
c.,tt{>

(o
O)
C;ln
rn
Fl
re>

I

oq
oo
@
<t>

oo
+o(o
=t'Fl
.,f>

I

00q
N
Otsl
oo'rl(4

I

(o
4
o)o(o
sl
<.r>

I

rJ1
r-'{

do
cn
<t>

I

sl
O)
d
N
rn
<ft

I

oo
CJo
LN

r\,l'4a
I

o
O)
+
l\
Fl

N
<e>

L
o
o
P
C

EB
o=

oc))
C (IJgE

!c(oLu (J

oo
()

J
J(J

=';ts>

tJ1

o
F
(o
L
o
o-
o

oF

E
L

=(J
ott
o
P
f
o
L

=o
F

t4
o(J
oro
L
J
oF

L
o(.F
V)o
E
o-

od
tJ.)L
b!-(!6
r!F

oU

o
OJ
L
(9

--&d(o
L(|
OJ

-:z 5(Jo
QJ:-c o)()>

tt
o

-(J
o
L
co
L

=oF

E-(o
th
ol

-o(o
Fv1
.L

f(oo-cF(J

Eo
od
Po
(o

-thoc
f
L

co

U
co
o-

o
o
o-

P
L
J
o(J

o
L
(u
P

o

O)

E
L
(o
(J
(F

o

=(J

.g
L_oo
(o(o
L) o-

Oio
=r .9po-

U1o
tJ1

Lo
L
o)

-
UJ
ti'6

-Y(J
fLF

(n
o
th
L
o.
OJ

lIJ
th,6

-!z(J
5
L
F

t^
o
(h
L
o-
L
o

l-IJ
tt

'7h
J(J

L
F

thL
o
P
L'=
o-

=o-
(o
d.

I
(o
Pc
o
E,
N
oF

N
N
N
F{

rl
rl
LN
rl

sfo
Fl
rl

aoo
rl
r-l

|J)
tr')o
el

rl
co
Fl

rlro
cn
Fi

O
N
N
r-l

J
od
o-
tn
Flo
N

J
od
o-
tn
or!

J
od
o-
LN
Flo
N

J€
o-
tn
Flo
N

-Joa
o-
rn
r{o
N

J
od
o-
LN
Flo
N

J
od
o-
r.r)

-lON

J
od
o-
In
-lo
N

J
od
o-
LN
rlo
N

-tod
o-
rJ')rlor!

LN
rloc!
(o
N
00

l.r)rlo
r\I
(o
N
00

rJ')rlo
N
N
N
O)

LN
rlo(\l
o|
r-l
00

LN
rlo
N
o)
Fl

oo

LN
Flo
N
N
@

rn
Flo
a\
O)rl
@

r.r)
Floc\
O)

o)

ro
Flo
N
(o
N
00

o
o0
(o
L
o
o

co
od
E
o
o
lJ-

(u
bo
ro
L
o
OJ^
co tt
odE
E-

9.6

Pq
c.,

Ec
od 'a
(J?
ttt O
-P>,5

ti
.9
oo
f

UI
bIc

P
(!

o
a.o

'=
J
(J
ovr

(u
o!
(I,

.g
VI

o.)
oo
(I,
L

.99qt

a,
b!
(o

.90
v)

q,)
ot
(o

.gv\

Pc
o)
E
.g
o

IJJ

od6
PP
-CoJ q)
FE,

FII
to
+,o
oo
T'
J6
o
ln
tro
CLx

UJ

J
oF
(ol
F{lolNI

/ q,l



o
o-

=(J
E
,9
lJ-
C
otiL
(U
J
P
(I]
0
b!
OJ

a\
:o
ru

o
r.t

L;
(o

bol
oJlLI
sl.
EI
CI
(o

<iol
c\t 

i
I
L](gI

o_

-Co-l

=>l
P
UI
r-l

G'i
N
r-.1 l

{tl
>.1

=tol
<loi
rl

Fl

:l
!l
@
Fo
e
P
LI
oc
6ol
=l(tJ

L)I
ci
(5
ul

Lol
-l)
bo
E
sti\\
<io
T]
c\
P
o
ooi
C

-\z l
Li
(o
o-
>l
L

el€lJl
-cl(Jl
cl(!
LI
coi
-:zL
(g
o-

3
oF

q-
o
P
C
o
E
o(J
(!
o-
E
(u
E
o,)

E
E
o
Uo
d.

Iolql
N
Fiql
Lol
<tt
ail
E
bDl

OJ

P)oic\\
oloi
@otlo)l
@
..1
L]ol
'al
3l
oJl
oJl:
o*
q)

-o
ool
=lLUI

Oo
drl
O)
LN
r-l

oq
c\
O)
cn
d

<t> ) <J>

=o
.E
G)

E
{=
L
qJ

o
a
o-

Oq
o
N
|r)

tJ)(o
<t>
x

00
Fo

(t'
OJ
t, I
LI

=sf,
xl

slFI
ftJPrrl

Nl

E]
5o

(o

vt
OJ

E
L
o
o

.oJ

.=

I

.=

E
E
o(J

vl

o
m
x
L

=ol
L
0J
o-l
oolmt{/I
6lLI

=o
il
=lo+l
sl
(U
P)+l(ci
6
Plc
OJ
e,)
(Fl
Lo

Ec
G)l

olol
l+*

r{osl
<tt
.q

L
fo
L

=o
P
v)
rl
L
o+
G
Pc
o
d.
s
L
o
E
OJ

oo
JE

t(

l
q

_cl
-ilN
(ol
Po
P

E
o-l
olo
O)l
P
(E
(ol
F{l*lvl
=lbot

=l<l

o

E
d
oc
N
r-l

GJ
(.o
Fl
P
6

oo
f

E
oL(5
(E

co
e.

(IJ
o-
L
o
E
0)

OJo

o
bo
fl,
E(!
E
o

=(u
-o
G'
Ec
fso
d.

-iu
-o(I,
.=
(D

=

(u

oc
C
o
L

=oo
oI
oP
N
r_l

(U

.E

.E
E
(o
P
(o

OJ

o-
o
(u
o-
+
ooo.i
Fl
L
oE
E
o
o)
OJ
C
P'-
:,
(o

.:
C

roq
r{r\(o
\rt
Lo
.!
.!
C
(E

Ec(!
-cP

=P(U:I

o
OJ

o
od
ox
6
E
N
il.t
C
f
oc
o

3
o
P
(u

-o(E
L
o
o-

oq
Ooo
rl
<r>

-c()
oo
o
vt
ti
o
Pl!
o
.s
Eo

.^i-,1-,1-^1.^1.^

(J
(o
O)

oq
rr)
N
{d

Ar
o
tJ)

o
E(!
t!

I

c(J
(I,
(lJ

oq
m
{4
Ar
o
rr)
N

t^c
.go
t^
oo

=L(o
o-
oz

(J
(o
OJ

lJ)(o
4,t>
P
(E

o
N

6
(u

-t5
(I,
I
L
L
(I]
co

.:
E
o
a-
:o
C
f
o

TA

o
E
o
o
#

o

o
P
o
L
(u

.gc
5
q

-:z()
o
-o
r/)

J(J
o

-o

rf)
ro
an
<tt

o
L

=v\
o
E
()
o
6

.Eo
o
oo
s
L
o
E
o
oo

OJ

-o(o
E

=rto
d.
c
oc
OJ
0.,II

.=
vlta
OJ(J
o
Lo
P

(1)

IJJ

E
(J
o
o.

tJ1

(o

o
N

)
o
F
Et,
ooo
q,

lt
.It
(u
IL
o
]i
oo
Eo
G

.E
o
ur

////



I.
II.
III 

"

IV.
I7

VI.

CITY C]OUNCIL POL]CY CN.A2
EVENT FEE WAIVERS

Revised Jul;' 1, 201 4

Purpose
Comrnunity Evcnt Fees

Application Process

Documentation Required w'ith Waiver Recluest

Additional Documentation Required for Established Events

Guideiines

l. Purpose
The City suppol'ts ancl encourages events that have a significant economic, charitable, or

comnr.unity bcnefit. The City u,ill consider waiving cerlain fees in order to promote the City and

special events. The City is regr-rlarly being approached to rvaive fees for Community Events.

This policy is designed to outiine the process and critcria for the submittal, and review by

Council, of fee u'aiver requcsts.

II. Commrinity Event ['ees

Fees eiigible for Waivers:
. Special E,vent Permit Fee
o Fees associated with street closures
r Fees associated w'ith events on the beacir or at City Parks

r Parking stail t-ees

Fees not eligible for Waivers:
o Grant writing expenses
r Damage deposits
o Overlirne costs for City personnei
r Costs for persomel q,ith '"vhich the City contracts in order to fasilitate the event

I1l. Application Process
r An applicanr shall submit in wliting a request Ibr a l'ee rvaiver to the Community

Activities Director
r All special event f-ee waiver requests will f-rrst be considered by the Community

Activities an<l Cultural Cornmission (CA&CC) at a regularly scheduled meeting.

a. In the case of requests fbr fee waivers for new events - or estabiished events

that have previously receir.ed a waiver of fees and are w'ithin the three-year
window outlined in the Guideiines below - the Communit;' Activities and

Cuiturai Commission may make a formal request to the City Administrator to

waive eligibie f-ees r.rp to 55000 instead of securing Councii approval

b. Requests for fee waivers fiom events going into tireir fourth year or more

must come to the City Cor.rncil after being reviewed by the Community
Activitics and Cultural Commission.

. The City Administraror shall be given aulhority to apply this policy for w-aivers up to
ss000

/tD-



. Staff or the applicant can appeal a waiver request to the City Council.

o Events proposed for co-sponsorship must be placed on a City Council agenda

IV. Docuntentation Required With Waiver Request

. Detailed scope of the event

. Proposed budget for the event

o Anticipated econotnic impact to the City and community

o Anticipated positive and negative impacts of the event on the community

r What charitable contributions wiil be made (if any), either directly or indirectiy, to the

conurunity? What is the anticipatecl amourt or percentage of the contribution(s) and to

what organization(s) rviil it be made?

. Written sur\rey of businesses andior residents irffected by the cvent indicating their

acceptance ofthe ProPosed event

V. Additional Docnmentation Required tbr Established Events That Have Received Fee

Waivers
r Past financial statements since inception of event

r Documentation sirowing actual charitable contributions to organizations within the 93921

zip codc alea since inception ofevent

VI. Guidelines
o The number of years for rvhich an organization will be eiigible for ongoing waivers of

fees for the same event shail be no more than three years from the inception ol the event

r Clraritable contributions will be made to charitable organizations within the 93921 zip

code area
o The total dollar amount of fee u,aivers authorized each fiscal year shall not exceed

$27,500
. The City shall waive no more than $-5.000 in t-ees fbr a special eveut
. Priority will be given to organizations that provide educational and/or community

programs and events that are opeu to tl-re general public fiee of charge

/1 "3



POLICY lrl0. C95-06

SHORT-TER}I USE OF PIJtsLIC SPACES A}iD
}IL TICIPAL BLTLDI]\IGS FOR SPECIAL E\TENTS

GEI{ERAL:

The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea provides for the short-term use of municipal facilities and
public property by groups and individuals. Facilities and public properties will be made
available at no fee if the event is sponsored or cosponsored by the City. Co-sponsorship
with communiry groups shall be determined on a case-by-case basis by the City Councii.
Activities may be conducted in or on municipal facilities and public property subject to
the permrt process and criteria established herein. This policy also applies to the
following:

1. Support Group as designated by the Ciry" Council which are also reguiated
by Policy No C89-45.

2. The use of Library facrlities, Vista Lobos and Sunset Center, which are aiso
governed by adopted policy.

EVENTS REOJUIRTNG PERMiTS

Conditrons that require a formal permit for use of public properfy in the City of Carmei-
by-the-Sea are those that include any of the following:

1. A request for the exclusive use of any portion of any Ciry property to the
exclusion of the general public, or

2. Any request that involves the support of any comrnercial enterpris€, o.g.

caterer, porta-potties, etc.; or

3, A request that involves sound equipment greater than a 12 volt system; or

4. Any request that involves the erection of any strucfure, e.g. stage, tents,
af- ' ^cL-., ur

5, Any request that involves speciai outside or City support, e.g. traffic
control, traffic cones, barricades, signage, extra trash pick up, etc.; or

6. Any request that involves a gathering or assemblage of more than 50
people; or

7. Any request that involves the use of any internal combustion engine, e.g.

gas generator; or

8. Any request for exemption from current City codes, rules, regulations,
restrictions, and policies governing activities on City properfy.

-T2A-

t{+



PERMIT PROCESS

On forms provided by the Ctfy, a cornmon activity group or individual may maks

application to the City to hoid a special event using public property. Applications are to

be submiued at least sixty (60) days in advance of the event and be evaluated by a staff

commiftee, which shall forward its recommendation to the City Administrator for action.

The decision of the City Administrator is appealable to the Cily Council. The application

may be approved, denied, or approved with conditions. The staff committee membership

is as foliows:

* Risk Manager - Chairman * Police Chief
* Fire Chief * Principai Planner

The commiuee may be expanded at the discretion of its chairman by enlisting the aid of
other City personnel. For example, if the proposed use would occupy a park, the Forest,

Parks and Beach Director would be part of the committee'

If the proposed use is deemed, by the commiltee, to potentially impact a certain segment

of the communiry or the generai public's well being, the committee shall provide public

notice and an opportunify for comment prior to making its recommendation.

For annual or continuing events (e.g. Surfabout) the permit wouid be renewabie.

However, following each event, the staff committee would evaiuate the activity and

determine if permit conCitions should be amended before the next renewal.

For events subject to speciai Ciry permits (e.g., use permits) or subject to environmental

review, the staff commifree would make its recommendations to the appropriate Cify

decision-makrng body. All environmental reviews would be forwarded to the Planning

Commission.

PERMIT CONSIDERA.TION REVIEW GUIDELNES :

In reviewing permits, the Committee would consider the foliowing issues (and may add

new issues raised by the particular appiication):

* "staging" requirements (space, special equipment, etc.)

* parktng
.i' street closures
t' noise
* lights
.i. vehicles (trucks/number of vehicles)
* season of yearltime of daylduration of activify
.i. conflicts with other events

* advertising and signage

* sale of merchandise
t General Plan eonsistency

Rev 3/200O

?s



In reviewing permits, the Committee shall neither discriminate nor infringe on rights
related to free speech, protected classes or other Constitutionai issues. If such issues
arise, the Cif Attorney would be consulted, The Commrttee may determine that public
notice to the surrounding neighborhood is required prior to reaching a decision. In such
cases, the applicant shall be responsible for distributing such notice.

MERCHANDISE AND ALCOHOLIC BEVER-AGES:

There is no distinction befween o'direct sales" and "sale by donation". Table I hereof

shall be used as a guid.e to determine where such sales would be appropriate. In ail cases

where aicohol is sold or distributed, the operator must have all of the appropriate licenses,

permits and insurance coverage.

Authorization to sell merchandise or food/beverages at locations outside the commercial
diskict and outside a fixed place of business are usually prohibited by the Zontng Code,

the Business License Code or the General Plan. Granting a permit under this Policy must

therelore be limited to special even{s that are of limited duration, within a defined space

and consistent with Table i.

CO}IPETING INTERESTS:

The Chief of Police will maintain a calendar to schedule events at specific sites. This is
intended to avoid overlapping requests for a scarce resource. The following ranked

prioriry list shall be used as a guide by the Committee in resolving conflrcts among

competing interests:

1. Contraclual obiigations (leases, etc.)

2. City Council, Commission, or department actlvities

3. Ciry-sponsored or cosponsored events

4. Permit renewals for annual events

5. Events to raise funds tbr Ciry programs

6. New-events - nonpro{it organizations

7. New events - for profit organizations

RESOLVNG CONFLICTS:

If two or more events are proposed within the same prioriry at the same time and place,

the comrnittee shall use the following criteria for making a recortmendation on which
event to approve:

Local organization vs. regional or outside organization
Impacts of the event on the community
Date of application
Ease of rescheduiing to another time or piace

Rev. 3i20O0

,/ /("

T3fl



COST RECOVERY:

The City shali not bear financial burdens created by private, short-term use of public

spaces unless there is a direct connection to the City through sponsorship or fund-raising.

Through permit re,liew, the staff committee will estirnate direct costs (Iabor, equipment

and matenal) for Police, Fire, ambulance, ffash, portable toilets, Forest and Beach,

Recrearion, public Works and Administration. Permit applications will be billed for

actual staff hours, equipment, and associated costs.

Fees are established for the use of certaln Ciry facilities by Resolution of the City

Council. These fees, which are inciuded in City Policy No. C90-01 and Resolution l'lo'

94-1A6, sha1l appiy to short-terrn use lor special events'

Exceptions: Cost recorlery wili not be required for Ciry-sponsored events (e.g.,

Halloween parade, Parktest, rree-lighting). Cost recovery will not be required for fund-

raising *r.nr, where at least 807, of the funds raised will be donated to an approv.ed City

program.

tNS URT}. C E REO LlR E \IENTS

The City oi Carmel-by-ihe-Sea wrii obtain insurance liabiliry coverage for up to thrty-

five ovents at public facilities pet y?ar. In determining rhe allocation of the thirty-five

comrnunity evints, first prioriry wiil be given to organizations based within Canr:ei-by-

the-Sea, followed b;r those based wilhin the greater Carmei area (Sphere of Influence),

the Monterey Penrnsula and Monteroy Counry.

The determination as to whether or not a waiver of the insurance liabiliry coverage shall

apply to a requesting parfy is ieft to the responsibiliry and judgment of the Ciry staff. If
thrtv-five events have been held under the insurance waiver or, at the determination of
City siaff, the event should not receive a wai.ver because of the type of acttvtty, then the

group using a municipal faclliry sha1l maintain proof of insurance liabiliry coverage for

one million dollars ($t,000,000) and shall name the City, its public officials, and its

employees as additionai insureds on the insurance policy certiflcate. In no event will the

City's insurance waiver of thirry-five communiry events per year include an event at

which alcoholic beverages are to be served, uniess such events has been sanctioned by

the Ciry Council.

In order for an applicant to receive a waiver of the insurance requirements, the following

criteria shall be met:

l. The event to be held in a municipai facility and/or on public properfy must

be primarily a pubiic seryice to the community and without a commercial

objective. The event shaii be primarily educational vs. primarily

commercial, and will not be for obvious commercial gain.

)3t
1q1

R:v. l/2000



The event shall be open to the geneial p.,-iblic.

Events shall take the form of meetings, speeches, discussions, forums, etc.No event whjch involves extensive physical exertion or activify will be
issued a waiver.

The event must be a one-time special event or not part of an ongoing series
of activities.

No admission charge, fee or donation shail be assessed for the general
public's participation at the event.

No alcohoiic beverages shall be sened in conjunction with the event except
as specified above.

Ail request for a waiver of liabiliry insurance must be made on a City ,,Liability
Insurance Waiver" form and submitted to the Assistant Ciry Administrator, who shallrevjew all requests and determine rn'hether the application complies with the guidelines
and cnteria of this Policy. The request for waivlr shall then 6e submitted to the CifyAdministrator for approval and/or a determination to forward the waiver application tothe Ciry Council. If the application is to be reviewed and determined by the CityCouncii, the Council's action shall be approved via the adoption of Resoiution. The City
reserves the right to deny the waiver of tiabiliry insurance for any event or activity that, rn
the City's opinion, poses health, safety or insurance risks.

For insurance requirements rerated to alcohol, see policv No. cg9-17.

')

4.

5.

6.

Rev 3/2000 n2
l+d



TABLE I

MERCHANDISE, FOOD A}ID ALCOHOLIC BE\'ERAGES IN PI-IBLIC PLACES

AND/OR MLINI CIP AL BI'ILDINGS

Municipal
Location

Carmel Beach
Del Mar Parking Lot

Parks:
Improved (P-2)
(Forest Hill Park, Devendorf
and Piccadrlly)

Narural (P- i )
(Mission Trail Nafure
Preserye and Carmel Beach)

Sunset Center Faciiities ComPlex:

Sunset Center
Scout House
Cottages
Forest Theater
Vista Lobos

City Facilities:
Indoor
Outdoor

Commercial Streets

and Parking Lots

Merchandise Food Alcohol *

No
No

No

No

Yes
Yes
No
Yes
Yes

Yes
No

No

No

No

No
No

Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes
No
Yes
No
No

No
No

Yes

No

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes

Residential Streets

and Parking Lots
No L\u

* Alcohol: Permittee must have a license for sales and distribution.

Rev. 3i2000 nzr
1q?



COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES AND CULTURAL COMMISSION

Staff Report

April 12,2016

To:

From:

Subject:

Community Activities and Cultural Commissioners

Janet Bombard, Community Activities Director

Review and discuss draft Special Event Policy, provide
direction/recommendation to City Council as necessary

SUMMARY:
ln September 2015, Mayor Jason Burnett appointed an ad hoc Event Policy and Event Fee Waiver
Policy Review Committee, and charged it with reviewing the current outdated (and sometimes
conflicting) policies governing events and fees, and creating an updated, comprehensive policy in their
place. The ad hoc committee consisted of Carolyn Hardy, Jim Emery, Jon Wolfe, Dick Stiles, Bob
Mulford, Monta Potter and Ken White. City staff support to the committee was provided by paul
Tomasi and Janet Bombard.

ln addition to the basic charge, the mayor asked the committee to address the following issues:

o Develop standard criteria for the approval of special events
. Ensure that special event fee waivers, if continued, fit within the budget set by the City Council

Consider ways in which the special event and fee waiver policies might advance the ethics,
character and strategic goals of the community

. Find ways to encourage events during the non-peak tourism months

The ad hoc committee employed a variety of methods to fulfill its charge, including:

. Reviewing, combining and incorporating still-relevant sections of existing City event and fee
waiver policies into the new document

. Reviewing other cities' special event policies
o Review of existing statutes that pertain to special events (alcohol and health permits, for

example)
o Securing an opinion from the City's insurance carrier as to desired levels and necessary types

of coverage for events

With respect to the issue of fee waivers, the committee was of the opinion that a means of
encouraging and helping special events should be retained; however, the ad hoc committee
determined that limited funding of special events should be limited to the first three years of an event
only and that no City funding should be allocated to any event going into its fourth year or more.

A 2008 9th District United States Court of Appeals decision (Long Beach Area Peace Network vs. City
of Long Beach) affects the way in which municipal funds may be allocated to special events.

The Court of Appeals found that allowing a City Council the discretion to fund or waive permit fees
without specified criteria for making fee waiver decisions afforded the Council the opportunity to

150



potentially engage in content-based discrimination, for making such a decision allows ,,the exercise ofunbridled discretion" and is therefore unconstitutionar.

ln April' 2015, the Monterey City Council adopted an ordinance, based on the Court of Appeals
finding, regarding city special events and fee waivers. ln accordance with the decision, the city of
Monterey identified specific criteria for the funding of special events. lt also adopted a grant type
process for awarding those funds. The ad hoc committee reviewed the City of Monterey ordinance,
and is proposing a similar process for allocating funding to new City special events (see pages 10 - 12
of the draft policy).

The ad hoc committee also discussed the fact that the adoption of the new policy could affect events
that have received fee waivers for a number of years. The commission could make a recommendation
to the City Council that the slate be wiped clean regarding the provision in the policy stating that the
number of years for which an organization will be eligible for city support shall be no more than three
years from the inception of the event, and that all existing events will be eligible for three more years
before that particular provision kicks in.

City Attorney Don Freeman reviewed the draft policy, and met with both City staff and the Ad Hoc
Committee to provide suggestions and clarification.

Staff wishes to thank the ad hoc Event Policy and Event Fee Waiver Policy Review Committee for the
many hours and hard work its members put into the drafting of the attached proposed Special Event
Policy. Special thanks go to ad hoc committee member Carolyn Hardy for volunteering to undertake
the onerous task of creating the first draft of the policy and overseeing it through its many revisions,
and participating in additional meetings with both staff and the City Attorney.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1: Draft Special Events policy, Revision 12
Attachment 2: Letter from Mayor Jason Burnett to ad hoc committee

151



It*

^ 
t-T*o#M^IT I

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea
SPECIAL EVENTS

REVISION 12

POLICY

Library and Community Activities Director
Community Activities Department
Carmel-bythe-Sea, CA 93921
(831) 624-1366

152



REVISION 12

SPECIAL EVENTS POLICY C16.
TABLE OF CONTENTS

GENERAL
lntroduction
Purpose
Previous Policies

CRITERIA FOR EVALUATING AND SCHEDULING SPECIAL EVENTS
Community Benefits
Community lmpacts
Criteria for Event Evaluation
Events that Require A Permit
City Support Groups

FACILITY USE
City Wide Facilities Use

Table 1: Use of Municipal Facilities and Public Properties for Special Events

PERM!T PROCESS
Staff Committee
Staff Committee Review of Application
Criteria for Review of Application
Public Notification
Notification Process
Competing lnterests
Resolving Conflicts
Application Approval / Denial Notification
Appeals Process
Revocation of Permit
Cost Recovery

SPECIAL EVENT SUPPORT PROGRAM
Type of Events for Support Program
Eligibility Criteria
lneligibility
Qualification Criteria
Evaluation Measures
Granting Process & Selection Committee
Funding Levels
Funding
Other Requirements

EVENT DETAILS
Permits
Alcohol
Crowd Management / Event Security lTraffic Control
Street Closures

4
4
4

4
4
4
4
5
5

5
5
6

b
7
7
7
8
I
I
o

I
I

10
10

10
10
10
11

11

11

12

Parades / Walks / Runs /
I nsurance Requirements
Amplified Sound

Race Guidelines

12
12
12

13
13
13
13
13
14
14
15
15Logistics and Cleanup

153 | F a g e



Merchandise and Alcoholic Beverages
Table 2: Sales of Merchandise, Food and Alcoholic Beverages

ln Public Places andior Municipal Buildings
Food Permit / Food Booth Requirements ...
Tent and Canopy Requirements...
Street Banner / Sign Requirements ...
Electrical Requirements ...
Air Jumpers ("Jump" Houses)

REVISION 12

16
17
17
17

17

20

15

16
16

DEF!NITIONS

REQUIRED T!MELINE
Table 3: Required Timeline

,,:rl::i:11,.

..n:rtilil-1,:!iij,:tItii:..
.,tut:r -.j*rlili:lri::.

,.rrq '":14,;i-:it:,,

l*;::1:r!:l*it*t rlilrl

l54lPage



SPECIAL EVENTS POLICY
PolicY No. G16--

GENERAL

INTRODUCTION
The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea supports and encourages events that have a significant

economic, charitable, or communiiy benefit while maintaining the values and unique character

of the village.

PURPOSE
The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines, processes, and regulations for special

events that will protect prOtic property a-nd provide safety for participants and residents, and

will strike an appropriate balance'between the benefits of organized events and their

associated impacts on the community and on the environment.

PREVIOUS POLICIES RESCINDED
This policy incorporates relevant information contained in previously adopted City policies

pertaining to events and eliminates conflicting policies. For those rea$ons, the following

policies ire to be rescinded by City Council r-esolution: C89-45, C90-01, C95-06 and C12-02'

CRITERTA FOR EVALUATING AND SCHEDULING SPECIAL EVENTS

REVISION 12

Careful consideration will be made for each event being held in the City of Carmel-bythe-Sea

taking into consideration the following:

COMMUNITY BENEFITS
special events can create a sense of community by, among other things:

. Providing a social gathering place for residents and visitors.

. Establishing and maintaining localtraditions'
o Enhancing and supporting the unique village character and residential values.

. Showcasing talents of local artists.
o Providing cultural, educational and recreational enrichment.
r Enhancing the local economy and the City's reputation as a world-renowned

destination.
o providing funding opportunities for local community-serving, non-profit organizations.

COMMUNITY IMPACTS
special events can impact the community by, among other things:

. Adding to traffic congestion and exacerbating parking problems.

. lmpinging on use of public spaces for passive enjoyment by area residents'

o Having a negative impact on the health and appearance of public landscaping and on

the condition of public buildings and property.
. Adding direct and indirect expenses to the City budget for maintenance of public

facilities.
o Adding direct and indirect expenses to City operations by diverting staff resources

away from other high priority work programs and projects'

CRITERIA FOR EVENT EVALUATION
The City of Carmel-bythe-Sea has the responsibility for determining whether or not any

applicant shall be entitted to hold a special event. The City shall take into account the effect
155 lFrio=-



REVISION 12

the proposed special event will have upon the community and the environment as defined in
the purpose. The City will also consider:

o Whether any inconvenience that the general public may suffer is outweighed by the
potential benefit to the community as a whole.

o Whether the holding of the special event as planned would create an undue burden
upon the resources of the City.

o The safety of the proposed event.
o The frequency of the same or similar event(s).
. Whether the requested event date coincides with peak tourism periods.
r Whether an event is held during the off-season (typically during periods from

November through March).

EVENTS THAT REQUIRE A PERMIT
A formal permit is required for use of public property in the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea for any
of the following conditions.

. Exclusive use of any portion of any City property to the exclusion of the general public.
(CMC Chapter 17.70 Definition of "Temporary Event")

. Support of any commercial enterprise, €.g., caterer, portable restrooms, etc.

. Sound equipment use requiring greater than a 12-voll system.
(CMC Chapter 8, 56.085)

. Erection of anystructure, e.g., stage, tents, etc. (CMC Chapter 12, Section 32.060)

. Any request that involves special outside or City support, e.9., traffic control, traffic
cones, barricades, signage, extra trash pickup, etc.

. Any request that involves the use of a stationary internal combustion engine, e.g., gas
generator.

. A gathering or assemblage of 50 people or more.

Any request for exception from current City codes, rules, regulations, restrictions and policies
governing activities on City property requires City Council authorization.

CITY SUPPORT GROUPS
This policy does not apply to City supporl groups as designated by the City Council and
defined in the City's Support Groups Policy. Requests for use of public facilities by City
support groups shall be in compliance with the Support Groups Policy C89-47 dated
September 21 , 1989 (adopted in Resolution No. 89-1 21) and revised from time to time
thereafter.

FACILITY USE

CITY WIDE FACILITIES USE
The City of Carmel-bythe-Sea provides for the use of municipal facilities and public property
for city and community groups as set forth in Table 1. Facilities and public properties will be
made available at no fee if the event is held by an official City Support Group and/or co-
sponsored by the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea. Privately-sponsored group activities may use
municipal facilities and public property as listed in Table 1, subject to acceptance of the
established criteria and regulations, scheduling and staffing availability, and fees as set forth in
this policy.

156 Page



REVISION 12

TABLE 1

USE OF MUNICIPAL FACILITIES AND

PUBLIC PROPERTIES FOR SPECIAL EVENTS

RESERVATION
INFORMATION

AVAILABLE
FOR USE BY

FACILITY

INDOOR SPACES:
Departmental oPerations onlY.POLICE, FIRE, PUBLIC WORKS,

FOREST & BEACH BUILDINGS
CallCity Hall
620-2000

City departments, sPecial Public
agency meetings.

CITY HALL
Council Chambers
Conference Room

Call Library Director
624-1366

Educational, cultural, historical,
departmental uses onlY, in

accordance with LibrarY Board
Policy.

Departmental uses onlY, in

accordance with Library Board

HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY
Reading Room
Park Branch Youth Services

Park Branch Local History

CallCommunitY
Activities DePartment
620-2020

City departments, individuals,
com m u n ity-based organizations,
special public agency meetings,
educational, cultural events.

VISTA LOBOS /
J O LUMBERYARD
COMMUNITY MEETING ROOM

CallCommunitY
Activities DePartment
620-2020

Community-based organizations,
educational, cultural events.

FOREST THEATER

OUTDOOR SPACES:
Community Activities
Department
620-2020

City departments, ed ucational
and cultural events

DEVENDORF PARK

Community Activities
Department
620-2020

City departments, individuals,
cornm u n ity-based org an izations,
special public agency meetings,
educational, cuttural events

FOREST HILL PARK
CARMEL BEACH

PERMIT PROCESS

On forms provided by the City, a group or individual may make application to hold a special

event using public property. Appliiations for small-scale or special events are to be submitted

at least g0 days in advancL of the event and evaluated by the Staff Committee. For large-scale

events drawing 7,500 people or more, applications must be submitted at least 180 days in

advance.

The City is not obligated to accept applications submitted less than 90 days in advance. 
_

Special Event perriit applications may not be submitted more than one year in advance of the

date of the proposed event. The application may be approved, d_enied,. or approved with

conditions by ti-re Staff Committee. Followlng action by the Staff Committee, the application

may be reviewed and/or approved by the Community Activities & Cultural Commission and/or

the City Council.

157lFagc



REVISION T2

STAFF GOMMITTEE
The composition of the staff committee incrudes the foilowing: community Activities staff,

public Works srp"rini"ndent, Polic" o"prttrent.staff, Planning Department.staff' and Risk

Manager. The Staff Committee may be ixpanoeo or contracted by enlisting the aid of other

city personnel, as oetermined by event location or other pertinent criteria'

STAFF COMMITTEE REVIEW OF APPLICATION

The Event organizer will be required to attend a pre-event meeting with the Staff committee

as referencedin the "Required Timeline", Attachment 1'

lf the proposed use is deemed by the staff committee to potentially impact the community or

the general public's wellbeing, tne EveniOrganizer shall provide public.notice' For annual or

continuing events, the staff dommittee shalidecide - taking into consideration factors such as

size, complexity, signiticant or substantive changes, etc' - whether public noticing will be

required in subsequent Years.

For annual or continuing events the permit may be renewable, provided thereare no

significant or substantiv"e changes to the event. Following each event the. staff committee will

eftluate the event and determlne if permit conditions should be amended and/or whether it

will be renewable.

All events that require downtown street closures, have asignificant im,Pact,onlublic facilities'

require a significant amount of City staff support, 
-or 

relquirean exemption from current City

codes or policies require city council approval. 
-city 

^stgff.will 
inform the Event organizer of

the date and time at which the Communiiy Activities & Cultural Commission and/or City

council will review the apptication. The Event organizer or a representative shall be present at

this meeting to respond to questions.

CRITERIA FOR REVIEW OF APPLICATION
The Staff Committee will take into consideration:

. Consistency with the City's General Plan, Shoreline Management Plan, Ordinances,

and Policies.
o Safety of the ProPosed event.
. Anticipated amount of extra personnel hours required to be furnished by the City'

o Event interference with the fiow of traffic in the area and the need to close streets in a

safe manner to allow emergency access for fire, police and EMS vehicles'

o Anticipated number of attendees over the entire timeframe of the special event'

. potential need for notification to impacted neighbors or businesses.

The staff committee will also consider the following issues:

o Season of year/time of day/duration of activity'
o Conflicts with other events.
o Stagingrequirements.
o Parking.
o Street closures.
o Noise.
o Lights.
o Vehicles (trucks/number of vehicles).
o Advertising and signage.
o Sale of merchandise.

158lFag*



REVISION 12

with input from the staff committee, the city Administrator will make a determination whether

the Event Organizerhas demonstrated , pol,tiu" working relationship with the City and staff

by:
o cooperating/collaborating with city staff prior to, during, and after the event'

o Meeting all application deadlines'
. Properly caring for City property and/or City equipment'

o providing . pr6-"r"nt 
-budget 

and post-event financial report to the community

Activities Director.

ln reviewing permits, the staff committee shall neither discriminate nor infringe on rights

related to free speech, protected classes or their constitutional issue' lf such issues arise' the

City AttorneY will be consulted.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION
An event can change the normalflow of residential and business activity, potenlially causing a

negative impact to ifre community ln such cases the Staff Committee may determine that

public notice to the surrounding neighborhood is required prior to reaching a decision' The

applicant shall be responsible for distributing such notice'

NOTIFICATION PROCESS
lf an event involves a street closure, amplified sound (mo1e than announcements), the sale of

alcohol, or more than 200 anticipated atiendees, the applicant will be required to notify' in

writing, all residents and businesses within 300 feet of the event venue and/or route at least

two weeks prior to ih. Corrrnity Activities &Cultural Commission or-C,ity Council meeting at

which the event wiri oL tonsioered. The notification must include the following information:

. Name of event.

. Description of the event, inctuding anticipated number of attendees'

. Name of person(s) or organization(s) sponsoring the event, with contact information

including Phone and e-mail.
. pil;;Jd'drt", time and duration of the event, including setup and tear down'

. propos"O rti""t closure(s) and alternative route(s), if applicable'

r Use of amplified sound, if applicable'
r Sale or serving of alcohol, if applicable'
o City staff contact information.
. Date, time and location of the public meeting(s) at which the event request will be

considered.

The notification may be distributed door-to-door or mailed to the impacted area' A distribution

ti;i;;y ;;;i"i;# from the Community Planning and Building Department. The applicant

must also notice the propored event in the local newspaper, and is encouraged to use other

appropriate means oi dirtribrtion such as e-mail blasts, and posting the notification on

cbmmunity or shared boards and at the Carmel Chamber of Commerce'

To complete the notification requirement, applicant must submit a Notification Certification

listing the residents and businesses that were sent the notification, and the method of

notification that was used. The Notification Certification form can be obtained from the

Community Activities Department.

l59lPage



REVISION 12

COMPETING INTERESTS
To avoid overlapping requests for a scarce resource, the community Activities Department will

maintain a carendar to schedure events al specific siies. The foilowing ranked priority list shall

be used as a guide nV G SiXt Committee in resolving conflicts among competing interests:

o Contractual obligations (leases, etc')'
oCityCouncil,Commission,ordepartmentactivities'
o City-sponsoredevents.
. Permit renewals for annual events'
. Events to raise funds for city programs'

o New events - non-profit organizations'
. New events - for-profit organizations'

at the same time and Place, the
lf two or more events are proposed within the same priority

Staff Committee shall use'the following iriteria for making a recommendation on which event

to approve:
. Local organization vs. regional or outside organization.

o lmpacts of the event on the community'
o Date of aPPlication.
. Ease of rescheduling to another time or place'

tff1'"",*",i"Tl,,T;.YniffJl'*J,,.:ffJ:il1ffi:lify the appricant in writins of approvar

or denial of all special event requests.

All parties whose special event request have been approved shall assume full responsibility for

compliance with all conditions, fees, and City, State and Federal laws' They assume

responsibility for tneiiaitions,'and any consequences associated with the special event' The

Event Organizer or any event sponsors are ad'vised not to announce, advertise or promote

events until a permit has been issued'

Permit applications may be denied at the city's sole discretion. The city may propose

alternate locations o1. JLt.r, or may refuse to issue a permit. lf the proposed special event

does not satisfactorily pass the assessment in terms of the section "Criteria for Review of

Application,,,the appiication will be recommended for denial.

APPEALS PROCESS
An Event Organizer whose application is denied, or who objects to the.conditions or

restrictions p'iaced on the pelmit, may appeal to the city Administrator by submitting a written

request to the Community'Activiiies Director within 10 working days of the date on the City's

notification of denial, con'ditions or restrictions. The appeal must be based on the original

submitted application. fhe appealing parly will be notified in writing of the City Administrator's

decision or action.

lf the appealing party is dissatisfied with the City Administrator's response, the party may

appeal'to tne Ciiy Council within 14 working days of receipt of the City Administrator's

response. The appeal shall be in writing, iniluding a copy of the appeal to the Community

Activities Director and City AdministratJr and theii responses. The appeal must be based on

the original submitted apftication and shall include the reasons for disagreeing with the

responses and include any supporling documents'

160lFage



REVISION 12

Uponreceiptoftheappeal,theCityCouncilwillhearthematteratanupcomingmeeting.The
decision of the City Council is final'

REVOCATION OF PERMIT
Any conditions not met as set out in the approval of the application may be grounds for

revocation of the permit by the City'

COST RECOVERY
Through permit review, the Staff committee will estimate direct costs (labor, equipment and

materials) for trash, portable toileG, and City departments Public Safety,(Police and

Ambulance), Forest and Beach, Community nctivities, Public Werks and Administration'

Permit applications will be billed for staff hours, equipment, and associated costs'

Fees are established by Resolution of the City Council. These fees shall 9P.ptv 
to short-term

use for special events. Exceptions: Cost recovery will not 9: I"Slli:9-for 
City-spol?91?d,

events (e.g., Fourth of July cetebration, Sandcastle contest, Halloween parade and birthday

party, fiee-tighting CeremonY)'

SPECIAL EVENT SUPPORT PROGRAM

A Special Event Support Program is funded annually thro.ugh ll",gi!-t,budget 
process by a

,,Community promoiions Fund." With clearly defined, goals, criteria, and evaluation measures'

the program will result in a granting process.that.provi-des equal opportunity for all interested

Event organizers, and a reporting"pio""ss that demonstrates transparency and accountability

for Public funds.

tnorganizationwillbeeligibleforCitys.pecialeventsupportfor
the same "r*t'Jrf 

f be no more tha-n three years from the inception of the event'

TYPE OF EVENTS FOR SUPPORT PRqGRAM
. Communitv & charita"ble event - Either small- or large-scale event that serves or

uen"@tionsandcaUSeS,and/orprovidesrecreational,cultural,
and ro.irr o"i"iiir to Caimet residents. City-based organizations and events that

serve the Carmel community specifically receive priority in funding.

. Larqe-scale event - An event based in itre City of Carmel that is attended by 7,500 or

morJpeopte, catfs attention to and promotes t-he City regionally, attracts visitors as well

,r r*riO"nts, has a major impact on the commercial and residential communities, and

prouia"irelsuraOfe economic benefits to the City of Carmel; o. r one that requires

"*t"nrir" 
iirti t*" for pre-event processing, preparation, monitoring, and post-event

rehabilitation of the village,
. Off-season event - Any Lvent that is held off-season, between the months of

ruovJmOer anO wtarch (inclusive), when the City is not already impacted by a major

event, holiday or peak visitor time also receives priority in funding'

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA
To be eligible to receive City support, applicants must demonstrate that:

o The event takes place within the City'
. The event is scheduled to take place during the Fiscal Year for which the event was

funded and the exact date(s), time(s) and location within the City have been

determined.
. The event is not financially dependent upon receiving city support.

161 lPage



REVISION 12

. The event directly or indirectly benefits the carmel community by supporting its

schools,cause-relatedornon-profitorganizations'
. The applicant has no outstanding debt due to the City'

. The event is accessible to the community/public, but need not be free of charge'

o Participation in the organization requesting funding not be predicated on a person'S

race, color, religion, ethnicity, national orig-in, age, Sex, sexual orientation, marital

status, politicallffiliation, disability or medical condition.

. Carmel-by{he-Sea residents are served by the organization

INELIGIBILITY
The City will not provide support to:

. lndividuals.

. Events that benefit for-profit enterprises'
o lnvitation-only events that are not open to the general public'

. Events that have been held in the City for more than three years'

o Event Organizers and organi=rtion. th.t have not fulfilled previous special event

obligations.

QUALIFICATION CRITERIA
To qualify for consideration to receive city special event support, all apptications must comply

with the following:
. Are submitted by the deadlines (see Table 3, "Required Timeline")' in the format

required, ,nJ rr" lOOo/o comptete. Applications that ate late, incomplete' or do not fully

comply with the instructions will not be considered'

. Must include a copy of the complete event budget with explanation of. income and

expenses, a proplieo promotion/marketing pla.n and mutually agreed upon

performanc";;;;rt;s for evaluating the event's marketing and economic impact on

the city of carmel' 
ontributions to the carmeloMustshowanticipateddirectorindirectcharitablec

community in irlipott of its schools, cause-related or non-profit organizations'

Additionaly, tor eitaOtished events having previously received partial city funding, - .

provide Oo"Lrunirtion that shows actual-charitable contributions since inception of the

event.
. i;;J" non-profit tax tD number if the event is organized by a non-profit organization'

EVALUATION MEASURES
nn"r q*rinr.tion, applications will be reviewed and evaluated based on the following:

Community & charitable events
. The Event organizers meet the above qualifying criteria.

o The event dirJctly or indirectly benefits the Carmel community by supporting its

schools, cause-related or non-profit organizations; offering educational, cultural or ads

experiences; or providing recreational or social activities.

. The event benefits a City- or sphere-of-influence-based non-profit organization.

o The event serves, involves, call attention to and promotes the City of Carmel, its

residents, non-profits, schools and/or organizations'

Larqe-scale events
o The Event organizers meet the above qualifying criteria.

. The event 
"nirn.", 

the quality of life within the City with cultural, social, recreational

or educational activities of interest to the community'

162 lP;t g e



REVISION 12

. The event benefits a City- or sphere-of-influence-based non-profit organization'

o The event attracts visitors to the City'

o The event calls attention to and promotes the city as a highly desirable place to live,

visit, work, PIaY, and do business'
o The event oir#ry or indirectly benefits or promotes City of Carmel businesses'

GRANTING PROCESS & SELECTION COMMITTEE

Deadlines for funding requests .orr".ponJto if'.," City's bu-dgeting cyclg, The Staff Committee

wiil evaruate ail quarified apprications recerv"o oy the deadrine and funding recommendations

will be made based upon if',! application and tne amount of funding that the City Council

allocates to the "community Promotions Fund". Results will be presentedto the community

Activities & curturar commission for review and its recommendations wiil be given to the city

Council for final frnO'ng determination, The Council can approve, amend or deny any

recommendation.

eted annuallY for the "CommunitY
Combined event support shall not exceed the amount budg

Promotions Fund" nor exceed the limits in the following categories:

Total funding tot all small-scale events Up to 607o of available funds

Total fundin[ to,. all large-scale events Up to 40% of available funds

FUNDING
Grants provide funding support through a "community Promotions Fund" for qualified events

to advertise and promote the City, andlor provide recieational, cultural, social benefits to

residents, and offset Ciiy fees aisociated with executing an event in the City of Carmel The

purpose is not to trnO in'" 
"nt,t"ii, 

of an event and grant awards may not cover all of an event's

cost.

The city expects to receive more applications and/or requests for grant support amounts in

excess of what it can prouiou. 
-Tl'.r"i.i 

is no guarantee that the City will be ab-le to provide all,

a;rt ; any ot tlre financial support requestid by each applicant Thus, applicants should not

make commitments on ttre expectation of receiving City support' Recurring events do not

automatically receive funding each year. Event organizers of recurring events must apply

each year to be considered'

Successful applicants will be awarded grants in the form of credits toward their City fees'

Grants awarded are not intended to coier all of an Event Organizer's costs.associated with

city oversight. lf event costs (fees) are higher than the grant funding, the city will be owed the

difference. lf event costs incurred are lorrier than was plojected during the grant process' the

City will keep the difference.

The city shall retain the right to withhold or revoke funds where a recipient violates any terms

of this special Event support Program policy, or any special event permit requirement'

Compliance with this requiremenGhall be determined by the Community Services Director'

OTHER REQUIREMENTS
Successful applicants (while grants are under review) will be expected to follow the City's

separate Special Eveni Permit process and submit all necessary forms, insurance and fees as

required. Applications that do not meet the requirements and are not submitted within the

specified deadlines (see Table 3, "Required Timeline") risk for{eiting the City's Special Event

support.

163 I P e g e



REVISION 12

Successfulgrantrecipientswillberequiredtoenter..intoanagreementwiththeCityand
consent to the city,s terms ,no .o^oiiions which will include ianguage granting the city the

right to audit financials. The ,gt.;;.nt will also include measurable objectives and

performanc" ,"rrrr"s for evaluating an event's.marketing and economic impact' Event

organizers will be required to demoristrate how the event 
-met, 

or did not meet, the objectives

and measures in a required, po.i-"u"nt teport, The Event Organizers who are funded will be

required to suUmit suif' a report i" *," City within 60 days of the event's conclusion'

EVENT DETAILS

The Event organizer is responsible for obtaining all necessary required permits' Depending on

the event, tne"se may include, but are not limited to, the following:

esignorbannerapprovalfromtheCity,sCommunityPlanning-andBuildingDepartment.
o Encroachment permits from the city's Community 

"rlanning 
Lnd Building Department'

o Monterey couniy Environmental Health Department permit.

. Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) permit'

The Event organizer is also responsible for ensuring ih,rt event vendors'obtain all required

permits including, but not fimiteito, iemporary gveit Food Permit and Temporary Seller's

permit. Event Organizer must atso 
"nrrr" 

that event vendors have a current City of Carmel-

bythe-Sea business license'

ALCOHOL
The sale of alcohol is allowed by permit only. The Event organizer'

. Must obtain a permit trom'ine State tt California Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC)'

. Must post signs at all exits that "Alcohol is NOT Allowed Beyond this Point'"

. Will ne respJnsible for maintaining controls as specified by the Alcoholic Beverage

Control Board'

Hours of sale will be regulated by the carrnel-by-the-sea Police Department. Police may close

the sale of alcohol at any time during the event in the interest of public safety or if they

determine that these controls are not being followed'

The ABC permit application must be submitted to the City for approval at least 30 days prior to

i;;;;.'A."pv |iir.," i"*porrrv ticense must be provided to the Communitv Activities

Department at least 10 days in advance of the event'

CROWD MANAGEMENT / EVENT SECURITY / TRAFFIC CONTROL

The Event Organizer must develop an event security plan in cooperation with the Police

Department, and should incorporate an on-site private security plan for final Police Department

approval. The plan should also include how velricular and pedestrian traffic will be directed,

whether there will be shutile buses, and location of pick-up and drop-off areas. The City may

require the Event Organizer to retain uniformed police personnel as needed for traffic, alcohol

control and event securitY.

STREET CLOSURES
permits will not be issued for such thoroughfares as San Antonio Street, Junipero Avenue,

Carpenter Street, Santa Lucia, or bus/truck routes. Closure of other downtown streets will be

considered on a case-by-case basis and will require City Council approval'

164lFage



REVISION 12

For any street closure, the Event organizer will be required to provide uniformed officers or

security officers on.it" io ensure puoticiatety. Any closure of public streets will require

physical barriers t.o*.,-orrricades, delineators) to ensure-public safety' The number and

placement of street barriers will be O.t"trin"O by the City' Rental fees for the barriers will be

charged.

The Event organizer must work with the city to specify the times and rocations of all proposed

lane closures and develop a traffic contiol pLn that wiil ensure an adequate level of service on

the public streets that remain open'

PARADES / WALKS / RUNS / RACE GUIDELINES

All proposed routes will be reviewed by the Police Department and the 9ly 1" 
determine the

impact on public safety. Any route that would severely impact public safety or others' rights will

noi be approved.

The duration of any parade, walk, run or race should not exceed two hours' The Event

organizer will be required to provide sufficient monitors to control the staging area' direct

oiOlrfy entry from.the staging area, ensure continuous forurard motion of participants along the

route, and direct disPersal.

An adequate number of trash receptacles as determined by the City must line the route'

INSU RANCE REQUIREMENTS
The city of carmel-bythe-sea requires tiability coverage for $1,ooo,0oo (or $2,000,000 for

large-scale events)for non-City-sponsored splcialevents on City property' All property and

locations that are to oe uiili=eirno insured must be listed to reflect the city's interest in the

insured proPertY.

ad as foilows: The city of carmel-by-the-sea, its public officials, officers,

agents, and empto;;"r t; named as additionally insured, in respect to <EVENT> on <DATE>'

This information is ivpeo in the "Description of operations/LocationsA/ehicles/Exclusions

Added by Endorse.iS.tTsp"Cial provisions. A separate, "Additionally lnsured" endorsement

page, wiifr tne same wording as above, is also required'

The policy must specify commencement and expiration dates for coverage of the event'

NAMEIADDRESS Of iruSUnED must read: City of Carmel-bythe-Sea, PO Box CC, Carmel,

Cn 
'gCi,t1. 'ir," nrr" of the insurance company writing the policy, policy number, address,

e-mail address, phone and fax must be included. The lnsurance Company must be a

company doing business in California and must be rated A+ or better' The rating of the

company ,rst-be attached to the Certificate of Liability/Additionally lnsured Endorsement'

The following insurance requirements are standard for special events. The Event Organizer

shallfurnish the City a "Certificate of lnsurance" showing there is in force the following valid

policy naming the Event Organizer as insured and showing:
. Commercial General Liability - minimum $1,OOO,OOO (or minimum $2,000,000 for

large-scale events) combined Lingte limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property

damage including products and completed operations;
. Automobile Lia6iilty - (required for parades and car shows) minimum $1,000,000 (or

minimum $2,OOO,OOd for'large-scale events) combined single limit per accident for

bodily injury and property OJmage for all owned, hired or non-owned vehicles'

165 | F a g e



.LiquorLiability-(whenalcoholisbeingservedorsold):
o lf the rvent orjanizer will ue supprvi-ng alcoholic beverages for no charge' the

commercial General Liability insurancL should include host liquor liability coverage'

o lf the fr"nt Otgrnizer is usihg a caterer or other vendor to supply alcohol' that

vendor ,rr1.ir" liquor liabili"ty coverage with minimum limit of $1'000'000 per

occurrence.
olftheever,torganizerintendstosellalcohol,eithertheEventorganizerorvendor

providing the alcohol for sale must have a valid liquor sales license and liquor

liability insurance covering tne sare of alcohol with minimum liquor liability limit of

$1,OOO,0OO Per occurrence'

AMPLIFIED SOUND
Any event using amplified sound-t99r]r.et a permit,and must follow the regulations of Municipal

Code Section 8.56.di0 it'''tougf, 8.56.110 to avoid "unnecessary', excessive and annoying

noises from all sources."

LOGISTICS AND CLEANUP
Portable toilets: The Event Organizer shall be responsible to provide P?'t'qJ,",1?ilets 

and

indicate their rocation on the site diagram. The number of portabre toilets wiil be based on a

formula of at least one for every 250 people, or in the case of large-scale events' as

determined by the Staff committee. city ir"ltiti". will not,be substituted to1ltt9, requirement

and shall not be included in the formula. Ten percent of the total number.of toilets shall be

ADA/handicapped accessible. the goai is io nare at least one wheelchair accessible toilet in

each grouping of portable restrooms'

Cleanup: The Event Organizer must submit an event cleanup plan and must work with the

city,s waste management provider to address recycling and waste diversion' The plan must

indicate sufficient siaff to handle cteanup throughout thl day and after the event' and sufficient

equipment placed in effective locations'
. ln the case of , "t*"t 

event, streets will remain closed to allow for adequate cleanup'

post-erent .t"rnrp must commence immediately after the end of the event'

r Litter and trash control shall include the event site and a one-block radius around the

event site.
r Event organizer shall provide copies of rental agreements for commercial dumpsters

and portable toilets.

MERCHANDISE AND ALGOHOLIC BEVERAGES

in"= i. no oi.tin.tion o"t*""n "direct sales" and "sale by donation" (e.g., raffles, requesting a

donation in excnanie toi mercr,andise, alcohol, etc.). Table 2 shall be used as a guide to

determine where stlch sales would be appropriate. ln all cases where alcohol is sold or

distributed, the operator must have all oi tf,e appropriate licenses, permits and insurance

coverage.

Authorization to sell merchandise or food/beverages at locations outside the commercial

district and outside a fixed place of business is uiually prohibited by the Zoling Code, the

Business License Code or the General Plan. Granting a permit under this Policy must

therefore be limiteJ io special events that are of limited duration, within a defined space and

consistent with the following in Table 2:

REVISION T2

166 I F ;r g e



REVISION 12

TABLE 2

SALESoFMERCHANDISE,FooDANDALcoHoLIcBEVERAGES
rN PUBLIC PLACES AND/OR MUNICIEaL BUffi

Itirraiaina! I naafian Merchandise Food Alcohol
No
No

No No
No No

ugl lvlal rirlKlllg
Yes No

No
YES

Yes Yes
TUI trDL

D No No No
NoNo No

Mlsslon lrall Nalure rleser
Yes Yes *

Yes -
tJ No

No Yes
Forest lnealer

Yes Yes "
Yes *No

Yes Yes
lnooor clly lacllltles

Yes No
No
No

^i{rr faaililiac Yes
otraafc anrl narkinn lofs Yes Yes

No No
Residential streets and parklng lots

cense for sales and distribution

il

FOOD PERMIT / FOOD BOOTH REQUIREMENTS

The Health and safety cooe for the state of california states that the organizer of a

community or special event which involves tem.porary.food and/or food bogfh facilities must

obtain a health p"r*it. This applies to both selling anO giuing food away . The.Event Organizer

is responsible for obtaining ali necessary permits - tempo.rary event food and temporary

seller's permits - fro, tf,e"Uonterey Couniy Health Department' The Event Organizer is also

responsible for ensuring that attevbnt vendors obtain temporary event food and temporary

seller's permits.

The Event organizer and food vendors must comply w_ith all state and county requirements

governing temporary f"oO fr.ifiii"r 
-m 

outtined.in ihe California Retail Food Code, Chapter 1 1

To review County requirements and download forms and applications, go to the Monterey

County Health Department website at.

The Event Organizer must submit a complete list of allfood vendors at least 14 working days

il;. il th; 
"r'"ni.-nfr 

farticipating food vendors must have valid permits from the Monterey

6"r.iV ff"ril'.1 Oupartment and a-business license from the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea'

The use of single-use carryout plastic bags at any business, restaurant, corporate or individual

speciat event i6 prohibited (Carmel Municipal Code Chapler 8.74).

The use of CFC-processed food packaging or polystyrene foam food packaging is also

prohibited (Carmel Municipal Code Chapter 8.68)'

TENT AND CANOPY REQUIREMENTS
Erection of any tent will require a permit and may be inspected by the Fire Department' Atticle

32 of the State Fire Code requires that permits be obtained for the rental, use, or installation of

any tents over 200 Square feet in size, and canopies over 400 square feet in size'

167lFage



REVISION 12

When more than one tent or canopy is installed at the same location, adjacent to one another'

the total square footage shall be coinputeO for the purpose of enforcing the need for a permit'

when erecting a tent or canopy, no stakes shall be placed into the ground (to prevent damage

to streets, irriiation systems oi tree roots). Weights, sand bags or barrels of water are

suggested alternatives.

STREET BANNER / SIGN REQUIREMENTS

A special event permit will be issued only after a banner and/or sign,permit, along with any

applicable Coastal Development pLimrt,'f,as been.obtained. Applications for those permits

must be submitted to the commu'n',ty Planning and Building Departmelt for review and

approval or denial. Policy C95-0, (r;vised Maly 7,2013) "B-anners on Public Property" sets

forth the duration, installation, monitoring and removal of banners. Carmel Municipal Code

chapter 17.4O sets forth signage requirements and guidelines'

ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS
Electrical power is limited by location and the amount of power needed The city will not be

able to proviJe power in many locations, and in those cases the Eve-nt organizer will need to

use *whisper quiet" type generators for power in compliance with noise regulations as outlined

in Carmet Municipal CoOe Sections 8.56.010 through 8.56.1 10.

AIR JUMPERS ("JUMP" HOUSES)
lnflatable structures such as "jump" houses or air jurnpers are not permitted'

DEFINITIONS

Forthepurposeofthispolicy,thefollowingdefinitionsapply:

Application processing fee - charges for staff time and expenses for^processing special

event permit?lplilali[frilppticatioi fees are established by the City Council by resolution'

Citv oropertv'-'Any City strebt, siJewatt<, parking lot, park, plaza, or any other property owned

or controlled bY the CitY.

Citv-spqnEored evenj - A special event that meets at least one of the following criteria.

ffined,organizedandexecutedbyCitystaff,eithersolelyorin
"oop"oiion 

with City-sancti6ned partners (e.g., Fourth of July celebration, the Sandcastle

Contest, Halloween parade and birthday party, and Tree-lighting Ceremony).

2. 11he event is hetd by an official City Support Group as defined in City Policy CB9-47 '

Communitv & chafitable events - Servi or benefit locally-based organizations and causes,

l,andsocialbenefitstoCarmelresidents.City-based
organizations and events that serve the Carmel community specifically receive priority in

funding.
comm]unitv orqanizations - A public or private non-profit organization that is representative

of the 
"ormG'iiliE$-nlTicani 

segment of a community, and is engaged in meeting human,

educational, environmental, or public safety community needs.

Event - lncludes sPecial event.
ffiI Orqanizer j Any p"rron or organization that conducts, manages, promotes, organizes,

atds or sohctts attendance at a commercial or non-commercial special event.

Merchandise - lncludes goods, wares, personal property, merchandise or any other similar

item that is generallY sold.

168 lFtge



REVISION 12

Larqe-scale event - An event based in the city of carmel that is attended by 7,500 or more

p" on to and promotes the City regionally,.attracts visitors as well as

residents, has a major impact on the commercial and residential communities, and provides

measureable economic benefits to the city of carmel; one that requires exten-sive staff time for

pre-event processing, preparatlon, monitorlng, and post-event rehabilitation of the village'

iion-protii orqaniziiiln - A charitabte orga-nization (not an individual) that is exempted from

payment of incomellffs by federal or staie law as designated by IRS 
-Codg. 

501(c)3 and has

beln in existence for a minimum of three months preceding the date of application for a

special event Permit.
public notification - lf n"."..rry, the Event organizer provides notice. to affected businesses

and/or residents otlfre event's potential impacts. The Event Organizer is responsible for

following the Notification Process outlined in this policy'.
public facilitv - nny froperty located within the iity limits and owned'by the City of Carmel-

bythe-Sea.
iLntal fee - A fixed amount for the rental of all or aportion oi 1Y9ny", pas{on the length of

the event; where applicable, a maintenance fee for facility r:ehabilitation/maintenqnce'may.be

included with the rentalfee if appropriate. Rental fees are,established by the City Council by

resolution.
sale bv donation - Refers to such events as raffles, or to monetary qo.ntrib:f9n" given to

;ffs"t c"rt .f g""ds provided (e.g., donations toward wine provided at event for no charge)'

Sidewalk - Tliat poriion of a sireet, other than the roadway, set apart by curbs, barriers,

rnarf<rngs or other delineation for pedestrian travel' .,. .

Small-Icale event - An event that, in the judgment of the Cornmunity Activities Director,

reqLrreiless tha" two hours of total staff time for pre-event,preparation and/or post-event

rehabilitation of the event venue, and does not exceed six hours in duration (including time

required for set-up and take-down), and is attende! Oy tewer than 200 people'

Soecial event - An activity on pUbftc property open to,1he'general public, with or without an

adm,ss',on cf,arge. Special events lnelude:
o Any organized formation, parade, procession or assembly of persons, which may or

,"V ,rJii"ctrOe anrnats, venieleS,'or any combination thereof that is to assemble or

trr*f in unison on any street that does not comply with normal or usual traffic

regulations or controls;':or,
. n,iy organized assernblage of persons at any park or facility, owned by the City that is

to gathtlr for a commonrpurpose under the direction and control of a person; or,

. An! other organized activity conducted by a sponsoring organization or person for a
, comrnon or Collective use, purpose or benefit that involves the use of, or has an impact

on, city property or facilities and the provisions of city services.

fxamptei:Jsi:i"ijf evlnts include, but are not limited to concerts, parades, special interest

showS or expo€, fitarkets, fairs, festivals, block parties, community events or maSS

p4ti"iprtion'sports'isuch as marathons and running events, bicycle races or tours, etc').

For thb purpose of tiiis policy, special events are distinguished from the following:

. Recurring program activities on public property, conducted by the City or by a lessee of

City property, 
-*f,"r" 

the activity is specifically authorized by use permit and/or by the

terms of the ProPertY lease; and
o Events on private ProPertY.

Special Event Coordinaior - The person assigned by the City Administrator to carry out the

duties and responsibilities set forth in this policy.

Special event permit - A permit issued under this policy'

ffi-Thatareaforwhichaspecialeventpermithasbeenissued.

169lFage



REVISION 12

Staff Gommittee - composition of the city committe-e includes community Activities statf,

Public Works Superintendent, Police Department staff, Planning Department staff' and Risk

Manager.
street - A way or place of whatever nature publicly maintained and open to use of the public

for purposes of vehicular travel.
Support qroup -Associations of individuals who have voluntarily joined together in a unit

whose sole or primary purpose is to provide assistance-monetary, Social'.cultural or

othenuise, but not potiticat-to the City or one of its departments' A group that has been

tor*rrrv designated by the city council and is recognized to be private body'

vendor - any person *ho sells or offers to sell any-goods, foodrcr,,beverages within a special

event venue.

ii:::t!i. :,ti .;i,tl:l,lli5l.

1:i1i$i.,, '.ial.:' *. . . ..

'qiii:.t*, 
-,,i

::

ji;rrr;iiirl;:

170lPage



DUE DATEWHNT ORGANIZER MUST DO

PERMITTING PROCESS 
-@t Application including site

map to the CitY.

SuOmit Oanner/sign permit application to
r^^m m,ni{rr Dlanninrr and Rr rilclino Deoaftment

At least 90 days $matt even$) ctuov sav'
(largescare events) before event and no more
than 4 rraar hofnrA the event

A minimum ol YU days oeTore ever rt

nt rcast 90 days in advance for consideratlon Dy

l^aP-nn anrl (iitrr CorrncilSubmit any partialfee waiver request,
aceomoanied bv a ore-event budget.

Attend pre€vent meeting scheduled by the City'

Develop event security and traffic control plans in

coooeration with CitY Staff.

New events requlre meetlng at leasl Yv trcyr
advance. Returning events require meeting

60 davs in advance 
-N teist u dalt{prior to the public meeting at

,^thinh lha avanl urill he considefedDeliver written notice as need to nelghbors ano/or

businesses
14 to 60 daYs before event

14 to 60 daYs belore event

14 to 30 daYs before event

Secure 'anO.sr-rOmit Certificate of lnsurance to the

City.
Secure required permits from appropriate
lanarfman+c nr ancnnieQ

Event fee estimates for City services avallaole

from the City.
SuOmrtcopresotatl @ 74 to 21 daYs oetore evertt

At teast 30 daYs before event
At laact 4O davs before event@ermit application to citY.

Submit temporary ABC permit to City.
14 days before event

Pr,cvrde evtdence of portable toilet and tr:ash bin

arranqements; provide an event cleg!!p-pie&-
tf reWireO, attend pre-event site walkthrough -
arranqed by the CitY staff.

1 to 2 days betore evenl

GRANTING CYCLE APPLIGATION UEAULINtr,

For events occtlrring July 1 - Dec 31, Cycle #1
Qanlamhar I

For events occurrlng Jan 1 - June 30, Cycle #2

HOLDING THE EVENT SCHEDULETJ EVEN I UA I tr'
t^taar arranf cila nf rll romainino littef I m medi atelY after event

W'rnin Zn nows after event and/or before start

of business the next day. Signs are to be

removed r-mmediately after event.

I to 2 days afterevent

Remove all event equipment from event stte

(portable toilets, fencing, booths, stage, signs,

etc.).
lf required, post-event site walkthrough -
arranqed by the CitY staff.
Post-event meeting with the Staff tqrnrnt!!ge. 7 to 30 days aner evenl

S u Om it post-event fi nancia I report reflecti ng

income and expenses.

7 to 30 days after event

Table 3

REQUIRED TIMELINE

REVISION 12

171 lFage



A*, ,'r\rr\ i , \ '

Janet Bombard

i.i rr,1 r, f,j.;T z

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:

Subject:

Jason Burnett <jason.burnett@gmail'com >

Tuesday, SePtember 01, 2015 1'2:37 PM

Jim JamesEmery; Jon Wolfe; Dick and Barbara stiles; Robert Mulford; Monta Potter;Jean

& Ken White; CarolYn HardY

Doug Schmitz; Ken Talmage;Janet Bombard; Paul Tomasi

Event policY and event fee waiver

Jim, Jon, Dick, Bob, Monta, Ken, and Carolyn,

Thank you for being willing to serve on the ua no. Event Policy and Event Fee waiver Policy review

committee.

The basic charge of the committee is to review the several conflicting and outdated policies that apply to events

and fees and seek to create one comprehensive policy that addres."rih. various problems that we've identified'

From May 1:
,,we definitely do have an issue - our policy is not work-ing the way it should, and our implementation of the

policy is not working the way it should,l' [Jason B] said. "we have different documents that are sometimes

conflicting, and the iublic's confused, orjanirers are confused, our staff are trying to work through those

conflicting documents, and it's not fair tJany of them." "The goal, [Jason] said, should be to have predictable'

fair fees that adequat"iy 
"o-p.nsate 

the city for the resources it uses on events while not over burdening the

organizers. And the approval of the events ihemselves should follow some standard criteria, not whether the city

council likes them or not."
*{<x<

Event fee waivers, if continued, must be done in a way that fits within the budget set by the City Council' Doug

can provide those figures for this fiscal year.

I,d also encourage the committee to consider ways that the event policy and event fee waiver policy can

advance the ethics, character and strategic goals of the community. For example, generally we are at or over

capacity for visitors in August and we are iot in January. Is there away to encourage events in our down season

and not in our peak season?

Doug has advised that paul Tomasi and Janet Bombard will help the committee from the staff perspective' By

*uy"of thi, email I am asking paul and/or Janet to work to schedule a kick-off committee meeting as soon as

possible.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions.

Thank you again for serving our community.

Jason

Doug and I are quoted outlining the problems

here: http://pi
here http : //pineconearchive. fi

r1Y



http://www.carmelcentennial'com/carmel-centennial-events'htm
Events I Carmel-bythe-Sea Centennial

EVENTS

The {orowing is o preriminory rist of specior Events thot ore being scheduled in 2016 [or the cormel-by-the-Seo

Centenniql Celebrotion. This list will be updoted on o regulor bosis to highlight oll of the mcrgnificent events

thot ore being plonned os port of our Celebrotion. Pleose odvise o{ ony functions you would like odded

(info@cormelcentenniol.com) ond check bock regulorly for more in{ormotion including the specific doy ond

time of eqch event ...

lN zor6,.' (As oFAPRT' 2016)

APRIL EVENTS...

. Tues., Apr 5 thru sat., Apr g 12-3 --"Then/Now -- carmel" an historical exhibit celebrating carmel's 100th Birthday at First Murphy House (carmel

Heritage Society)

. Fri., Apr 15 at 8 PM - chamber Music Monterey Bay presents lhe calefax Reed Qulnfef (sunset center)

.Sat',Apr16at6PM-TaelenThomasaS''JackLondoninCarmel,lglO',(CarmelArtAssociation)

. sat., Apr 23 and sun., Apr 24 -Monterey Symphony concerts with van criburn and gold medal winning pianist vadym Kholodenko (sunset center)

o Sat., Apr 30 - Arbor Day Celebration

. sat., Apr 30, 11AM - 4pM -- carmel Bach Festival annual "cottages, Gardens and canatas" House Tour of 5 select homes in carmel'

MAY EVENTS...

. Date TBD - Sunshine Freestyle Surfabout (Carmel Beach)

. Date TBD -- Carmel Art Festival (Mission St and Devendorf Park)

. Sun., May 1 - Tor House Foundation "Annual Spring Garden Party" (Tor House)

.Sat.,May7-AnnualWnemaker'sCelebration(Doloresstreet-betweenOcean&7th)

.Thurs',May12(2to6PM)-Sun.,May15-.9AMto9PM--CarmelArtFestival(MissionStandDevendorfPark)

.Fri',May13-Sun.,May15-7:30AMto9PM-SunshineFreesty|eSurfabout(carmelBeach)
o sat., May 14 Noon to 3 PM -- Honoring The carmel centennial with Music & Fashion show (carmel Plaza)

. Sat., May 14 at 8 PM - Michael Feinstein: Sinatra Centennial celebration (Sunset Center)

. sun. May 15 at 3:OO pM - carmel Music society presents David Finckel, cello, wu Han, piano, and Philip setzer, violin, playing Beethoven Trios (sunset

Center)

. sat., May 21 and sun., May 22 - Monterey Symphony concerts featuring "capriccios" with violinisi Anne Akiko Meyers (sunset center)

. Mon., May 30 - Memorial Day Program (Devendorf Park)

JUNE EVENTS...

. Sat., June 4 - carmel Music Society presents the 39th Young Musicians competition for pianists (Sunset cente0

oSun.,Jun19at8:30AM-RunintheNameofLove(BeginsatSunsetCenter)
. preview Thurs., Jun 23; Opens Fri., Jun 24 thru Sun., Jun 26 - Forest Theatre Guild presents an original work "The Borrowers-The Musical" (Forest

Theatre)

. Sat., Jun 2s, 1 -- 5 pM - House & Garden Tour of outstanding historic homes around town (Carmel Heritage Society)

JULY EVENTS...

o Fri., Jul 1 thru sun., Jul 3; Fri., Jul g thru sun., Jul 10; and, Thurs., Jul 14 thru sun., Jul 17 -. Forest Theatre Guild presents an original work "The

Borrowers--The M usical" (Forest Theatre)

o Mon., Jul 4 - Jul 4th Picnic in the Park (Devendorf Park)

. sat., Jul 15 thru sun. Jul 31 - "The History of carmel Theatre Poster Art' outdoor Forest Theatre Playbills (cherry centeo

. Sat., Jul 16 thru Sat , Jul 30 - Bach Festival (Various locations)

AUGUST EVENTS...

. Mon., Aug 1 thru Sun., Aug 2g - ,,The History of Carmel Theatre Poster Art" Outdoor Forest Theatre Playbills (Cherry Centeo

. Fri,, Aug 5' 6, and 7. Live performance of '.Abalone,.by Bill Broader (Cherry Center)

41812016 6:44PM
I of 2



Events I carmel-bythe-Sea centennial http://www'carmelcentennial'com/carmel-centennial-events'htm

oThurs',Aug11thruSun.,Aug',13-FriendsofHarrisonMemorialLibrary,AnnualBookSale(JuniperoSerraSchoolGym)
.Tues.,Aug16-ConcoursontheAvenue(oceanAvenuebetvveenJuniperoandMonteVerde)

' Thurs., Aug 18 - Concours d'Elegance 2016 (Ocean Avenue and Devendorf Park)

. Thurs., Aug 1g thru sun., Aug 25 - pacRep,s,,The wzard of oz" (outdoor Forest Theatre) - Performances Thurs thru sundays only

SEPTEMBER EVENTS."

. Thurs., SePt 1 thru Sun.

. Thurs., SePt 15 at 5 PM

Association)
Robinson Jefiers Tor House Fall Festival (Women's Club/Tor House)

o Fri., SePt 30 thru Sun., Oct 2 -

OCTOBER EVENTS...

.Sat',oct1thruSUn.,oct2_RobinsonJeffersTorHouseFallFestival(Women.sClub/TorHouse)
e Sat., Oct 1 thru Sat., Oct 15 -- Carmel Heritage exhibit of "The Mayors of Carmel" - (Marjorie Evans Gallery at Sunset Centeo

o sat , oct 1,2,6--9,13 -16 pacRep,s Carmel Shakespeare Festival "Twelfth Night" (outdoor Forest rheatre)

. Sun., oct 2 at 3:00pm - Carmel Music Society begins its goth season with the Romeros Guitar Quartet (Sunset centeo

. Thurs., oct 6 -- 6 to I PM -- Carmel chamber of cOmmerce hosts "A Taste of carmel" (carmel Mission courtyard)

. Fri., oct 7 thru Mon., Oct., 31 - "The History of carmel contemporary Architecture" (cherry center)

o week of oct 10 -- Fire Awareness safety week & and celebration of the 100th year of the carmel-by{he-sea Fire Department

oFri.,oct14at8PM-CarmelCentennialCelebrationDancePresentationTBD(SunsetCenteo
. sun., oct 16 thru sat., oct 31 -- Historical photo exhibit and Jo Mora exhibit -- (Marjorie Evans Gallery at sunset center)

. Mon., oct 17 al2pM-- carmel women's club celebrates,,our story" gl years in carmel with Historical Retrospective and displays (carmel women's

Club)

oWed.,octlgthruSat',ocl22--carmellnternationalFilmFestival(Sunsetcenteo
. Thurs., oct 20 thru sun., oct 30 - pacRep's Carmel shakespeare Festival presents "King Lear" (circle Theatre)

c Fri., Ocl2l-4 PM Carmel High School Parade

. sat., oct 22 and sun., Oct 23 -- Monterey symphony concerts featuring commissioned work inspired by Robinson Jeffers and composed by John

Wneglass in honor of the Centennial Celebration (Sunset Center)

o Sat., Oct 22 - Sand Castle Contest (Carmel Beach)

. sun.,oct23at5:15PM-TheForestTheatreFoundationshow"TheAbaloneclub"(outdoorForestTheatre)
o Sat., Oct 29 at 11 AM - Centennial Celebration Parade (Ocean Avenue)

. Sat., Oct 29 at Noon - Celebratory Luncheon (Sunset Center)

. Sat., oct 29 at g pM -- carmel Music Society celebrates 90th season with SainlMartin-inthe-Fields Chamber Ensemble (Sunset Centeo

NOVEMBER EVENTS...

. Tues., Nov 1 thru Fri., Nov 4 - "The History of carmel contemporary Architecture" (cherry center)

. Thur., Nov 3 - Sun., Nov 6 - pacRep's Carmel Shakespeare Festival presents "King Lear" (Circle Theatre)

o Fri., Nov '11 - Veterans Day Program (Devendorf Park)

o Thurs., Nov 17 at 5 pM - Centennial series, "Reliving our History" - Les and Rowan Rowntee on Lester Rowntree (carmel Residents Association)

o Sat., Nov 19 - Homecrafters' Marketplace (Sunset Center)

. Sat., Nov 1g and sun., Nov 20 - Monterey Symphony concerts presenting Mendelssohn's Midsummer Night's Dream (Sunset Center)

. Thurs., Nov 24 - Thanksgiving

DECEMBER EVENTS...

o Fri., Dec 2 -Tree Lighting (Ocean Avenue at Devendorf Park)

o Fri., Dec g and sat., Dec 1O at 7 pM and sun., Dec 11 at 2 pM - 2016 Dance Kids presents 23rd Annual "The Nutcracker" (sunset cente0

o Fri., Dec 9 - 5 to g pM -,'Carmel-by-the-Glass" a fun-filled winemakers celebration (La Playa Hotel)

. Sun., Dec 25 - Christmas

. Sat., Dec 31 - New Years Eve

. Date TBD - Closing Centennial Ceremony

Sept25-PacRep,S',TheWizardofoz,'(outdoorForestTheatre)-PerformancesThurs'thruSundaysonly

- centennial series at carpenter Hall, "Reliving our History" -- Marcia Kuster Rider on Edward Kuster (carmel Residents

Emai[: in{o@carme[centennia[.com Mait: P.O. Box CC, Carmet-by-the-Sea, CA 9592t mEs
Copyright O zor5-zor6 City of Carme[-by-the-Sea. At[ rights reserved. Apptications {or logo use can be submitted by clicking here'

41812016 6:44PM
2 of2


